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PART I 

    This Annual Report on Form 10-K (the "Annual Report") contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. These statements relate to,
among other things, the Company's future financial position, products, business development, strategy and management's plans and
objectives for future operations. Forward-looking statements generally can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as,
"believe," "may," "will," "intend," "expect," "estimate," "continue," "ongoing," and "potential" or similar expressions or the negative of those
terms or expressions. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may cause the Company's
actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such
factors include, among others, the information contained under the captions "Part I, Item 1. Business," and "Part II, Item 7. Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," in particular, "Risk Factors," for a more detailed description of
these significant risks and uncertainties.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS 

Overview

    Exar Corporation ("Exar" or the "Company") designs, develops and markets high-performance, high-bandwidth mixed-signal (analog and
digital) silicon solutions for the worldwide communications infrastructure. The Company uses its high-speed, analog and mixed-signal design
expertise, system-level knowledge and standard CMOS (Complementary Metal Oxide Semiconductor) process technologies to offer ICs
(integrated circuits) for the communications markets that address transmission standards, such as T/E carrier, ATM (Asynchronous Transfer
Mode) and SONET/SDH (Synchronous Optical Network/Synchronous Digital Hierarchy). Additionally, Exar provides solutions for the
serial communications market as well as the video and imaging markets. Exar's major customers include Alcatel, Cisco, Hewlett-Packard,
Lucent, Nokia and Tellabs.

Industry Background

    Communications technology has evolved from simple analog voice signals transmitted over networks of copper telephone lines to complex
analog and digital voice and data signals transmitted over hybrid networks of media, such as copper, coaxial and fiber optic cables. This
evolution has been driven by large increases in the number of users and the complexity and variety of the data transmitted over networks,
resulting from:

•
the substantial growth in the Internet and its transformation from a text-based medium to a multimedia platform containing
pictures, video and sound; 

•
the growth of wireless communications; and 

•
the increased demand for remote network access and higher speed, higher bandwidth communication between LANs (Local
Area Networks) and WANs (Wide Area Networks).

    The majority of installed communications systems were designed to transmit only voice communications, and are therefore inadequate for
the high-bandwidth transmission of both voice and data. As a result, new equipment is being deployed to augment existing transmission media
and increase their bandwidth. Access to the public network is typically based on asynchronous technologies, such as T/E carrier over copper
wire. The demand for greater bandwidth is driving a migration from lower-speed T1/E1 to higher-speed T3/E3 transmission rates. The T1/E1
standard permits the transmission of data at 1.5 Mbps (Megabits per second)/2.0 Mbps, and the T3/E3 standard permits the transmission of
data at 45 Mbps/34 Mbps. The backbone of the public network is built on an optical
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fiber transmission medium that employs synchronous technologies such as SONET/SDH. Similar to the utilization of faster transmission rates
over copper wire, SONET/SDH protocols such as OC-3 (Optical Carrier) (155 Mbps) and OC-12 (622 Mbps) are being upgraded to OC-48
(2.5 gigabits per second or Gbps) and OC-192 (10 Gbps) to increase the bandwidth over a single optical fiber.

    To address the evolving requirements of communications networks, OEMs (Original Equipment Manufacturers) must develop and
introduce increasingly sophisticated systems at a rapid rate. To achieve the performance and functionality required of these systems,
communications OEMs utilize increasingly complex communications ICs, which now account for a significant portion of the value-added
proprietary content of these systems. As a result of the new equipment introductions, the proliferation of transmission standards, and the
difficulty of designing and producing these ICs, equipment suppliers are increasingly outsourcing the design and production of the ICs
incorporated into their systems.

    These trends have created a significant opportunity for IC suppliers that can design cost-effective solutions for high-speed communications.
The worldwide T/E carrier IC market has experienced steady growth, and Dataquest estimates that it will reach $802 million by 2002. The
ATM IC market has also experienced steady growth and Dataquest projects it will reach $733 million during the same time period. The
SONET/SDH IC market reached $1.3 billion in 1999, and Dataquest estimates that it will grow at a compound annual growth rate of 55% to
$5.0 billion by 2002.

    The key ICs contained in a typical communications system include physical interface, access control, channel processor, bus interface and



    The key ICs contained in a typical communications system include physical interface, access control, channel processor, bus interface and
switch fabric devices. The physical interface device consists of a transmitter and receiver that, when integrated, is called a transceiver.
Transceivers interface with the physical transmission media, such as copper wire or optical fiber. Most of these high-speed, mixed-signal ICs
convert parallel digital inputs into a single analog bit stream that is up to 32 times faster than the original signal. Transceivers therefore serve as
a bridge between analog transmission media and the digital devices that process data. Access control circuits are digital ICs that format, or
frame, the data and perform error checking. The bus interface manages the transfer of data along numerous channels between elements, such
as the channel processor and the switch fabric, which work together to shape, route and control the data.

    Because physical interface and access control ICs interface with the transmission media and are critical to increasing bandwidth, these ICs
must offer high-speed and robust performance. Therefore, communications equipment OEMs seek IC suppliers that possess extensive analog
and digital expertise to provide high-speed, mixed-signal solutions to bridge the analog physical world and the digital computing environment.
This must be coupled with system-level expertise so that a supplier can quickly bring to market high-performance, highly-reliable ICs with
optimal feature sets.

The Exar Solution

    Exar designs, develops and markets high-performance, high-bandwidth mixed-signal ICs for use in the worldwide communications
infrastructure. The Company's analog and mixed-signal design expertise, combined with its systems understanding, enables the Company to
provide physical interface and access control solutions for WAN communications equipment. Exar offers ICs based upon the T/E carrier,
ATM and SONET/SDH transmission standards. In addition, the Company provides solutions for the serial communications market and the
video and imaging markets. Exar believes its products offer its customers the following benefits:

•
increased bandwidth through the integration of multiple channels on a single device; 

•
reduced system noise/jitter to improve data integrity; 

•
reduced overall system cost through the integration of multiple functions on a single device; and
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•
accelerated time to market by allowing customers to focus on core competencies and outsource standards-based solutions.

    Key elements of the Company's solution include:

    Leading Analog and Mixed-Signal Design Expertise.  Exar has 30 years of experience in developing analog and mixed-signal ICs. As a
result, the Company has developed a significant base of knowledge in these areas and a library of design elements. For example, the Company
believes that it has particularly strong expertise in the design of high-speed, low-jitter phase lock loops, which are key elements in Exar's
mixed-signal transceiver products. As a result, Exar can provide its customers with products that typically exceed standard specifications and
allow them flexibility in designing other parts of their systems.

    Broad Product Offerings.  Exar offers a variety of physical interface and access control products based upon the T1/E1, T3/E3, ATM and
SONET/SDH transmission standards. Exar is currently developing multiple channel products for each transmission standard enabling its
customers to minimize board space and overall cost in multi-port applications.

    Comprehensive Solutions to Enhance System Integration.  The combination of Exar's design and system level expertise allows it to provide
a solution that encompasses hardware, software and applications support. Using its solutions, Exar believes that OEMs can efficiently
integrate the Company's devices into their systems, better leverage their development resources and reduce their time to market.

    Compelling Price/Performance Solutions.  The Company uses its systems expertise and its analog, digital and mixed-signal design
techniques to architect high-performance products based on standard CMOS process technologies. Exar believes that these CMOS processes
are proven, stable, predictable and able to meet the application speed and power/performance requirements at a lower price point than other
semiconductor manufacturing processes.

Strategy

    Exar's objective is to be the leading provider of high-performance, high-bandwidth IC solutions for the worldwide communications
infrastructure. To achieve this objective, Exar employs the following strategies:

    Focus on High-Growth Communications Markets.  Exar targets high-growth communications markets, including T/E carrier, ATM and
SONET/SDH. The Company has built substantial expertise in the areas of analog and mixed-signal design, systems architecture and
applications support. Exar believes that the integration of these capabilities enables the Company to develop solutions addressing the high-
bandwidth requirements of communications systems OEMs.

    Leverage Analog and Mixed-Signal Design Expertise to Provide Integrated System Level Solutions.  Utilizing Exar's strong analog and
mixed-signal design expertise, the Company can integrate mixed-signal physical interface devices with digital access control devices. The
Company is currently developing products that integrate transceivers with jitter attenuator framers/ATM UNIs on a single IC and are
exploring opportunities to integrate other functions. These configurations would enable OEMs to use less board space and reduce their overall
system cost.



    Expand the Company's Revenue Content Per System.  Exar's analog and mixed-signal design expertise has enabled the Company to build
what it believes to be a technological lead and a strong market position in T3/E3 transceivers. The Company intends to leverage this lead and
its established customer relationships to capture design wins for its access control products, thereby increasing the Company's overall revenue
content per system.
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    Strengthen and Expand Strategic OEM Relationships.  Exar's customer base includes Alcatel, Cisco, Hewlett-Packard, Lucent, Nokia and
Tellabs. To promote the early adoption of its solutions, the Company actively seeks collaborative relationships with strategic OEMs during
product development. The Company believes that OEMs recognize the value of its early involvement because designing their system products
in parallel with the Company's development can accelerate their time to market. In addition, Exar believes that collaborative relationships help
the Company to obtain early design wins and to reduce the risk of market acceptance of its new products.

    Leverage Broad Product Portfolio to Accelerate Communications Product Development.  Exar believes it has developed a strong presence
in the serial communications market as well as the video and imaging markets, where the Company has leading industry customers, proven
technological capabilities and a strong product portfolio. The Company's design expertise has enabled it to offer a diverse portfolio of both
industry standard and proprietary UARTs (Universal Asynchronous Receiver Transmitters). The Company also has established important
customer relationships in Taiwan for its high-performance, low-power video products and continues to work closely with key customers such
as Hewlett-Packard for its imaging products. Exar's sales to these markets provide the Company with resources to invest in and accelerate its
communications product development.

    Use Standard CMOS Process Technologies to Provide Compelling Price/Performance Solutions.  Exar primarily designs its products to be
manufactured using standard CMOS processes. The Company believes that these processes are proven, stable and predictable and benefit
from the extensive semiconductor-manufacturing infrastructure devoted to CMOS processes. Therefore, the Company believes that it can
achieve a higher level of performance at a lower cost than others employing alternative processes.

    Leverage Fabless Semiconductor Model.  Exar has longstanding relationships with world-class third-party assembly, test and wafer
foundries to manufacture the Company's ICs. The Company's fabless approach allows it to avoid substantial capital spending, obtain
competitive pricing, reduce time to market, reduce technology and product risks, and facilitate the migration of the Company's products to new
process technologies, which reduce costs and optimize performance. By leveraging the fabless model, Exar can focus on its core competencies
of IC design and development.

Products

    Exar designs, develops and markets high-performance, high-bandwidth physical interface and access control solutions for the worldwide
communications infrastructure. The Company's current IC products for the communications market are designed to respond to the growing
demand for high-speed networking equipment based on transmission standards such as T/E carrier, ATM and SONET/SDH. The Company
also designs, develops and markets IC products that address the needs of the serial communications market and the video and imaging
markets. Exar uses its design methodologies to develop products ranging from ASSPs (Application Specific Standard Products), designed for
industry-wide applications, to semi-custom solutions for specific customer applications. These complementary products enable the Company
to offer a range of solutions for its customers' applications.

Communications

    Exar's products for T/E carrier, ATM and SONET/SDH applications include high-speed analog, digital and mixed-signal physical interface
and access control ICs. The physical interface IC consists of a transmitter and receiver that, when integrated, is called a transceiver chip.
Transceivers interface with the physical transmission media. Most of these high-speed, mixed-signal ICs convert parallel digital inputs into a
single analog bit stream that is up to 32 times faster than the original signal. Access
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control circuits are digital circuits that format, or frame, the data and perform error checking. The figure below illustrates where the Company's
products are employed within WAN equipment.

Types of Communications ICs Used in WAN Equipment 



     

DIAGRAM

    Exar's communications products include transmitters and receivers, transceivers, jitter attenuators, framers, ATM UNIs (ATM User
Network Interfaces) and an M13 multiplexer. These products are used in SONET/SDH multiplexers, private branch exchanges (PBX), central
office switches and digital cross connects. The Company refreshed its physical interface solution in 1999 with an integrated single chip
transceiver. Subsequently, the Company announced two, three, and four-channel versions of this transceiver that meet the same performance
levels while requiring less board space and lower overall power in multi-port applications. The Company introduced its integrated, multi-
channel jitter attenuator IC family, a proprietary solution that allows OEMs to meet difficult jitter tolerance specifications while reducing
overall system costs. Exar's access control products include framers, ATM UNIs and an M13 multiplexer. These newer products are
achieving greater market acceptance as Exar's strong transceiver products have allowed it to compete for adjacent component opportunities.
The Company also supplies a family of V.35 transceiver and multiprotocol products used for high-speed data transmission, primarily in
networking equipment such as routers and bridges.
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    The following table describes some of the Company's key communications products:

Product Description

 

Applications

OC-48 framer  SONET/SDH add/drop multiplexers, ATM switches, routers and
digital cross connects

T3/E3/STS-1 1, 2, 3, 4-channel transceivers and T3/E3/STS-1 1-
channel receiver and transmitter

 SONET/SDH multiplexers and digital cross connects

T3/E3 1, 3, 4-channel jitter attenuators  Multiplexers, switches and digital cross connects
T3/E3 M13 multiplexer  Multiplexers, frame relay and Internet access switches
T3/E3 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8-channel framers  Multiplexers and digital cross connects
T3/E3 1, 4-channel ATM UNIs  ATM switches/routers/hubs
E1 4-channel transceiver and framer  Routers, Internet access equipment, frame relay and ATM

switches/routers/hubs
E1 multi-channel transceivers  Multiplexers, frame relay and ATM switches/routers/hubs
T1/E1 1, 4, 8-channel transceivers  Routers, Internet access equipment, frame relay and ATM

switches/routers/hubs
T1 1, 4, 8-channel framers  Routers, Internet access equipment, frame relay and ATM

switches/routers/hubs
T1/E1 clock adaptors  Frame relay access devices and remote access servers
Multiprotocol serial interface  Multiplexers, access equipment and routers
V.35 serial interface  Multiplexers, access equipment and routers

    The Company expects to introduce a number of new communications ICs in fiscal year ending March 31, 2002 to provide an expanded line
of T/E carrier products as well as SONET/SDH products. The T/E carrier products are expected to include multi-channel, multi-function ICs
that integrate transceivers, jitter attenuators, framers and ATM UNIs. SONET/SDH product introductions are expected to focus on data
aggregation combining T3/E3 capability with OC-3 (155 Mbps) or OC-12 (622 Mbps) functions.

Serial Communications

    UARTs convert data streams from parallel to serial, enabling a serial data stream to communicate with a central processing unit, or CPU.
Exar sells its UART products to the remote access, data collection, industrial automation and handheld/mobile markets. Many of these
products include high-performance features, such as automated flow control and large First-In First-Out, or FIFO, buffers. The Company has
designed a highly integrated quad, or four channel, UART with FIFO circuitry, which the Company believes is the de-facto industry standard
for quad FIFO UARTs used in multi-channel networking applications.
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    The following table describes the Company's key serial communications products:

Product Description

 

Applications



8-channel PCI UART with 64 byte FIFO  PCI interface for network control management
8-channel UART with 64 byte FIFO  Network management, remote access servers and point of sale

systems
1, 2, 4-channel UART with 128 byte FIFO  Process control systems
1, 4-channel UART with 64 byte FIFO  Personal digital assistants and GPS
1, 2, 4-channel UART with 16 byte FIFO  Hub management, high-speed modems and PC

I/O cards
2-channel UART with 8 byte FIFO  Process control systems, switches and serial port equipment
2-channel UART with 16 byte FIFO  Process control systems, switches and serial port equipment
2-channel UART  Serial port equipment

    During the current fiscal year, the Company expects to expand its family of PCI multi-channel UARTs to include two channel as well as
four channel devices.

Video and Imaging

    The video market is composed of several segments, including digital still cameras, or DSCs, PC video cameras, security cameras,
camcorders and digital camcorders. Among these applications, one of the fastest growing segments is DSCs. To create images that are more
comparable to film cameras and include features such as steady-shot and digital zoom, DSCs and digital camcorders are requiring higher-
resolution and higher-speed data acquisition subsystems, also known as analog front ends, or AFEs, and analog-to-digital converters, or
ADCs.

    Exar supplies high-performance ADCs and integrated AFEs for products such as DSCs, digital copiers, scanners and multifunctional
peripherals, or MFPs, which incorporate scanning, faxing and copying functions in a single integrated system. The Company uses advanced
design techniques and process technologies to integrate low-power converter architectures with surrounding analog functions, reducing total
system cost.

    The following table describes some of the Company's key video and imaging products:

Product Description

 

Applications

12bit/20 or 30 Msps AFEs  High speed scanners, DSCs, camcorders and video conferencing

10bit/18, 20 or 27 Msps AFEs  DSCs, camcorders and video conferencing

3-channel 12, 14 or 16bit/6 or 12 Msps AFEs  Scanners, MFPs and digital color copiers

10bit/20 or 40 Msps ADC  High-end DSCs and broadcast video

8bit/6 Msps ADC  Video boards, scanners and battery powered devices

8, 10 or 12 bit serial input DAC (digital-to-analog converter)  Voltage control and power control for wireless equipment

8

    During fiscal year ending March 31, 2002, the Company plans to focus its product development efforts on a custom chip for high-speed
scanner applications.

Sales and Customers

    Exar markets its products in the United States through 24 independent sales representatives and four independent, non-exclusive
distributors, as well as through the Company's own direct sales force. The Company currently has sales support offices in or near Atlanta,
Boston, Chicago, Dallas, Los Angeles and Fremont, California. The Company is represented internationally by 25 sales representatives and
distributors. In addition, the Company is represented in Europe by its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Exar Ltd. and Exar SARL, and in the
Asia/Pacific Region by its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Exar Japan and Exar Taiwan.

    Some of the Company's larger customers include the following:

Communications

 

Serial Communications

 

Video and Imaging

• ADC Telecommunications, Inc.
• Alcatel Alsthom S.A.
• Cisco Systems, Inc.
• Fujitsu Ltd.
• Lucent Technologies, Inc.
• Marconi Communications Plc.
• Nokia Corporation
• Tellabs, Inc.

 • Cisco Systems, Inc.
• Digi International, Inc.
• LM Ericsson Telephone Co.
• Rose Electronics

 • Altek Corp.
• Canon, Inc.
• Eastman Kodak Company
• Hewlett-Packard Company
• Logitech International S.A.
• Sharp Electronics Corp.

    For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, no single customer accounted for more than 10% of the Company's sales.



Manufacturing

    Exar outsources all of its fabrication and assembly, as well as the majority of its testing operations. This fabless manufacturing model
allows the Company to focus on its core competencies of product design and development.

    The Company uses world-class independent wafer foundries, such as Chartered Semiconductor Manufacturing, or Chartered, and Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Company, or TSMC. Chartered and TSMC manufacture all of the Company's CMOS products. Rohm
Co. Ltd. manufactures all of the Company's Bipolar products and Chartered manufactures most of the Company's BiCMOS (combines bipolar
and CMOS process) products. The Company does not have long term supply agreements with Chartered or TSMC. The Company's supply
agreement with Rohm expires in 2006. The majority of the Company's current products are implemented in standard CMOS. The Company
uses CMOS manufacturing processes to take advantage of that technology's lower power consumption, cost-effectiveness, foundry
availability and ever-increasing speed. Currently, most of the Company's new product development is being implemented in CMOS.

    Wafers are usually shipped to the Company's subcontractors in Asia for wafer test and assembly, where they are cut into individual die and
packaged. Most of the Company's assembly work is performed by independent contractors in Hong Kong, Indonesia, and Singapore.
Following assembly, final test and quality assurance is performed either at the Company's Fremont, California facility or at its subcontractors'
facilities in Asia. The Company conducts electrical testing of both wafers and packaged ICs. The combination of various functions makes the
test process for analog and mixed-signal devices particularly difficult. Test operations require the programming, maintenance and use of
sophisticated computer-based test systems and complex automatic handling systems.
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Research and Development

    Exar believes that the continued introduction of new products in its target markets is essential to its growth. The Company is focused on
developing solutions addressing the high-bandwidth requirements of communications systems OEMs. As of March 31, 2001, the Company's
research and development staff consisted of 141 employees, 61 of whom hold advanced engineering degrees. The Company successfully
recruited 26 engineers during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, while experiencing minimal attrition. Over the next year, Exar will
continue to seek to hire strategic technical and marketing personnel.

Competition

    The semiconductor industry is intensely competitive and is characterized by rapid technological change and a history of price reductions as
production efficiencies are achieved in successive generations of products. Although the market for analog and mixed-signal integrated circuits
is generally characterized by longer product life cycles and less dramatic price reductions than the market for digital integrated circuits, the
Company faces substantial competition in each market in which it participates. Competition in the Company's markets is based principally on
technical innovation, product features, timely introduction of new products, quality and reliability, performance, price, technical support and
service. The Company believes that it competes favorably in all of these areas.

    Because the IC markets are highly fragmented, the Company generally encounters different competitors in its various market areas.
Competitors with respect to the Company's communications products include Conexant Systems Inc., PMC-Sierra and TranSwitch. In
addition, the expansion of the Company's communications product portfolio may in the future bring it into competition with other established
communications IC companies, such as Applied Micro Circuits Corporation and Vitesse Semiconductor. Competitors in the Company's other
markets include Analog Devices Inc., Philips Electronics and Texas Instruments, Inc.

Backlog

    Exar defines backlog to include OEM orders and distributor orders for which a delivery schedule has been specified for product shipment
occurring primarily during the succeeding six months.

    At March 31, 2001, Exar's backlog was $18.1 million, compared with $20.6 million at March 31, 2000. Exar believes that the decrease in
the Company's backlog was primarily due to inventory accumulation and channel adjustments within the communications product market.

    Sales are made pursuant to purchase orders for current delivery of standard items or agreements covering purchases over a period of time,
which are frequently subject to revision and cancellation. Lead times for the release of purchase orders depend upon the scheduling practices
of the individual customer, and the Company's rate of bookings varies from month-to-month. In addition, Exar's distributor agreements
generally permit the return of up to 10% of the purchases annually for purposes of stock rotation and also provide for credits to distributors in
the event Exar reduces the price of any product. Because of the possibility of changes in delivery schedules and quantities actually purchased,
cancellations of orders, distributor returns or price reductions, Exar's backlog as of any particular date is not necessarily indicative of actual
sales for any succeeding period. Customers can cancel a significant portion of their backlog at their discretion without substantial penalty.

Intellectual Property Rights

    The Company has 90 patents issued and 29 patent applications pending in the U.S. The Company has 11 patents issued and 17 patent
applications pending in various foreign countries. None of the Company's domestic and foreign patents that have been issued will expire in the
near future unless the
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Company chooses not to pay renewal fees. To protect the Company's intellectual property, the Company also relies on a combination of mask



Company chooses not to pay renewal fees. To protect the Company's intellectual property, the Company also relies on a combination of mask
work registrations, trademarks, copyrights, trade secrets, employee and third-party nondisclosure agreements and licensing arrangements. The
Company has also entered into license agreements from time to time to gain access to externally developed products or technologies.

    There can be no assurance that others will not independently develop substantially equivalent intellectual property or otherwise gain access
to the Company's trade secrets or intellectual property, or disclose such intellectual property or trade secrets, or that the Company can
meaningfully protect its intellectual property. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that the Company's pending patent applications or any
future applications will be approved, or that any issued patents will provide the Company with competitive advantages, or will not be
challenged by third parties, or that if challenged, will be found to be valid or enforceable, or that the patents of others will not have an adverse
effect on the Company's ability to do business. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that others will not independently develop similar
products, duplicate the Company's products, or design around any patents that may be issued to the Company.

    The Company cannot be sure that its products or technologies do not infringe patents that may be granted in the future pursuant to pending
patent applications or that the Company's products do not infringe any patents or proprietary rights of third parties. Occasionally, the Company
is informed by third parties of alleged patent infringement. In the event that any relevant claims of third-party patents are supported as valid
and enforceable, the Company could be prevented from selling the Company's products or could be required to obtain licenses from the
owners of these patents or be required to redesign the Company's products to avoid infringement. The Company cannot assure that licenses
would be available to the Company on acceptable terms, or at all, or that the Company would be successful in any attempts to redesign its
products or processes to avoid infringement. The Company's failure to obtain these licenses or to redesign the Company's products could
negatively harm its business.

Employees

    As of March 31, 2001, the Company employed 288 full-time employees, with 141 in engineering and product development, 42 in
operations, 57 in marketing and sales and 48 in administration. Of the 141 engineering and product development employees, 61 hold advanced
degrees. The Company's ability to attract, motivate and retain qualified personnel is essential to its continued success. None of the Company's
employees is represented by a collective bargaining agreement, nor has the Company ever experienced any work stoppage. The Company
believes its employee relations are good.

Facilities

    Exar's executive offices, marketing and sales, research and development and engineering operations are located in two buildings in Fremont,
California that the Company owns, consisting of approximately 151,000 square feet. Additionally, the Company owns approximately 5.3
acres of undeveloped property adjacent to its headquarters, which is presently being held for future office expansion. The Company leases
additional space for sales offices in or near Boston; Atlanta; Dallas; Chicago; Los Angeles; Kawasaki, Japan; Velizy, France; Remseck,
Germany; and Taipei, Taiwan.
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MANAGEMENT 

    The names of the Company's executive officers and directors, and their ages as of May 31, 2001, are as follows:

Name

 

Age

 

Position

Donald L. Ciffone, Jr.  45 Chief Executive Officer, President, Director
Michael Class  43 Vice President, Worldwide Sales
Roubik Gregorian  51 Chief Technology Officer, Senior Vice President/General

Manager, Communications Division
Ronald W. Guire  52 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Assistant

Secretary and Director
Susan J. Hardman  39 Vice President, Corporate Marketing
Thomas R. Melendrez  47 Corporate Vice President, General Counsel, Secretary
Stephen W. Michael  54 Vice President, Operations Division
Raimon L. Conlisk  78 Chairman of the Board of Directors
Frank P. Carrubba  63 Director
James E. Dykes  63 Director
Richard Previte  66 Director

    Donald L. Ciffone, Jr. joined Exar as Chief Executive Officer and President in October 1996 and was appointed director at that time. From
August 1996 to October 1996, Mr. Ciffone was Executive Vice President of Toshiba America, the U.S. semiconductor subsidiary of Toshiba
Semiconductor. Prior to joining Toshiba, he served from 1991 to 1996 in a variety of senior management positions including Senior Vice
President of the VLSI Product Divisions at VLSI Technology, Inc. From 1978 to 1991, Mr. Ciffone held a variety of marketing and
operations positions at National Semiconductor, Inc. Mr. Ciffone holds an M.B.A. from the University of Santa Clara.

    Michael Class joined Exar as Director of Western Area Sales in 1996. In January 1998, he was promoted to the position of Vice President,
North American/European Sales and was promoted to Vice President, Worldwide Sales in July 1999. Mr. Class has over 20 years of
experience in the semiconductor industry, most recently with IC Works, Inc. as Area Sales Manager for Western U.S. and Canada. Prior to
joining IC Works, Mr. Class held various sales management positions with Intel Corporation and VLSI from 1979 to 1995. He holds a B.S.
in Electrical Engineering from Lehigh University and an M.B.A. from LaSalle University.



    Roubik Gregorian joined Exar in March 1995 as Vice President, Startech Division, when the Company acquired Startech
Semiconductor, Inc., where he served as President. He was appointed Chief Technology Officer and Vice President of the Communications
Division in June 1996, and to his current position as Chief Technology Officer, Senior Vice President/General Manager, Communications
Division, in June 1998. Prior to joining Startech in 1994, Dr. Gregorian was Vice President of Research and Development and Chief
Technology Officer for Sierra Semiconductor, Inc. Dr. Gregorian has been issued 16 patents and received his M.S.E.E. and Ph.D. in Electrical
Engineering from the University of California at Los Angeles, as well as an M.S.E.E. from Tehran University.

    Ronald W. Guire joined Exar in July 1984 and has been a director since June 1985. He has served as Chief Financial Officer since
May 1985 and Executive Vice President since July 1995. Mr. Guire is also Chairman of the Board of Xetel Corporation, an electronics
contract manufacturer. Mr. Guire was a partner in the certified public accounting firm of Graubart & Co. from 1979 until he joined Exar in
July 1984. Mr. Guire holds a B.S. in Accounting from California College of Commerce.
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    Susan J. Hardman joined Exar in February 1997 and became Vice President, Corporate Marketing in February 2000. Prior to this
position, she served as Senior Director of Business Development as well as Director of Marketing for the Company's communication
products. Ms. Hardman has over 17 years experience in the semiconductor industry. From 1989 to 1997, Ms. Hardman was with VLSI in a
variety of management positions, most recently as Director of Product Marketing for VLSI's networking products division. From 1983 to
1989, she was with Motorola holding a variety of engineering roles. Ms. Hardman holds a B.S. in Chemical Engineering from Purdue
University and an M.B.A. from the University of Phoenix.

    Thomas R. Melendrez joined Exar in April 1986 as Corporate Attorney. He was promoted to Director, Legal Affairs in July 1991, and
again to Corporate Vice President, Legal Affairs in March 1993. In March 1996, Mr. Melendrez was promoted to his current position of
Corporate Vice President, General Counsel. Mr. Melendrez has over 20 years legal experience in the semiconductor and related industries. He
received a B.A. from the University of Notre Dame, a J.D. from the University of San Francisco, and an M.B.A. from Pepperdine University.

    Stephen W. Michael joined Exar as Vice President New Market Development in September 1992. In July 1995, he was appointed to his
current position of Vice President, Operations Division. Mr. Michael has over 25 years of semiconductor industry experience, most recently
as Vice President and General Manager, Analog and Custom Products with Catalyst Semiconductor. He joined Catalyst in 1987 and served in
various senior positions.

    Raimon L. Conlisk joined Exar as a director in August 1985, was appointed Vice Chairman of the Board in August 1990, and was
appointed Chairman of the Board in April 1995. Mr. Conlisk has also served as a director since 1991 and was appointed Chairman of the
Board in December 1997 of SBE, Inc., a manufacturer of communications and computer products. From 1977 to 1999, Mr. Conlisk was
President of Conlisk Associates, a management consulting firm serving high-technology companies in the United States and foreign countries.
From 1991 to 1998, Mr. Conlisk served as a director of Xetel Corporation, a contract manufacturer of electronic equipment. Mr. Conlisk was
also President from 1984 to 1989, a director from 1970 and Chairman from 1989 until retirement in June 1990, of Quantic Industries, Inc., a
privately held manufacturer of electronic systems. From 1970 to 1973 and from 1987 to 1990, Mr. Conlisk served as a director of the
American Electronics Association.

    Frank P. Carrubba joined Exar as a director in August 1998. Dr. Carrubba served as Executive Vice President and Chief Technical
Officer of Royal Philips Electronics, headquartered in Eindhoven, the Netherlands, from 1991 until his retirement in 1997. From 1982 to
1991, Dr. Carrubba was with the Hewlett-Packard Company, where he was a member of the Group Management Committee and was
Director of H-P Laboratories. Prior to joining Hewlett-Packard, he spent 22 years as a member of the technical staff at IBM Corporation's
Thomas J. Watson Research Laboratory in Yorktown Heights, New York. Dr. Carrubba was one of the original inventors of RISC
Architecture, for which he was named Inventor of the Year in 1992. Dr. Carrubba is also a director of Coherent, Inc., a developer and
manufacturer of lasers, laser systems and precision optics.

    James E. Dykes joined Exar as a director in May 1994. Mr. Dykes served as President and CEO of the Signetics division of North
American Philips Corporation, a manufacturer of industrial and consumer electronics, from 1989 to 1993 and, from 1987 to 1988, as
President and CEO of TSMC, a semiconductor foundry in Taiwan. Prior to joining TSMC, Mr. Dykes held various management positions
with other semiconductor and related companies, including General Electric Company, a diversified international manufacturer of defense,
electrical and other products, and Harris Semiconductor, Inc., a manufacturer of integrated circuits. From August 1994 to June 1997,
Mr. Dykes served as President and Chief Operating Officer of Intellon Corp., a wireless network communications company. From July 1997
until his departure in July 1998, Mr. Dykes served as Executive Vice President, Corporate Development of the Thomas Group, Inc., an
international, professional consulting
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firm providing solution to improve business processes. Mr. Dykes is also a director of the Thomas Group Inc., Cree Inc., a silicon carbide
materials and electronics company, and Thesus Logic, Inc., a privately held semiconductor company.

    Richard Previte joined Exar as a director in October 1999. Mr. Previte is Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors
of MarketFusion since January 2000. He was a director of Advanced Micro Devices, or AMD, from 1990 to April 2000 and Vice Chairman
from 1999 to April 2000. Additionally, Mr. Previte served as Chairman of the Board of Vantis Corporations, a subsidiary of AMD, from
1997 to June 1999, and acted as Chief Executive Officer from February 1999 to June 1999. Mr. Previte served as President of AMD from
1990 to 1999, Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer from 1989 to 1990 and Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer from 1969
to 1989.



ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

    The Company's corporate headquarters are located in Fremont, California, consisting of approximately 151,000 square feet. The land and
building are owned by the Company and house Exar's principal administrative, test, engineering, marketing, customer service and sales
departments. Additionally, the Company owns approximately 5.3 acres of undeveloped property adjacent to its headquarters, which is
presently being held for future office expansion.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

    There are no material legal actions pending or contemplated.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 

    During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, no matter was submitted to a vote of security holders through the solicitation of proxies or
otherwise.
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PART II 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

    The Common Stock of Exar is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol "EXAR." The following table sets forth the range
of high and low sales prices for the Company's Common Stock for the periods indicated, as reported by Nasdaq, as adjusted for a three-for-
two stock split effected on February 15, 2000 and a two-for-one stock split effected on October 19, 2000. The listed quotations represent
inter-dealer prices without retail markup, markdown or commissions.

  

COMMON STOCK PRICES

  

HIGH

 

LOW

FISCAL 2001       
Quarter ended March 31, 2001  $ 37.50 $ 16.81
Quarter ended December 31, 2000  $ 64.19 $ 20.31
Quarter ended September 30, 2000  $ 62.56 $ 40.25
Quarter ended June 30, 2000  $ 46.06 $ 21.00

FISCAL 2000       

Quarter ended March 31, 2000  $ 49.81 $ 19.00
Quarter ended December 31, 1999  $ 21.54 $ 10.50
Quarter ended September 30, 1999  $ 13.00 $ 8.50
Quarter ended June 30, 1999  $ 8.46 $ 5.29

    The Company has never paid dividends on its Common Stock and presently intends to continue this policy in order to retain earnings for
use in its business. The Company had approximately 191 stockholders of record as of May 31, 2001. The Company believes it has in excess
of 3,900 beneficial stockholders. The last sales price for Exar's Common Stock, as reported by Nasdaq on May 31, 2001, was $23.09 per
share.

ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA 

    The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto and
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" included elsewhere in this report. Historical
periods have been
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restated to reflect the three-for-two stock split effected on February 15, 2000 and a two-for-one stock split effected on October 19, 2000.

  

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31,

 

  

2001

 

2000

 

1999

 

1998

 

1997

 

  

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

 

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:                 



Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:                 
Net Sales  $ 112,924 $ 78,544 $ 71,868 $ 102,015 $ 92,343 
Gross Profit   66,956  44,402  38,482  50,078  36,883 
Income (Loss) From Operations   18,146  3,946  4,051  8,986  (15,238)
Net Income (Loss)   28,434  15,115  5,424  7,518  (9,197)

Net Income (Loss) Per Share:                 
 Basic  $ 0.75 $ 0.52 $ 0.19 $ 0.27 $ (0.34)
 Diluted  $ 0.66 $ 0.47 $ 0.19 $ 0.26 $ (0.34)

Shares Used in Computation of Net Income (Loss)
Per Share:                 
 Basic   38,097  28,953  28,176  27,978  27,212 
 Diluted   42,849  32,394  28,800  29,190  27,212 

  

AS OF MARCH 31,

  

2001

 

2000

 

1999

 

1998

 

1997

  

(In thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:                
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments  $ 401,044 $ 380,158 $ 81,410 $ 79,307 $ 53,532
Working Capital   414,390  393,570  91,885  90,395  68,822
Total Assets   499,348  438,433  138,296  143,669  125,537
Long-term Obligations   476  574  664  745  880
Retained Earnings   100,673  72,239  57,124  51,700  44,182
Stockholders' Equity   483,997  425,041  125,757  123,729  109,817
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

    This Annual Report on Form 10-K (the "Annual Report") contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. These statements relate to,
among other things, the Company's future financial position, products, business development, strategy and management's plans and
objectives for future operations. Forward-looking statements generally can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as,
"believe," "may," "will," "intend," "expect," "estimate," "continue," "ongoing," and "potential" or similar expressions or the negative of those
terms or expressions. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may cause the Company's
actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such
factors include, among others, the information contained under the captions "Part I, Item 1. Business," and "Part II, Item 7. Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," in particular, "Risk Factors," for a more detailed description of
these significant risks and uncertainties.

Overview

    The Company designs, develops and markets high-performance, high-bandwidth mixed-signal (analog and digital) silicon solutions for the
worldwide communications infrastructure. The Company also provides solutions for the serial communications market as well as the video
and imaging markets. The Company's major customers include Alcatel, Cisco, Hewlett-Packard, Lucent, Nokia and Tellabs.

    Over the past several years, the Company has actively refocused its business on products for the communications markets. In the 1970's,
the Company designed, manufactured and marketed custom and general purpose analog circuits supporting many different applications. In the
1980's, the Company transitioned its products to analog and mixed-signal application specific standard products, or ASSPs, focusing on
telecommunications, data communications, computer peripherals and consumer electronics. Through the mid-1990's, the Company continued
this product transition through internal development and strategic acquisitions and moved to a fabless semiconductor business model. In 1997,
the Company chose to focus its product strategy and development efforts on the communications markets. For that year, the Company's
communications products represented 43.2% of its net sales. For the year ended March 31, 2001, the Company's communications product
sales increased to 73.8% of its net sales.

    The Company's international sales represented 32.4%, 32.8% and 36.5% of the Company's net sales for the years ended March 31, 2001,
2000 and 1999. These international sales consist primarily of export sales from the United States denominated in United States Dollars. Such
international sales and operations give rise to exposures from changes in currency exchange rates as a result of the Company's foreign
operating expenses being denominated in foreign currency. The Company has adopted a set of practices to minimize its foreign currency risk,
which include the occasional use of foreign currency exchange contracts to hedge operating results from its foreign subsidiaries. Although
foreign sales may be subject to tariffs in certain countries or with regard to certain products, the Company's profit margin on international sales
of ICs, adjusted for differences in product mix, is not significantly different from that realized on the Company's sales to domestic customers.

    The Company generally recognizes product revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the fee is
fixed and determinable and collectibility is probable. The Company's distributor agreements generally permit the return of up to 10% of their
purchases annually for purposes of stock rotation and also provide for credits to distributors in the event the Company reduces the price of any



purchases annually for purposes of stock rotation and also provide for credits to distributors in the event the Company reduces the price of any
product. The Company records an allowance, at the time of shipment, based on authorized and historical patterns of returns, price protection
and other concessions.
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    The Company's gross margins vary depending on product mix, competition, the volume of products manufactured and sold, its suppliers'
ability to achieve certain manufacturing efficiencies and the cost of materials procured from its suppliers. Exar's newer analog and mixed-
signal products, especially its communications products, generally have higher gross margins than its more mature products, and margins of
any particular product may erode over time.

Results of Operations

    The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the percentage relationship to net sales of certain cost, expense and income items.
The table and subsequent discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.

  

Fiscal Years Ended March 31,

 

  

2001

 

2000

 

1999

 

Net sales  100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of sales  40.7 43.5 46.5 
     
Gross profit  59.3 56.5 53.5 
Research and development  21.1 23.6 20.7 
Selling, general and administrative  22.1 27.2 25.3 
Goodwill amortization  — .7 .9 
Restructuring and other charges  — — 1.0 
     
Operating income  16.1 5.0 5.6 
Other income, net  23.3 23.2 6.6 
     
Income before income taxes  39.4 28.2 12.2 
Income taxes  14.2 9.0 4.6 
     
Net income  25.2% 19.2% 7.6%
     

Product Line Sales as a Percentage of Net Sales

    The following table sets forth product line revenue information as a percentage of net sales. The table and subsequent discussion should be
read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.

  

Fiscal Years Ended March 31,

 

  

2001

 

2000

 

1999

 

Communications  73.8% 74.2% 57.1%
Video and Imaging  21.3 18.1 21.4 
Other  4.9 7.7 21.5 
     
  100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
     

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2001 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2000

    Net sales.  Net sales for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 increased by 43.8% to $112.9 million, compared to $78.6 million for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2000. This increase was primarily due to a 43.1% or $25.1 million increase in sales of the Company's
communications products. This increase was also due in part to favorable market conditions in the overall semiconductor industry and the
growth of the Company's network transmission products and serial communications products,
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as both of these product lines gained market acceptance and previous design wins matured into production of network transmission products.

    In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, sales to domestic customers increased by 44.5% from $52.8 million to $76.3 million. International
sales increased by 41.9% from $25.8 million to $36.6 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001.

    Cost of sales.  Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 decreased to approximately 40.7%,
compared to 43.5% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000. The resulting improvement in gross margins is attributed to lower costs from



compared to 43.5% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000. The resulting improvement in gross margins is attributed to lower costs from
increased production efficiencies associated with higher shipment levels and greater revenue contribution from new devices with higher gross
margins that reached production. Furthermore, the Company has experienced a favorable shift in product mix toward higher margin products
resulting from the growth in communications revenue, primarily from transmission products sales.

    Research and development.  Research and development ("R&D") expenses for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 were $23.8 million, or
21.1% of net sales, compared to $18.6 million, or 23.6% of net sales for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000. The dollar increase in R&D
spending reflects the Company's ongoing R&D efforts relating to transmission products. The increase in R&D was primarily due to new
product development resulting in higher expenditures for supplies and services necessary to support the overall growth in R&D. In the future,
the Company expects to increase spending on R&D activities to support growth, particularly for transmission products. The Company expects
research and development expenses to continue to fluctuate as a percentage of net sales as a result of the timing of expenditures and changes in
the level of net sales.

    Selling, general and administrative.  Selling, general and administrative ("SG&A") expenses for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 were
$25.0 million, or 22.1% of net sales, compared to $21.4 million, or 27.2% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000. The increase in
expenditures was due primarily to the overall growth of the business, while the decrease in percentage of net sales reflects a higher revenue
contribution from newer products with higher gross margins. In the short term, many of the selling, general and administrative expenses are
fixed, causing a decline as a percentage of net sales in periods of rapidly rising sales and an increase as a percentage of net sales when sales
growth is slower or declining.

    Other income.  Other income in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 increased by $8.2 million or 45% over fiscal year ended March 31,
2000. The increase was mainly the result of higher cash balances available to earn interest. Other income in the fiscal year ended March 31,
2000 includes a pre-tax $12.0 million gain on the sale of an investment related to a minority equity investment in IC Works, Inc. In
April 1999, the Company received approximately 1.1 million shares of common stock in Cypress Semiconductor, Inc. in exchange for its
investment in IC Works, Inc. due to the merger of Cypress Semiconductor, Inc. and IC Works, Inc. The Company sold this stock during the
first and fourth quarters of fiscal 2000, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $12.0 million in other income and a related employee compensation and
benefits expense of $3.0 million in costs and expenses.

    Provision for income taxes.  The provision for income taxes is based on income from operations. The effective tax rate for fiscal 2001 was
approximately 36.1% compared with the federal statutory rate of 35%. The difference is due primarily to state income taxes partially offset by
income tax credits. The effective tax rate for fiscal 2000 was approximately 31.7% compared to federal statutory rate of 35%. The difference is
due to utilization of capital loss carryforwards that offset the gain on sale of the IC Works, Inc. investment and tax savings generated from
utilization of the Company's foreign sales corporation partially offset by non-deductible expenses and state income taxes.

    To date, inflation has not had a significant impact on the Company's operating results.
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Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2000 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 1999

    Net sales.  Net sales during fiscal 2000 were $78.6 million compared to $71.9 million in fiscal 1999, an increase of 9.3%. This increase was
primarily due to a 42.0% or $17.2 million increase in sale of the Company's serial communications products and increased sales of its
transmission products as both of these product lines gained market acceptance and design wins. This increase was partially offset by decreases
in sales of discontinued consumer and custom products in the Company's legacy product lines (due in part to the fiscal 1999 closure of one of
the Company's third-party wafer fabrication facilities), as well as the sale of the Company's Silicon Microstructures business unit and related
product lines in November 1998.

    In fiscal 2000, sales to domestic customers increased by 15.7% to $52.8 million. International sales decreased by 1.7% to $25.8 million.

    Cost of sales.  Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000 represented 43.5%, compared to 46.5%
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999. The resulting increase in gross margins is due primarily to a greater mix of communications
products, which generally have higher gross margins than many of the Company's more mature products.

    Research and development.  R&D expenses for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000 represented 23.6% of net sales, compared to 20.7%
of net sales for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999. R&D spending for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000 increased by 25.1% as the
Company continued to invest in the development of its communications products. These spending increases resulted from additional staffing
in the communications products areas, increases in expenditures for supplies and services for the development of communications products,
and an increase in employee compensation and benefits expenses associated with a pre-tax gain recognized in Other Income in the first quarter
of fiscal 2000. In the future, the Company expects to increase spending on research and development activities, particularly for
communications products.

    Selling, general and administrative.  SG&A expenses for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000 represented 27.2% of net sales, compared
to 25.3% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999. SG&A expenses for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000 increased by 17.4%. The
increase was due to growth in communications product sales and an increase in employee compensation and benefits expenses associated with
a pre-tax gain recognized in Other Income in the first quarter of fiscal 2000.

    Other income.  Other income in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000 includes a pre-tax $12.0 million gain on the sale of an investment
related to a minority equity investment in IC Works, Inc. In April 1999, the Company received approximately 1.1 million shares of common
stock in Cypress Semiconductor, Inc. in exchange for its investment in IC Works, Inc. due to the merger of Cypress Semiconductor, Inc. and
IC Works, Inc. The Company sold this stock during the first and fourth quarters of fiscal 2000, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $12.0 million in
other income and a related employee compensation and benefits expense of $3.0 million in costs and expenses.



    Provision for income taxes.  The provision for income taxes is based on income from operations. The effective tax rate for fiscal 2000 was
approximately 31.7% compared with the federal statutory rate of 35%. The difference is due to utilization of capital loss carryforwards that
offset the gain on sale of the IC Works, Inc. investment and tax savings generated from utilization of the Company's foreign sales corporation
partially offset by non-deductible expenses, state income taxes and foreign income, which is taxed at rates different from U.S. income tax.
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Quarterly Results 

    The following tables contain selected unaudited quarterly financial data for the eight quarters ended March 31, 2001 and this data as a
percentage of net sales. In the opinion of management, this unaudited information has been prepared on the same basis as the audited
information and includes all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary to present fairly the information set forth
therein. Results for a particular quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results for any subsequent quarter. The data gives effect to the
three-for-two stock split effected on February 15, 2000 and the two-for-one stock split effected on October 19, 2000.

  

Quarter Ended

 

  

March 31,
2001

 

Dec. 31,
2000

 

Sept. 30,
2000

 

June 30,
2000

 

March 31,
2000

 

Dec. 31,
1999

 

Sept. 30,
1999

 

June 30,
1999

 

  

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

 

Net sales  $ 21,568 $ 32,515 $ 31,502 $ 27,339 $ 23,045 $ 20,708 $ 18,550 $ 16,251 
Cost of sales   8,582  12,994  12,958  11,434  9,743  8,947  8,160  7,302 
          
Gross profit   12,986  19,521  18,544  15,905  13,302  11,761  10,390  8,949 
Research and
development   5,853  5,967  6,235  5,785  4,855  4,365  4,096  5,252 
Selling, general and
administrative   6,127  6,575  6,243  6,025  5,451  5,194  4,826  5,913 
Goodwill amortization   —  —  —  —  126  126  126  126 
          
Operating income
(loss)   1,006  6,979  6,066  4,095  2,870  2,076  1,342  (2,342)
Other income, net   6,379  7,273  6,643  6,070  7,423  1,423  1,296  8,044 
          
Income before income
taxes   7,385  14,252  12,709  10,165  10,293  3,499  2,638  5,702 
Income taxes   2,340  5,273  4,754  3,709  3,229  1,124  857  1,807 
          
Net income  $ 5,045 $ 8,979 $ 7,955 $ 6,456 $ 7,064 $ 2,375 $ 1,781 $ 3,895 
          
Net income per share:                          
 Basic  $ 0.13 $ 0.23 $ 0.21 $ 0.17 $ 0.23 $ 0.08 $ 0.06 $ 0.14 
          
 Diluted  $ 0.12 $ 0.21 $ 0.18 $ 0.15 $ 0.19 $ 0.07 $ 0.06 $ 0.13 
          
Shares used in the
computation of net
income per share:                          
 Basic   38,811  38,502  37,798  37,292  31,068  28,623  28,149  27,995 
          
 Diluted   42,276  43,138  43,332  42,664  36,239  32,827  31,303  29,230 
          

  

March 31,
2001

 

Dec. 31,
2000

 

Sept. 30,
2000

 

June 30,
2000

 

March 31,
2000

 

Dec. 31,
1999

 

Sept. 30,
1999

 

June 30,
1999

 

  

(As a percentage of net sales)

 

Net sales  100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of sales  39.8 40.0 41.1 41.8 42.3 43.2 44.0 44.9 
          
Gross profit  60.2 60.0 58.9 58.2 57.7 56.8 56.0 55.1 
Research and development  27.1 18.4 19.8 21.2 21.2 21.1 22.1 32.3 
Selling, general and



Selling, general and
administrative  28.4 20.2 19.8 22.0 23.7 25.1 26.0 36.4 
Goodwill amortization  — — — — 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 
          
Operating income (loss)  4.7 21.5 19.3 15.0 12.5 10.0 7.2 (14.4)
Other income, net  29.6 22.4 21.1 22.2 32.2 6.9 7.0 49.5 
          
Income before income
taxes  34.2 43.8 40.3 37.2 44.7 16.9 14.2 35.1 
Income taxes  10.9 16.2 15.1 13.6 14.0 5.4 4.6 11.1 
          
Net Income  23.4% 27.6% 25.3% 23.6% 30.7% 11.5% 9.6% 24.0%
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    Gross margins have improved due to a greater mix of communications products which generally have higher gross margins than the
Company's more mature products. The sequential quarter decrease in net sales for the quarter ended March 31, 2001 was primarily due to
accumulation of excess supply in inventory channels. Additionally, the general economic downturn in the United States which has lowered the
demand for equipment sold by several of the Company's significant customers, many of which have announced large component inventories
and declines in expected operating results, has had an impact on the Company's results of operations for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001.

    Research and development and selling, general and administrative expenses peaked in the quarter ended June 30, 1999 primarily due to
$3.0 million in employee compensation and benefits expenses from a $7.0 million first quarter pre-tax gain. This pre-tax gain derived from the
sale of an investment related to a minority equity investment in IC Works, Inc. included in other income. In April 1999, the Company received
in excess of 1.1 million shares of common stock in Cypress Semiconductor, Inc. in exchange for its investment in IC Works, Inc. due to the
merger of Cypress Semiconductor, Inc. and IC Works, Inc. The Company sold this stock during the first and fourth quarters of fiscal 2000,
resulting in a pre-tax gain of $12.0 million.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

    Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments increased to $401.0 million at March 31, 2001 from $380.2 million at March 21,
2000. During fiscal 2001, operating activities provided $48.6 million in cash. Net income of $28.4 million included non-cash charges of
$3.9 million of depreciation and $22.6 million of tax benefit from disqualifying dispositions from the exercise of stock options. The Company
has a credit facility agreement with a domestic bank under which it may execute up to $15.0 million in foreign currency transactions. At
March 31, 2001, the Company had no foreign currency contracts outstanding.

    The Company's investing activities included the maturity and reinvestment of both short-term and long-term investments. Net capital and
other asset expenditures during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 totaled $4.3 million including purchases of computer equipment and
software used for product development.

    During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, the Company repurchased 245,000 shares of the Company's common stock for $4.6 million
and received $12.2 million from the issuance of 1,801,689 common stock shares upon the exercise of stock options under the Company's
stock option plans and the purchase of common stock shares under the Company's employee stock purchase plan.

    The Company has no material firm capital commitments.

    The Company anticipates it will continue to finance its operations with cash flows from operations, existing cash and investment balances,
and some combination of long-term debt and/or lease financing and additional sales of equity securities. The combination and sources of
capital will be determined by management based on needs and prevailing market conditions. The Company believes that its cash and cash
equivalents, short-term investments, long-term investments and cash flows from operations will be sufficient to satisfy working capital
requirements and capital equipment needs for at least the next 12 months. From time to time, the Company evaluates potential acquisitions and
equity investments complementary to its design expertise and market strategy, including investments in wafer fabrication foundries. To the
extent that the Company pursues or positions itself to pursue these transactions, the Company could choose to seek additional equity or debt
financing. There can be no assurance that additional financing could be obtained on terms acceptable to us. The sale of additional equity or
convertible debt could result in dilution to its stockholders.
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Financial Outlook for Fiscal Year 2002

    The communications equipment sector is continuing to experience softening in demand resulting from an inventory build-up and uncertainty
of future capital spending by telecommunications service providers. Exar continues to experience ongoing pressure on its bookings and
backlog, which has negatively impacted, and may continue to impact Exar's results of operations.

    Several of the Company's customers are experiencing a slowdown in product demand due to poor visibility at their clients, particularly the
telecommunications service providers. Many of these large carriers or service providers have announced plans to reduce or delay capital
expenditures. Such factors, coupled with the current macroeconomic condition in the United States, have decreased the demand for
semiconductor components at a significant number of the Company's customers, many of whom have announced significant inventories and
declines in expected future financial results.



    The Company expects that such decrease in demand will negatively impact its revenues and gross profit for at least a significant portion of
the fiscal year ending March 31, 2002. The Company has taken and will continue to take actions to control costs and reduce operating
expenses while maintaining its focus on developing and marketing new broadband transmission products.
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RISK FACTORS 

    The Company is subject to a number of risks. The following risks and other information in this Report should be considered carefully
before investing in Exar.

The Company's operating results fluctuate significantly because of a number of factors, many of which are beyond the Company's
control.

    The Company's operating results fluctuate significantly. Some of the factors that affect the Company's quarterly and annual results, many of
which are beyond the Company's control and difficult to predict, are:

•
the reduction, rescheduling or cancellation of orders by customers; 

•
fluctuations in the timing and amount of customer requests for product shipments; 

•
fluctuations in the manufacturing output, yields and inventory levels of the Company's suppliers; 

•
changes in the mix of products that the Company's customers purchase; 

•
the Company's ability to introduce new products on a timely basis; 

•
the announcement or introduction of products by the Company's competitors; 

•
the availability of third party foundry capacity and raw materials; 

•
competitive pressures on selling prices; 

•
the amounts and timing of costs associated with product warranties and returns; 

•
the amounts and timing of investments in research and development; 

•
market acceptance of the Company's products; 

•
costs associated with acquisitions and the integration of acquired operations; 

•
the ability of the Company's customers to obtain components from their other suppliers; 

•
general conditions in the communications and semiconductor industries; 

•
fluctuations in interest rates; and 

•
general economic conditions.

The Company's markets are subject to rapid technological change; therefore, the Company's success depends on its ability to
develop and introduce new products.

    The markets for the Company's products are characterized by:



•
rapidly changing technologies; 

•
evolving and competing industry standards; 

•
changing customer needs; 

•
frequent new product introductions and enhancements; 

•
increased integration with other functions; and 

•
rapid product obsolescence.

    To develop new products for the Company's target markets, the Company must develop, gain access to and use leading technologies in a
cost-effective and timely manner and continue to expand its technical and design expertise. In addition, the Company must have its products
designed into its

24

customers' future products and maintain close working relationships with key customers in order to develop new products that meet their
changing needs.

    In addition, products for communications applications are based on continually evolving industry standards. The Company's ability to
compete will depend on its ability to identify and ensure compliance with these industry standards. As a result, the Company could be required
to invest significant time and effort and to incur significant expense to redesign its products to ensure compliance with relevant standards.

    The Company cannot assure that it will be able to identify new product opportunities successfully, develop and bring to market new
products, achieve design wins or respond effectively to new technological changes or product announcements by its competitors. In addition,
the Company may not be successful in developing or using new technologies or in developing new products or product enhancements that
achieve market acceptance. The Company's pursuit of necessary technological advances may require substantial time and expense. Failure in
any of these areas could harm its operating results.

The markets in which the Company participates are intensely competitive.

    The Company's target markets are intensely competitive. The Company's ability to compete successfully in its target markets depends on the
following factors:

•
designing new products that implement new technologies; 

•
subcontracting the manufacture of new products and delivering them in a timely manner; 

•
product quality and reliability; 

•
technical support and service; 

•
timely product introduction; 

•
product performance; 

•
product features; 

•
price; 

•
end-user acceptance of the Company's customers' products; 

•
compliance with evolving standards; and 



compliance with evolving standards; and 

•
market acceptance of competitors' products.

    In addition, the Company's competitors or customers may offer new products based on new technologies, industry standards or end-user or
customer requirements, including products that have the potential to replace or provide lower-cost or higher-performance alternatives to its
products. The introduction of new products by the Company's competitors or customers could render the Company's existing and future
products obsolete or unmarketable. In addition, the Company's competitors and customers may introduce products that integrate the functions
performed by its ICs on a single IC, thus eliminating the need for the Company's products.

    Because the IC markets are highly fragmented, the Company generally encounters different competitors in its various market areas.
Competitors with respect to the Company's communications products include Conexant Systems Inc., PMC-Sierra, Inc. and TranSwitch
Corporation. In addition, the expansion of the Company's communications product portfolio may in the future bring it into competition with
other established communications IC companies, such as Applied Micro Circuits Corp. and Vitesse Semiconductor Corporation. Competitors
in the Company's other markets include Analog Devices Inc., Philips Electronics and Texas Instruments Inc. Many of the Company's
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competitors have greater financial, technical and management resources than the Company does. Some of these competitors may be able to sell
their products at prices below which it would be profitable for the Company to sell its products.

If the Company is unable to further penetrate the markets for communications ICs, or if these markets fail to grow as expected, its
revenues could stop growing and may decline.

    A significant portion of the Company's revenues in recent periods has been, and is expected to continue to be, derived from sales of
communications ICs, particularly products based on the T/E carrier and ATM transmission standards. In order for the Company to be
successful, it must continue to penetrate these markets. Furthermore, if these markets fail to grow as expected, the Company's business could
be harmed.

The Company's future success depends in part on the continued service of its key engineering and management personnel and its
ability to identify, hire and retain additional personnel.

    The Company's future success depends, in part, on the continued service of its key design engineering, sales, marketing and executive
personnel and its ability to identify, hire and retain additional personnel.

    The Company may not be able to continue to attract and retain engineers or other qualified personnel necessary for the development of its
business or to replace engineers or other qualified personnel who may leave the Company. There is intense competition, particularly in Silicon
Valley, where the Company's headquarters are located, for qualified personnel in the semiconductor industry, in particular the highly skilled
design, process, software application support, and test engineers involved in the development of new communications ICs. The Company's
anticipated growth is expected to place increased demands on its resources and will likely require the addition of new management personnel
and the development of additional expertise by existing management personnel. Loss of the services of, or failure to recruit key design
engineers or other technical and management personnel, could harm the Company's business.

The Company depends on third party foundries to manufacture its ICs.

    The Company does not own or operate a semiconductor fabrication facility. Most of its products are based on CMOS processes. Although
two foundries manufacture its products based on CMOS processes, most are manufactured at a single foundry. In addition, one foundry
manufactures most of the Company's BiCMOS products. The Company does not have long-term wafer supply agreements with its CMOS
foundries that guarantee wafer or product quantities, prices, delivery or lead times, as its CMOS foundries manufacture its products on a
purchase order basis. The Company provides these foundries with rolling forecasts of its production requirements; however, the ability of
each foundry to provide wafers to the Company is limited by the foundry's available capacity. Therefore, the Company's CMOS foundries
could choose to prioritize capacity for other customers or reduce or eliminate deliveries to it on short notice. Accordingly, the Company cannot
be certain that these foundries will allocate sufficient capacity to satisfy its requirements. In addition, the Company cannot be certain that it will
continue to do business with its foundries on terms as favorable as its current terms. Other significant risks associated with the Company's
reliance on third-party foundries include:

•
the lack of control over delivery schedules; 

•
the unavailability of, or delays in obtaining access to, key process technologies; 

•
limited control over quality assurance, manufacturing yields and production costs; and 

•
potential misappropriation of the Company's intellectual property.
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    The Company could experience a substantial delay or interruption in the shipment of its products or an increase in its costs due to the
following:

•
a sudden demand for semiconductor devices; 

•
a manufacturing disruption experienced by one or more of the Company's foundries or sudden reduction or elimination of any
existing source or sources of semiconductor devices; 

•
time required to identify or qualify alternative manufacturing sources for existing or new products; or 

•
failure of the Company's suppliers to obtain the raw materials and equipment used in the production of its ICs.

If the Company's foundries discontinue the manufacturing processes needed to meet its demands, or fail to upgrade the
technologies needed to manufacture its products, the Company may face production delays.

    The Company's wafer and product requirements typically represent a small portion of the total production of the foundries that manufacture
its products. As a result, the Company is subject to the risk that a foundry will cease production on an older or lower-volume process that it
uses to produce parts supplied to the Company. Additionally, the Company cannot be certain its foundries will continue to devote resources to
the production of its products or continue to advance the process design technologies on which the manufacturing of the Company's products
is based. Each of these events could increase the Company's costs and harm its ability to deliver its products on time.

The Company expects that revenues currently derived from non-communications products will decline in future periods, and its
business will be harmed if its communications products fail to compensate for this decline.

    The Company does not intend to increase its funding of development efforts relating to its video and imaging and other non-
communications products, and as a result, revenues from these products may decline in future periods. In addition, the markets for these
products are subject to extreme price competition, and the Company may not be able to reduce its costs in response to declining average selling
prices. Even if the Company reduces its costs, its customers in these markets may not purchase these products. Moreover, these markets may
decrease in size in the future. If the Company's communications products fail to compensate for any revenue shortfall, its business could be
harmed.

The Company's dependence on third-party subcontractors to assemble and test its products subjects it to a number of risks,
including an inadequate supply of products and higher materials costs.

    The Company depends on independent subcontractors for the assembly and testing of its products. The Company's reliance on these
subcontractors involves the following significant risks:

•
reduced control over delivery schedules and quality; 

•
the potential lack of adequate capacity during periods of excess demand; 

•
difficulties selecting and integrating new subcontractors; 

•
limited warranties on products supplied to the Company; 

•
potential increases in prices due to capacity shortages and other factors; and 

•
potential misappropriation of the Company's intellectual property.

    These risks may lead to delayed product delivery or increased costs, which would harm the Company's profitability and customer
relationships.
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To secure foundry capacity, the Company may be required to enter into financial and other arrangements with foundries, and such
agreements may result in the dilution of its earnings or the ownership of its stockholders or otherwise harm its operating results.

    Allocation of a foundry's manufacturing capacity may be influenced by a customer's size or the existence of a long-term agreement with the
foundry. To address foundry capacity constraints, the Company and other semiconductor companies that rely on third-party foundries have
utilized various arrangements, including equity investments in or loans to foundries in exchange for guaranteed production capacity, joint



utilized various arrangements, including equity investments in or loans to foundries in exchange for guaranteed production capacity, joint
ventures to own and operate foundries, or "take or pay" contracts that commit a company to purchase specified quantities of wafers over
extended periods. While the Company is not currently a party to any of these arrangements, it may decide to enter into these arrangements in
the future. The Company cannot be sure, however, that these arrangements will be available to it on acceptable terms, if at all. Any of these
arrangements could require the Company to commit substantial capital and, accordingly, could require it to obtain additional debt or equity
financing. This could result in the dilution of its earnings or the ownership of its stockholders or otherwise harm its operating results.

The Company's reliance upon foreign suppliers exposes it to risks associated with international operations.

    The Company uses semiconductor wafer foundries and assembly and test subcontractors throughout Asia for most of its products. The
Company's dependence on these subcontractors involves the following substantial risks:

•
political and economic instability; 

•
disruption to air transportation from Asia; 

•
embargo affecting the availability of raw materials, equipment or services; 

•
changes in tax laws, tariffs and freight rates; and 

•
compliance with local or foreign regulatory requirements.

    These risks may lead to delayed product delivery or increased costs, which would harm the Company's profitability and customer
relationships.

The Company's reliance on foreign customers could cause fluctuations in its operating results.

    International sales accounted for 32.4% of net sales for fiscal year 2001. International sales may account for an increasing portion of the
Company's revenues, which would subject it to the following risks:

•
changes in regulatory requirements; 

•
tariffs and other barriers; 

•
timing and availability of export licenses; 

•
political and economic instability; 

•
difficulties in accounts receivable collections; 

•
difficulties in staffing and managing foreign subsidiary and branch operations; 

•
difficulties in managing distributors; 

•
difficulties in obtaining governmental approvals for communications and other products; 

•
limited intellectual property protection;
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•
foreign currency exchange fluctuations; 

•
the burden of complying with and the risk of violating a wide variety of complex foreign laws and treaties; and 

•
potentially adverse tax consequences.



    In addition, because sales of the Company's products have been denominated to date primarily in United States Dollars, increases in the
value of the United States Dollar could increase the relative price of the Company's products so that they become more expensive to customers
in the local currency of a particular country. Future international activity may result in increased foreign currency denominated sales.
Furthermore, because some of the Company's customer purchase orders and agreements are governed by foreign laws, the Company may be
limited in its ability to enforce its rights under these agreements and to collect damages, if awarded.

The Company relies on its distributors and sales representatives to sell many of its products.

    The Company sells many of its products through distributors and sales representatives. The Company's distributors and sales
representatives could reduce or discontinue sales of its products. They may not devote the resources necessary to sell the Company's products
in the volumes and within the time frames that it expects. In addition, the Company depends upon the continued viability and financial
resources of these distributors and sales representatives, some of which are small organizations with limited working capital. These
distributors and sales representatives, in turn, depend substantially on general economic conditions and conditions within the semiconductor
industry. The Company believes that its success will continue to depend upon these distributors and sales representatives. If some or all of the
Company's distributors and sales representatives experience financial difficulties, or otherwise become unable or unwilling to promote and sell
its products, the Company's business could be harmed.

Because the Company's communications ICs typically have lengthy sales cycles, the Company may experience substantial delays
between incurring expenses related to research and development and the generation of sales revenue.

    Due to the communications IC product cycle, it usually takes the Company more than 12 months to realize volume shipments after it first
contacts a customer. The Company first works with customers to achieve a design win, which may take nine months or longer. The
Company's customers then complete the design, testing and evaluation process and begin to ramp up production, a period which typically lasts
an additional three months or longer. As a result, a significant period of time may elapse between the Company's research and development
efforts and its realization of revenue, if any, from volume purchasing of the Company's communications products by its customers.

The Company's backlog may not result in future revenue.

    Due to possible customer changes in delivery schedules and quantities actually purchased, cancellations of orders, distributor returns or
price reductions, the Company's backlog at any particular date is not necessarily indicative of actual sales for any succeeding period. A
reduction of backlog during any particular period, or the failure of the Company's backlog to result in future revenue, could harm the
Company's business.
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The Company's operating expenses are relatively fixed, and it may order materials in advance of anticipated customer demand.
Therefore, the Company has limited ability to reduce expenses quickly in response to any revenue shortfalls.

    The Company's operating expenses are relatively fixed, and, therefore, it has limited ability to reduce expenses quickly in response to any
revenue shortfalls. Consequently, the Company's operating results will be harmed if its revenues do not meet its revenue projections. The
Company may experience revenue shortfalls for the following reasons:

•
a significant reduction in customer demand; 

•
significant pricing pressures that occur because of declines in average selling prices over the life of a product; 

•
sudden shortages of raw materials or fabrication, test or assembly capacity constraints that lead the Company's suppliers to
allocate available supplies or capacity to other customers and, in turn, harm the Company's ability to meet its sales obligations;
and 

•
the reduction, rescheduling or cancellation of customer orders.

    In addition, the Company typically plans its production and inventory levels based on internal forecasts of customer demand, which is
highly unpredictable and can fluctuate substantially. From time to time, in response to anticipated long lead times to obtain inventory and
materials from the Company's outside suppliers and foundries, it may order materials in advance of anticipated customer demand. This
advance ordering may result in excess inventory levels or unanticipated inventory write-downs if expected orders fail to materialize.

Periods of rapid growth and expansion could place a significant strain on the Company's limited personnel and other resources.

    To manage the Company's possible future growth effectively, the Company will be required to continue to improve its operational, financial
and management systems and to successfully hire, train, motivate and manage its employees. In addition, the integration of past and future
potential acquisitions and the evolution of the Company's business plan will require significant additional management, technical and
administrative resources. The Company cannot be certain that it will be able to manage the growth and evolution of its current business
effectively.

Exar has in the past and may in the future make acquisitions, which will involve numerous risks. Exar cannot assure that it will be



able to address these risks successfully without substantial expense, delay or other operational or financial problems.

    The risks involved with acquisitions include:

•
diversion of management's attention; 

•
failure to retain key personnel; 

•
amortization of acquired intangible assets; 

•
customer dissatisfaction or performance problems with an acquired company; 

•
the cost associated with acquisitions and the integration of acquired operations; and 

•
assumption of known or unknown liabilities or other unanticipated events or circumstances.

    The Company cannot assure that it will be able to address these risks successfully without substantial expense, delay or other operational or
financial problems.
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The Company may not be able to protect its intellectual property rights adequately.

    The Company's ability to compete is affected by its ability to protect its intellectual property rights. The Company relies on a combination of
patents, trademarks, copyrights, mask work registrations, trade secrets, confidentiality procedures and non-disclosure and licensing
arrangements to protect its intellectual property rights. Despite these efforts, the Company cannot be certain that the steps it takes to protect its
proprietary information will be adequate to prevent misappropriation of the Company's technology, or that its competitors will not
independently develop technology that is substantially similar or superior to the Company's technology.

    More specifically, the Company cannot be sure that its pending patent applications or any future applications will be approved, or that any
issued patents will provide it with competitive advantages or will not be challenged by third parties. Nor can the Company be sure that, if
challenged, the Company's patents will be found to be valid or enforceable, or that the patents of others will not have an adverse effect on the
Company's ability to do business. Furthermore, others may independently develop similar products or processes, duplicate the Company's
products or processes or design around any patents that may be issued to it.

The Company could be harmed by litigation involving patents and other intellectual property rights.

    As a general matter, the semiconductor industry is characterized by substantial litigation regarding patent and other intellectual property
rights. The Company may be accused of infringing the intellectual property rights of third parties. Furthermore, the Company has certain
indemnification obligations to customers with respect to the infringement of third-party intellectual property rights by its products. The
Company cannot be certain that infringement claims by third parties or claims for indemnification by customers or end users of its products
resulting from infringement claims will not be asserted in the future or that such assertions, if proven to be true, will not harm its business.

    Any litigation relating to the intellectual property rights of third parties, whether or not determined in the Company's favor or settled by the
Company, would at a minimum be costly and could divert the efforts and attention of its management and technical personnel. In the event of
any adverse ruling in any such litigation, the Company could be required to pay substantial damages, cease the manufacturing, use and sale of
infringing products, discontinue the use of certain processes or obtain a license under the intellectual property rights of the third party claiming
infringement. A license might not be available on reasonable terms, or at all.

Earthquakes and other natural disasters may damage the Company's facilities or those of its suppliers.

    The Company's corporate headquarters in Fremont, California are located near major earthquake faults that have experienced seismic
activity. In addition, some of its suppliers are located near fault lines. In the event of a major earthquake or other natural disaster near its
headquarters, the Company's operations could be harmed. Similarly, a major earthquake or other natural disaster near one or more of the
Company's major suppliers, like the one that occurred in Taiwan in September 1999, could disrupt the operations of those suppliers, which
could limit the supply of the Company's products and harm its business.

The Company relies on continuous power supply to conduct its operations.

    The Company relies on a continuous power supply to conduct its business from its headquarters located in California. Currently, California
is experiencing energy shortages which have resulted in rolling blackouts throughout the state. These rolling blackouts are expected to
continue in the future and could disrupt the Company's operations, research and development and other critical functions. Such disruption in
power supply may temporarily suspend operations in its headquarters. This
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disruption may impede the Company's ability to continue operations, which could delay the introduction of new products, hinder the
Company's sales efforts, impede the Company's ability to retain existing customers and to obtain new customers, which could have a negative
impact on the Company and its results of operations.

The Company's stock price is volatile.

    The market price of the Company's common stock has fluctuated significantly to date. In the future, the market price of its common stock
could be subject to significant fluctuations due to:

•
the Company's anticipated or actual operating results; 

•
announcements or introductions of new products; 

•
technological innovations by the Company or its competitors; 

•
product delays or setbacks by the Company, its customers or its competitors: 

•
conditions in the communications and semiconductor markets; 

•
the commencement of litigation; 

•
changes in estimates of the Company's performance by securities analysts; 

•
announcements of merger or acquisition transactions; and 

•
general economic and market conditions.

    In addition, the stock market in recent years has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have affected the market prices of
many high technology companies, including semiconductor companies, and that have often been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating
performance of companies. These fluctuations may harm the market price of the Company's common stock.

The anti-takeover provisions of the Company's certificate of incorporation and of the Delaware General Corporation Law may
delay, defer or prevent a change of control.

    The Company's Board of Directors has the authority to issue up to 2,250,000 shares of preferred stock and to determine the price, rights,
preferences and privileges and restrictions, including voting rights, of those shares without any further vote or action by its stockholders. The
rights of the holders of common stock will be subject to, and may be harmed by, the rights of the holders of any shares of preferred stock that
may be issued in the future. The issuance of preferred stock may delay, defer or prevent a change in control, as the terms of the preferred stock
that might be issued could potentially prohibit the Company's consummation of any merger, reorganization, sale of substantially all of its
assets, liquidation or other extraordinary corporate transaction without the approval of the holders of the outstanding shares of preferred stock.
In addition, the issuance of preferred stock could have a dilutive effect on the Company's stockholders. The Company's stockholders must
give 120 days advance notice prior to the relevant meeting to nominate a candidate for director or present a proposal to the Company's
stockholders at a meeting. These notice requirements could inhibit a takeover by delaying stockholder action. The Company has in place a
stockholder right or "poison pill" plan that may trigger its stockholder rights plan in the event its Board of Directors does not agree to an
acquisition proposal. The rights plan may make it more difficult and costly to acquire the Company. The Delaware anti-takeover law restricts
business combinations with some stockholders once the stockholder acquires 15% or more of the Company's common stock. The Delaware
statute makes it more difficult for the Company to be acquired without the consent of its Board of Directors and management.
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

    In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS")
No.133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" and in June 2000 issued "Accounting for Certain Derivative
Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133" No. 138. SFAS No. 133, as amended by SFAS
No. 138, requires companies to recognize all derivatives as assets or liabilities at their fair value. Gains or losses resulting from changes in the
value of those derivatives would be accounted for depending on the use of the derivative and whether it qualifies for hedge accounting. The
Company is required to adopt SFAS No. 133, as amended by SFAS No. 138, beginning April 1, 2001. The adoption of this accounting
standard has not and will not have a material impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations.



    In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") released Staff Accounting Bulletin ("SAB") No. 101, "Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements." In March 2000, the SEC issued SAB No. 101A and in June 2000, issued SAB No. 101B. An
additional document was issued in October 2000 which responded to frequently asked questions regarding accounting standards related to
revenue recognition and SAB No. 101. The Company has adopted SAB No. 101, as amended, in the third quarter of fiscal 2001. The
adoption of this accounting guidance did not have a material impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations.

    In March 2000, FASB issued Interpretation No. 44, "Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation—An
Interpretation of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25", clarifying the guidance for certain stock compensation issues, including the
definition of an employee, the treatment of the acceleration of stock options and the accounting treatment for options assumed in business
combinations. FIN 44 became effective July 1, 2000, but applicable to certain transactions dating back to December 1998. The adoption of
FIN 44 did not have a significant impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations.

Item 7A. Quantitative And Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 

    Foreign Currency Fluctuations.  The Company is exposed to foreign currency fluctuations primarily through its foreign operations. This
exposure is the result of the foreign operating expenses being denominated in foreign currency. Operational currency requirements are
typically forecasted for a three month period. If there is a need to hedge this risk, the Company will enter into transactions to purchase
currency in the open market or enter into forward currency exchange contracts which are currently available under its bank lines of credit.
While it is expected that this method of hedging foreign currency risk will be utilized in the future, the hedging methodology and/or usage may
be changed to manage exposure to foreign currency fluctuations.

    If the Company's foreign operations forecasts are overstated or understated during periods of currency volatility, the Company could
experience unanticipated currency gains or losses. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, the Company did not have significant foreign
currency denominated net assets or net liabilities positions, and had no foreign currency contracts outstanding.

    Interest Rate Sensitivity.  The Company maintains investment portfolio holdings of various issuers, types, and maturity dates with various
banks and investment banking institutions. The market value of these investments on any given day during the investment term may vary as a
result of market interest rate fluctuations. This exposure is not hedged because a hypothetical 10% movement in interest rates during the
investment term would not likely have a material impact on investment income. The actual impact on investment income in the future may
differ materially from this analysis, depending on actual balances and changes in the timing and the amount of interest rate movements.
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    Both short-term and long-term investments are classified as "available-for-sale" securities and the cost of securities sold is based on the
specific identification method. At March 31, 2001, short-term investments consisted of auction rate securities, government and corporate
securities of $11.5 million and long-term investments consisted of government and corporate securities of $31.3 million. At March 31, 2001,
the difference between the fair market value and the underlying cost of such investments was attributable to the unrealized gain of $415,000.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

    Independent Auditors' Report

Board of Directors and Stockholders

Exar Corporation:

    We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Exar Corporation and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2001 and 2000, and
the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the
three year period ended March 31, 2001. Our audits also included the consolidated financial statement schedule listed in Item 14.(a)2. These
financial statements and the financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

    We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

    In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Exar Corporation and
its subsidiaries as of March 31, 2001 and 2000 and the results of their operations and their cash flows, for each of the years in the three year
period ended March 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our
opinion, such consolidated financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a
whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
San Jose, California



San Jose, California
April 23, 2001
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EXAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

MARCH 31, 2001 AND 2000 (In thousands, except share amounts)

  

2001

 

2000

ASSETS       
CURRENT ASSETS:       
 Cash and equivalents  $ 389,522 $ 377,158
 Short-term investments   11,522  3,000
 Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $1,664 and $1,869   11,433  11,550
 Inventories   9,717  8,299
 Prepaid expenses and other   3,039  3,012
 Deferred income taxes   2,414  3,369
   
  Total current assets   427,647  406,388
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT, Net   27,722  26,653
OTHER ASSETS   12,639  5,392
INVESTMENTS IN LONG TERM SECURITIES   31,340  —
   
TOTAL ASSETS  $ 499,348 $ 438,433
   
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY       
CURRENT LIABILITIES:       
 Accounts payable  $ 3,397 $ 3,497
 Accrued compensation and related benefits   8,593  7,060
 Accrued sales commissions   1,443  1,096
 Other accrued expenses   1,442  1,165
   
  Total current liabilities   14,875  12,818
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (see Note 11)       
LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS   476  574
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:       

 
Preferred stock; $.0001 par value; 2,250,000 shares authorized; no shares
outstanding   —  —

 
Common stock; $.0001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 38,967,639 and
37,165,950 shares issued   387,393  352,614

 Accumulated other comprehensive income   542  188
 Retained earnings   100,673  72,239
 Treasury stock; 245,000 and zero shares of common stock at cost   (4,611)  —
   
  Total stockholders' equity   483,997  425,041
   
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY  $ 499,348 $ 438,433
   

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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EXAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2001, 2000 AND 1999

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2001 2000 1999



     

NET SALES  $ 112,924 $ 78,554 $ 71,868 
COST AND EXPENSES:           
 Cost of sales   45,968  34,152  33,386 
 Research and development   23,840  18,568  14,842 
 Selling, general and administrative   24,970  21,384  18,217 
 Goodwill amortization   —  504  641 
 Restructuring and other charges   —  —  731 
     
  Total costs and expenses   94,778  74,608  67,817 
     
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS   18,146  3,946  4,051 
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):           
 Interest income   26,145  6,152  4,156 
 Interest expense   —  —  (65)
 Gain on sale of investment   —  12,018  — 
 Other, net   220  16  622 
     
  Total other income, net   26,365  18,186  4,713 
     
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES   44,511  22,132  8,764 
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES   16,077  7,017  3,340 
     
NET INCOME  $ 28,434 $ 15,115 $ 5,424 
     
NET INCOME PER SHARE:           
BASIC  $ 0.75 $ 0.52 $ 0.19 
     
DILUTED  $ 0.66 $ 0.47 $ 0.19 
     
SHARES USED IN COMPUTATION OF           
NET INCOME PER SHARE:           
BASIC   38,097  28,953  28,176 
     
DILUTED   42,849  32,394  28,800 
     

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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EXAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2001, 2000 AND 1999
(In thousands, except share amounts)

 

 

Common Stock

 

Treasury Stock   

 

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

     

 

 

Retained
Earnings

 

Total
Stockholders'

Equity

 

Comprehensive
Income

 

  

Shares

 

Amount

 

Shares

 

Amount

 
BALANCES, March 31, 1998  31,425,714 $ 86,091 (2,933,298) $ (14,145) $ 51,700 $ 83 $ 123,729    
Comprehensive income:                        

 Net income             5,424     5,424 $ 5,424 
Other comprehensive income:                        

 Foreign currency translation adjustments                121  121  121 
                      

Comprehensive income                     $ 5,545 
                      

Exercise of stock options  280,952  1,330             1,330    
Income tax benefit from stock option transactions     312             312    
Stock issued under Employee Stock Participation
Plan  254,910  1,175             1,175    
Acquisition of treasury stock       (1,081,500)  (6,334)        (6,334)    
            

BALANCES, March 31, 1999  31,961,576  88,908 (4,014,798)  (20,479)  57,124  204  125,757    



Comprehensive income:                        

 Net income             15,115     15,115 $ 15,115 
Other comprehensive income:                        

 Foreign currency translation adjustments                (16)  (16)  (16)
                      

Comprehensive income                     $ 15,099 
                      

Exercise of stock options  2,519,554  14,718             14,718    
Income tax benefit from stock option transactions     10,838             10,838    
Stock issued under Employee Stock Participation
Plan  154,518  1,264             1,264    
Acquisition of treasury stock       (354,900)  (3,392)        (3,392)    
Stock issued in connection with follow-on offering,
net of related costs  2,530,302  236,886 4,369,698  23,871        260,757    
            

BALANCES, March 31, 2000  37,165,950  352,614 —  —  72,239  188  425,041    
Comprehensive income:                        

 Net income             28,434     28,434 $ 28,434 
Other comprehensive income:                        

 Foreign currency translation adjustments                (61)  (61)  (61)

 Unrealized Gain/Loss on Investments                415  415  415 
                      

Comprehensive income                     $ 28,788 
                      

Exercise of stock options  1,737,828  10,641             10,641    
Income tax benefit from stock option transactions     22,569             22,569    
Stock issued under Employee Stock Participation
Plan  63,861  1,569             1,569    
Acquisition of treasury stock       (245,000)  (4,611)        (4,611)    
            

BALANCES, March 31, 2001  38,967,639 $ 387,393 (245,000) $ (4,611) $ 100,673 $ 542 $ 483,997    
            

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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EXAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2001, 2000 AND 1999

(In thousands)

  

2001

 

2000

 

1999

 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:           
 Net income  $ 28,434 $ 15,115 $ 5,424 
 Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities:           
  Depreciation and amortization   3,917  4,038  4,762 
  Tax benefit from disqualifying disposition   22,569  10,838  312 
  Provision for doubtful accounts and sales returns   (205)  (178)  (1,364)
  Deferred income taxes   (6,904)  (4,071)  1,510 
  Gain on sale of investment   —  (12,018)  — 
  Gain on sale of equipment   —  (584)  (289)
  Changes in operating assets and liabilities:           
   Accounts receivable   322  (638)  6,678 
   Inventories   (1,418)  (2,426)  908 
   Prepaid expenses and other   (27)  (937)  319 
   Accounts payable   (100)  (768)  (3,269)
   Accrued compensation and related benefits   1,533  3,500  (5,004)
   Accrued sales commissions   347  43  (54)
   Other accrued expenses   179  (774)  (319)
   Income taxes payable   —  (1,601)  1,188 
     
    Net cash provided by operating activities   48,647  9,539  10,802 
     
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:           
 



 Purchases of equipment and leasehold improvements   (4,986)  (2,503)  (5,335)
 Proceeds from disposition of equipment and leasehold improvements   —  658  977 
 Purchases of short-term investments   (24,853)  (24,340)  (137)
 Proceeds from maturities of short-term investments   16,331  23,340  1,277 
 Purchases of long-term investments   (45,115)  —  — 
 Proceeds from maturities of long-term investments   14,190  —  — 
 Proceeds from sale of investment   —  18,095  — 
 Other assets   612  (372)  (889)
     
    Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities   (43,821)  14,878  (4,107)
     
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:           
 Proceeds from issuance of common stock   12,210  276,739  2,505 
 Acquisition of treasury stock   (4,611)  (3,392)  (6,334)
     
    Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities   7,599  273,347  (3,829)
     
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH   (61)  (16)  121 
     
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS   12,364  297,748  2,987 
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR   377,158  79,410  76,423 
     
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR  $ 389,522 $ 377,158 $ 79,410 
     
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:           
 Cash paid for income taxes  $ 244 $ 1,051 $ 633 
     
 Cash paid for interest  $ — $ 725 $ — 
     

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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EXAR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2001, 2000 AND 1999

1. BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

    Description of Business—Exar Corporation ("Exar" or the "Company") designs, develops and markets high-performance, high-bandwidth
mixed-signal (analog and digital) silicon solutions for the worldwide communications infrastructure. The Company uses its mixed-signal
design expertise, system-level knowledge and standard CMOS process technologies which provides physical interface and access control
solutions for WAN communications equipment. The Company also offers ICs based on the T/E carrier, ATM and SONET/SDH transmission
standards. Additionally, Exar provides solutions for the serial communications market as well as the video and imaging markets. Exar's largest
customers include Alcatel, Cisco, Hewlett-Packard, Lucent, Nokia and Tellabs.

    Use of Management Estimates—The preparation of the Company's consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, requires the use of management estimates and assumptions. These estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported results of operations during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from estimates.

    Principles of Consolidation—The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Exar and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

    Basis of Presentation—All share amounts and per share calculations in the accompanying consolidated financial statements give effect to
the three-for-two stock split effected on February 15, 2000 and to the two-for-one stock split effected on October 19, 2000.

    Cash and Equivalents—The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, when
purchased, to be cash equivalents.

    Investments—The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of ninety days or less to be cash equivalents.
All investments with maturities in excess of ninety days but less than twelve months from the date of the balance sheet are considered short-
term investments. Long-term investments, which primarily consist of government, bank and corporate obligations, have maturities in excess of



term investments. Long-term investments, which primarily consist of government, bank and corporate obligations, have maturities in excess of
one year from the date of the balance sheet. The Company accounts for its investments under provisions of SFAS No. 115, "Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Securities." Both short-term and long-term investments are classified as "available-for-sale" and the cost of
the securities sold is based on the specific identification method. The Company recognizes
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unrealized gains and losses and is reported in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The following table summarizes the
Company's investments as of March 31, 2001 and 2000:

  

Original
Cost

 

Unrealized
Gain

(Loss)

 

Market
Value

  

(In thousands)

US government and agency obligations  $ 13,392 $ 206 $ 13,598
Municipal securities   26,943  7  26,950
Corporate bonds and commercial paper   123,063  401  123,464
Asset-backed and collateralized obligations   267,822  65  267,887
    
 Total at March 31, 2001   431,220  679  431,899

As reported:          
Cash equivalents        $ 389,037
Short-term investments         11,522
Long-term investments         31,340
        
 Total at March 31, 2001         431,899

  

Original
Cost

 

Unrealized
Gain
(Loss)

 

Market
Value

  

(In thousands)

US government and agency obligations  $ 263,026 $ — $ 263,026
Corporate bonds and commercial paper   21,871  —  21,871
Asset-backed and collateralized obligations   92,050  —  92,050
    
 Total at March 31, 2000   376,947  —  376,947

As reported:          
Cash equivalents        $ 373,947
Short-term investments         3,000
Long-term investments         —
        
 Total at March 31, 2000         376,947

    Inventories—Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market.

    Property, Plant, and Equipment—Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation of plant and equipment are computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Computer software and computer equipment  3-6 years
Machinery and equipment  5-7 years
Buildings and fixtures  5-30 years

    Long-Lived Assets—Long-lived assets are evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The Company's policy is to review the recoverability of all long-lived assets based upon
undiscounted cash flows on an
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annual basis at a minimum, and in addition, whenever events or changes indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss would be recognized when the sum of the undiscounted future net cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset
and its eventual disposition is less than its carrying amount.



    Income Taxes—The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes," which
requires the asset and liability approach for financial accounting and reporting of income taxes. Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects
of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
income tax purposes.

    Revenue Recognition—The Company generally recognizes product revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery
has occurred, the fee is fixed and determinable and collectibility is probable. The Company's distributor agreements generally permit the return
of up to 10% of their purchases annually for purposes of stock rotation and also provide for credits to distributors in the event the Company
reduces the price of any product. The Company records an allowance, at the time of shipment, based on authorized and historical patterns of
returns, price protection and other concessions.

    Comprehensive Income—In 1999, the Company adopted SFAS No. 130, "Reporting Comprehensive Income," which requires an
enterprise to report, by major components and as a single total, the change in net assets during the period from nonowner sources.
Comprehensive income for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999 has been disclosed within the consolidated statements of
stockholders' equity and comprehensive income.

    Foreign Currency—The functional currency of each of the Company's foreign subsidiaries is the local currency of that country.
Accordingly, gains and losses from the translation of the financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries are included in stockholders' equity.
Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are included in other income. Net foreign currency transaction gains (losses)
were $(13,000), $(157,000) and $59,000 for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

    The Company enters into foreign currency exchange contracts from time-to-time to hedge certain currency exposures. These contracts are
executed with credit-worthy financial institutions and are denominated in currencies of major industrial nations. Gains and losses on these
contracts serve as hedges in that they offset fluctuations that might otherwise impact the Company's financial results. The Company is exposed
to credit-related losses in the event of nonperformance by the parties to its foreign currency exchange contracts. At March 31, 2001, and 2000,
there were no such foreign currency exchange contracts outstanding.

    Financial Instruments and Concentration of Credit Risk—Financial instruments potentially subjecting the Company to concentrations of
credit risk consist primarily of accounts receivable, cash, short-term investments and long-term investments. The majority of the Company's
sales are derived from manufacturers in the computer, communications and electronic imaging industries. The Company performs ongoing
credit evaluations of its customers and generally does not require collateral for sales on credit. The Company maintains reserves for potential
credit losses and such losses have been within management's expectations. The Company's policy is to place its cash and short-term
investments with
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high credit quality financial institutions and limit the amounts invested with any one financial institution or in any type of financial instrument.
The Company does not hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes.

    Fair Value of Financial Instruments—The estimated fair value of financial instruments have been determined by the Company, using
available market information and valuation methodology considered to be appropriate. However, considerable judgment is required in
interpreting market data to develop the estimates of fair value. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies could
have a material effect on estimated fair value amounts. The estimated fair value of the Company's financial instruments at March 31, 2001 and
2000 was not materially different from the values presented in the consolidated balance sheets.

    Reclassifications—Certain amounts in the 2000 and 1999 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.

2. INVENTORIES

    Inventories at March 31 consisted of the following:

  

2001

 

2000

  

(In thousands)

Work-in-process  $ 5,797 $ 5,064
Finished goods   3,920  3,235
   
Total  $ 9,717 $ 8,299
   

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

    Property, plant and equipment at March 31 consisted of the following:

  

2001

 

2000

 

  

(In thousands)

 

Land  $ 6,584 $ 6,584 



Land  $ 6,584 $ 6,584 
Building   13,433  13,433 
Machinery and equipment   39,722  35,254 
Leasehold improvements   55  68 
Construction in progress   31  — 
    
   59,825  55,339 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization   (31,857)  (28,686)
    
Total  $ 27,722 $ 26,653 
    

4. BORROWING ARRANGEMENTS

    The Company has a credit facility agreement with a domestic bank under which it may execute up to $15.0 million in foreign currency
transactions. At March 31, 2001, the Company had no foreign currency contracts outstanding.
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5. INCOME TAXES

    The provision for income taxes for the years ended March 31 consisted of the following:

  

2001

 

2000

 

1999

  

(In thousands)

Current:          
 Federal  $ 148 $ 91 $ 882
 State   264  159  636
 Foreign   —  —  —
    
   664  250  1,518
    
Deferred:          
 Federal   (8,011)  (3,624)  1,489
 State   1,107  (447)  21
 Foreign   —  —  —
    
   (6,904)  (4,071)  1,510
    
Charge in lieu of taxes attributable to employee stock plans   22,569  10,838  312
    
Total  $ 16,077 $ 7,017 $ 3,340
    

    Consolidated pretax income includes foreign income of $8,500 in 2001 and foreign losses of approximately $(28,000), and $(622,000), in
2000 and 1999, respectively. Undistributed earnings of the Company's foreign subsidiaries are considered to be indefinitely reinvested and,
accordingly no provision for federal and state income taxes have been provided thereon. Upon distribution of those earnings in the form of a
dividend or otherwise, the Company would be subject to both US income taxes (subject to an adjustment for foreign tax credits) and
withholding taxes payable to the various foreign countries. It is not practical to estimate the income tax liability that might be incurred on the
remittance of such earnings.

    Current net deferred tax assets at March 31, 2001 and 2000 were $2,414,000 and $3,369,000, respectively. Non-current net deferred tax
assets at March 31, 2001 and 2000 of $12,307,000 and $4,480,000, respectively, are included in deferred income taxes and other assets,
respectively, within the
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accompanying balance sheet. Significant components of the Company's net deferred tax asset at March 31, 2001 and 2000 are as follows:

  

2001

 

2000

 

  

(In thousands)

 

Deferred tax assets:        
 Reserves and accruals not currently deductible  $ 3,280 $ 3,903 
 Net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards   13,961  8,477 



 General business credits   4,731  2,024 
 State income taxes   —  8 
 Other   —  169 
    
  Total deferred tax assets   21,972  14,581 
    
Deferred tax liabilities:        
 Depreciation   (1,054)  (922)
 Other   (867)  (480)
    
  Total deferred tax liabilities   (1,921)  (1,402)
    
Valuation allowance   (5,330)  (5,330)
    
Net deferred tax assets  $ 14,721 $ 7,849 
    

    The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets relates to (i) the tax benefits of certain acquired net operating losses for which the utilization
is limited to the taxable income of the acquired subsidiary and (ii) state tax credits. The valuation allowance relates to the amount of such
benefits for which realization is not assured. During fiscal year 2001, the Company did not reverse any of its valuation allowances. During
fiscal 2000, the Company reversed valuation allowances of $4,094,000, primarily due to a change in the assessment of the realization of the
tax benefits of certain loss carryforwards.

    The Company has net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $15,307,000 for federal income tax purposes, which are available to
offset future taxable income through fiscal year 2013. The federal tax law includes provisions limiting the use of net operating loss
carryforwards in the event of certain changes in ownership, as defined. Consequently, the Company's ability to utilize certain of its acquired
net operating loss carryforwards is subject to an annual limitation.
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    The following summarizes differences between the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate to income before
income taxes and the provision for income taxes for each of the years ended March 31:

  

2001

 

2000

 

1999

 

  

(In thousands)

 

Income tax provision at statutory rate  $ 15,579 $ 7,746  3,067 
State income taxes, net of federal income           
 tax benefit   1,934  1,071  762 
Change in valuation allowance   (545)  (1,818)  (657)
Amortization of goodwill   —  176  224 
Tax-exempt interest income   (151)  (7)  (38)
Benefit of foreign sales corporation   —  —  (175)
Foreign (income) losses providing no benefit   (3)  48  261 
Tax credits   (705)  (200)  (200)
Other, net   (32)  1  96 
     
Total  $ 16,077 $ 7,017 $ 3,340 
     

6. NET INCOME PER SHARE

    SFAS 128 requires a dual presentation of basic and diluted EPS. Basic EPS excludes dilution and is computed by dividing net income by
the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if
securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock.

    A summary of the Company's EPS for each of the years ended March 31 is as follows

    (In thousands, except per share amounts):

  

2001

 

2000

 

1999

NET INCOME  $ 28,434 $ 15,115 $ 5,424
    
SHARES USED IN COMPUTATION:          
Weighted average common shares outstanding used in          
computation of basic net income per share   38,097  28,953  28,176



computation of basic net income per share   38,097  28,953  28,176
Dilutive effect of stock options   4,752  3,441  624
    
Shares used in computation of diluted net income per share   42,849  32,394  28,800
    
BASIC NET INCOME PER SHARE  $ 0.75 $ 0.52 $ 0.19
    
DILUTED NET INCOME PER SHARE  $ 0.66 $ 0.47 $ 0.19
    

    Options to purchase 3,114,400 shares of common stock at prices ranging from $60.75 to $25.20 were outstanding as of March 31, 2001.
Options to purchase 54,000 shares of common stock at a price of $47.66 were outstanding as of March 31, 2000. Options to purchase
4,834,828 shares of common
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stock at prices ranging from $12.42 to $5.19 were outstanding as of March 31, 1999. These options to purchase shares of common stock that
were outstanding as of March 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were not included in the computation of diluted net income per share because the
options' exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the common shares as of such dates and, therefore, would be anti-dilutive
under the treasury stock method.

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

    Exar Savings Programs—The Exar Savings Plan covers substantially all employees of the Company. The Savings Plan provides for
voluntary salary reduction contributions in accordance with Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code as well as contributions from the
Company based on the achievement of specified operating results. Exar made contributions of $1,006,000, $452,000 and $86,000 for the
fiscal years ended March 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

    Incentive Compensation Programs—The Company's incentive compensation programs provide for incentive awards for substantially all
employees of the Company based upon the achievement of specified operating and performance results. Incentive awards totaled $5,941,000,
$4,964,000, and $681,000 in fiscal years 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The Company's incentive compensation programs may be
amended or discontinued at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

8. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

    Preferred Share Purchase Rights Plan—In December 1995, the Company's Board of Directors adopted a Preferred Share Purchase
Rights Plan under which the Board declared a dividend of one purchase right for each outstanding share of common stock of Exar held as of
January 10, 1996. Each right entitles the registered holder to purchase one one-hundredth of a share of Exar's Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock. The rights become exercisable ten days after the announcement that an entity or person has commenced a tender offer to
acquire or has acquired 15% or more of the outstanding Exar Common Stock ("the Distribution Date").

    After the Distribution Date, the Board may exchange the rights at an exchange ratio of one common share or one one-hundredth of a
preferred share per right. Otherwise, each holder of a right, other than rights beneficially owned by the acquiring entity or person (which will
thereafter be void), will have the right to receive upon exercise that number of common shares having a market value of two times the exercise
price of the right. The rights will expire on December 15, 2005.

    Employee Stock Participation Plan—Exar is authorized to issue 4,500,000 shares of common stock under its Employee Stock Participation
Plan (the "Plan"). The Plan permits employees to purchase common stock through payroll deductions. The purchase price is the lower of 85%
of the fair market value of the common stock at the beginning or end of each three month offering period. Shares purchased by and distributed
to participating employees were 63,861 in fiscal 2001, 154,518 in fiscal 2000, and 254,910 in fiscal 1999 at weighted average prices of
$24.56, $8.17 and $4.60, respectively. The weighted average fair value of the fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999 awards was $13.07, $7.27 and
$1.39 per share, respectively.

    The Company has reserved 2,372,065 shares of common stock for future issuance under its Employee Stock Participation Plan.
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    Stock Option Plans—Exar has a 2000 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2000 plan") which only permits the granting of nonstatutory stock
options to Executive Officers and employees. A maximum of 40% of the total number of shares reserved under the 2000 Plan may be granted
to Executive Officers of the Company. The 2000 Plan was adopted by the Board of Directors in September 2000 and subsequently amended
in December 2000 and June 2001. The Company also has a 1997 Equity Incentive Plan (the "1997 Plan") which permits the granting of both
incentive and nonstatutory stock options to Executive Officers of the Company and its employees. A 1996 Non-Employee Director's Stock
Option Plan also exists, which provides each Director of Exar, who is not otherwise an employee of the Company, the opportunity to
participate in a stock option plan. Generally, options under the three plans are granted with an exercise price of 100% of the fair value of the
underlying stock on the date of grant and have a term of seven years, although options may be granted with a term of up to ten years. The three
plans allow certain employees, including Executives Officers, Directors, senior management and technical personnel of the Company, the
opportunity to select to defer a portion of his or her base salary and apply such deferred salary to options to purchase shares of the Company's
common stock with exercise prices set at a discount to market with the aggregate of such discounts equal to the aggregate amount of the base
salary so deferred. Options, other than deferred compensation options, generally vest over four years.



    The Company may grant options to purchase up to 4,200,000, 7,188,104 and 750,000 shares of common stock under the 2001 Equity
Incentive Plan, the 1997 Equity Incentive Plan, and the 1996 Non-Employee Directors' Stock Option Plan, respectively. Options are granted at
fair market value on the date of grant. Options are generally exercisable in four equal annual installments commencing one year after the date
of grant and generally expire seven years from the grant date.
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    Option activity for all three plans is summarized as follows:

  

Outstanding Options

  

Number of
Shares

 

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price per

Share

Outstanding, March 31, 1998 (2,292,920 exercisable at a weighted average
price of $5.61)  6,579,966 $ 6.14
 Options granted (weighted average fair value of $3.02)  2,384,740  5.30
 Options exercised  (280,952)  4.76
 Options canceled  (904,578)  6.35
   
Outstanding, March 31, 1999 (3,084,036 exercisable at a weighted average
price of $5.86)  7,779,176  5.91
 Options granted (weighted average fair value of $7.86)  2,216,110  13.71
 Options exercised  (2,519,554)  5.83
 Options canceled  (349,594)  7.48
   
Outstanding, March 31, 2000 (1,542,018 exercisable at a weighted average
price of $11.77)  7,126,138  8.27
 Options granted (weighted average fair value of $28.62)  3,252,550  42.76
 Options exercised  (1,737,828)  6.12
 Options canceled  (138,332)  18.15
   
Outstanding, March 31, 2001  8,502,528 $ 21.74
   

    At March 31, 2001, 3,156,996 options were available for future grant under three plans.

  

Options Outstanding

    
   

 

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Average
Life (years)

      

      

Options Exercisable

Range of
Exercise Prices

 

Number
Outstanding

 

Average
Price

 

Number
Exercisable

 

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price

$ 1.75 - $5.48 1,801,217 4.08 $ 4.97 882,031 $ 4.87
 5.50 - 11.35 1,743,742 3.65  7.51 1,024,098  7.15
 11.71 - 22.32 1,736,869 5.45  13.48 458,026  13.16
 23.90 - 53.86 1,582,600 6.21  31.35 66,875  33.63
 54.28 - 60.75 1,638,100 6.44  54.82 56,250  54.75

     
$ 1.75 - $60.75 8,502,528 5.12 $ 21.74 2,487,280 $ 9.24
            

    SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation," requires the disclosure of pro forma net income and earnings per share had
the Company adopted the fair value method as of the beginning of fiscal 1996. Under SFAS 123, the fair value of stock-based awards to
employees is calculated through the use of option pricing models, even though such models were developed to
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estimate the fair value of freely tradable, fully transferable options without vesting restrictions, which significantly differ from the Company's
stock option awards. These models also require subjective assumptions, including future stock price volatility and expected time to exercise,
which greatly affect the calculated values. The Company's calculations were made using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the
following weighted average assumptions: expected life, 5.3 to 7.8 years; stock volatility, 70%, 58% and 43% in fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999,



following weighted average assumptions: expected life, 5.3 to 7.8 years; stock volatility, 70%, 58% and 43% in fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively; risk free interest rates, 4.9%, 6.1% and 5.4% in fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively; and no dividends during the expected
term. The Company's calculations are based on a single option valuation approach and forfeitures are recognized as they occur. If the
computed fair values of the fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999 awards had been amortized to expense over the vesting period of the awards, pro
forma net income would have been as follows: (In thousands, except per share amounts):

  

2001

 

2000

 

1999

Pro Forma Net Income  $ 13,151 $ 11,039 $ 2,412
    
Pro Forma Net Income Per Share:          
 BASIC  $ 0.35 $ 0.38 $ 0.09
    
 DILUTED  $ 0.31 $ 0.34 $ 0.08
    

    The impact of outstanding non-vested stock options granted prior to fiscal 1996 has been excluded from the pro forma calculation;
accordingly, the fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999 pro forma amounts are not indicative of future period pro forma amounts, when the calculation
will apply to all applicable stock options.

9. RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER CHARGES

Restructuring

    In the third quarter of fiscal 1999, the Company sold its Silicon Microstructures business unit to OSI Systems, Inc. ("OSI") for
$2,600,000, with additional contingent performance-based payments of up to $2,500,000 over the next year. The resulting restructuring charge
of $731,000 represents the loss on the sale of the assets sold, severance costs related to the termination of 38 employees and other disposition
related expenses. The restructuring action was completed during the fourth quarter of fiscal 1999 and was financed through the use of cash.

10. GAIN ON SALE OF INVESTMENT

    As a result of a merger completed on April 1, 1999 of IC Works, Inc. and Cypress Semiconductor, Inc., the Company received
approximately 1.1 million shares of common stock in Cypress Semiconductor, Inc. in exchange for its investment in IC Works, Inc. The
Company sold this stock during the first and fourth quarters of fiscal 2000, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $12.0 million in other income and a
related employee compensation and benefits expense of $3.0 million in costs and expenses.
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

    In 1987, one of the Company's subsidiaries identified low-level groundwater contamination at its principal manufacturing site. Although the
area of contamination appears to have been defined, the source of the contamination has not been identified. The Company reached an
agreement with another entity to participate in the cost of ongoing site investigations and the operation of remedial systems to remove
subsurface chemicals which is expected to continue for the foreseeable future an additional 10 years from the fiscal year ended March 31,
2001. The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the Company's share of estimated remaining remediation costs of
approximately $549,000 as of March 31, 2001.

    From time to time, the Company may be involved in various claims, legal actions and complaints arising in the normal course of business.
Although the ultimate outcome of these matters is not presently determinable, management believes that the resolution of all such pending
matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations, liquidity or cash flows.

12. INDUSTRY AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

    In fiscal 1999, the Company adopted SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information." SFAS
No. 131 establishes standards for reporting information about operating segments in annual financial statements and requires that certain
selected information about operating segments be reported in interim financial reports. It also establishes standards for related disclosures
about products and services and geographic areas. Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate
financial information is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, or decision making group in deciding how to allocate
resources and in assessing performance. The Company operates in one reportable segment and is engaged in the design, development and
marketing of a variety of analog and mixed-signal application-specific integrated circuits for use in communications and in video and imaging
products. The nature of the Company's products and production processes as well as type of customers and distribution methods are
consistent among all of the Company's devices. The Company's foreign operations consist primarily of its wholly-owned subsidiaries in
Japan, the United Kingdom, France and Taiwan. The Company's principal markets include North America, Asia, and Europe. Total sales by
geographic area represent sales to unaffiliated customers.

    The following table sets forth product line revenue for fiscal years ended March 31:

  

2001

 

2000

 

1999

  

(In thousands)



Communications  $ 83,347 $ 58,262 $ 41,029
Video and Imaging   24,033  14,204  15,375
Other   5,544  6,088  15,464
    
  $ 112,924 $ 78,554 $ 71,868
    

    Identifiable assets represent assets used in the Company's operations in each geographic area.
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    Geographic financial information for each fiscal year is as follows:

  

2001

 

2000

 

1999

 

  

(In thousands)

 

Net sales:           
 United States  $ 76,327 $ 52,775 $ 45,631 
 Export sales to Japan and Asia   14,003  12,007  8,658 
 Export sales to Western Europe   15,425  12,363  15,731 
 Export sales to rest of world   1,345  823  975 
 Japan   5,824  586  873 
     
  $ 112,924 $ 78,554 $ 71, 868 
     
Income (loss) from operations:           
 United States  $ 4,000 $ 4,572 $ 9,350 
 Japan   (89)  (512)  (467)
 Western Europe   35  (9)  103 
     
  $ 3,946 $ 4,051 $ 8,986 
     

    Long-lived assets information for each fiscal year is as follows:

  

2001

 

2000

 

1999

  

(In thousands)

Long-lived assets:          
 United States  $ 27,433 $ 26,622 $ 33,068
 Japan   260  526  1,121
 Western Europe   321  402  97
    
  $ 28,014 $ 27,550 $ 34,286
    

13. RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

    In June 1998, the FASB issued SFAS No.133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" and in June 2000 issued
SFAS No. 138, "Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133."
SFAS No. 133, as amended by SFAS No. 138, requires companies to recognize all derivatives as assets or liabilities at their fair value. Gains
or losses resulting from changes in the value of those derivatives would be accounted for depending on the use of the derivative and whether it
qualifies for hedge accounting. The Company is required to adopt SFAS No. 133, as amended by SFAS No. 138, beginning April 2001. The
Company has determined that the adoption of this accounting standard will not have a material impact on the Company's financial position or
results of operations.

    In December 1999, the SEC released SAB No. 101, "Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements." In March 2000, the SEC issued SAB
No. 101A and in June 2000, issued SAB No. 101B. An additional document was issued in October 2000 which responded to frequently
asked questions regarding accounting standards related to revenue recognition and SAB No. 101. The Company has

52

adopted SAB No. 101, as amended, in the third quarter of fiscal 2001. This adoption of this accounting guidance did not have a material
impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations.



    In March 2000, FASB issued Interpretation No. 44, "Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation—An
Interpretation of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25," clarifying the guidance for certain stock compensation issues, including the
definition of an employee, the treatment of the acceleration of stock options and the accounting treatment for options assumed in business
combinations. FIN 44 became effective July 1, 2000, but applicable to certain transactions dating back to December 1998. The adoption of
FIN 44 did not have a significant impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

    Not Applicable.
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PART III 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT 

    For a listing of executive officers and directors of the Company and certain information about them, see Part I "Management."

    Certain information required by this item concerning the Company's directors is incorporated by reference from the section captioned
"Proposal 1: Election of Directors" contained in the Company's Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed not later than 120 days following the
close of the fiscal year ("Definitive Proxy Statement").

Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act 

    Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires the Company's officers and directors, and persons who own more than ten
percent of a registered class of the Company's equity securities, to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and the National Market. Officers, directors and greater than ten-percent shareholders are required by SEC regulations
to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

    To the Company's knowledge and based solely on its review of the copies of such forms received by it, and written representations from
certain reporting persons that no other forms were required during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, its officers, directors, and greater
than ten percent beneficial owners complied with all applicable Section 16(a) filing requirements.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

    The information required under this item is hereby incorporated by reference from the Company's Definitive Proxy Statement under the
caption "Compensation of Executive Officers."

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT 

    The information required under this item is hereby incorporated by reference from the Company's Definitive Proxy Statement under the
caption "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management."

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS 

    The information required under this item is hereby incorporated by reference from the Company's Definitive Proxy Statement under the
captions "Employment and Change of Control Arrangements," "CEO Compensation," and "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions."
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PART IV 

ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K 

    (a) The following documents are filed as part of this Form 10-K:

    (1) Index to Consolidated Financial Statements. The following Consolidated Financial Statements of Exar Corporation and its subsidiaries
are filed as part of this Form 10-K:

  

Form 10-K
Page No.



Independent Auditors' Report  35

Consolidated Balance Sheets March 31, 2001 and 2000  36

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999  37

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income for the years ended March 31, 2001,
2000, and 1999  38

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999  39

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  40-53

    (2) Index to Financial Statement Schedules. The following Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule of Exar Corporation and its
subsidiaries for each of the years ended March 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 are filed as part of this Form 10-K:

  

Form 10-K
Page No.

II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves  58

    Schedules not listed above have been omitted because they are not applicable or required, or the information required to be set forth therein
is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes thereto.

    (3) Exhibits

Exhibit
Footnote

 

Exhibit
Number

 

Description

(d)  3.1 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Exar Corporation, as
amended June 8, 2000.

(a)  3.2 Bylaws of the Company, as amended.
(c)  4.2 Rights Agreement dated as of December 15, 1995, between the Registrant and the First National Bank of

Boston, as amended May 1, 2000.
(e)*  10.1 1989 Employee Stock Participation Plan of the Company and related Offering, as amended June 24, 1999.
(a)*  10.2 1991 Stock Option Plan of the Company and related forms of stock option grant and exercise.
(a)*  10.3 1991 Non-Employee Directors' Stock Option Plan of the Company and related forms of stock option grant and

exercise.
*  10.4 Fiscal 2001 Key Employee Incentive Compensation Program.
*  10.5 Fiscal 2001 Executive Incentive Compensation Program.
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(e)*  10.6 1996 Non-Employee Directors' Stock Option Plan, as amended April 13, 2000.
(b)*  10.7 1997 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended September 9, 1999.
(e)*  10.8 Executive Officers' Change of Control Severance Benefit Plans.
*  10.9 2000 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and restated on June 21, 2001.
*  10.10 Executive Employment Agreement between Exar Corporation and

Donald L. Ciffone, Jr., dated December 6, 2000, as amended on June 21, 2001.
*  10.11 Form of Letter Agreement Regarding Change of Control for each of the following: Frank P. Carrubba, Raimon

L. Conlisk, James E. Dykes, Richard Previte, Donald L. Ciffone, Jr., Michael J. Class, Roubik Gregorian,
Ronald W. Guire, Susan J. Hardman, Thomas R. Melendrez, Stephen W. Michael.

  21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company.
  23.1 Independent Auditors' Consent.
  24.1 Power of Attorney. Reference is made to the signature page.

(a)
Filed as an exhibit to the Company's Annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1992 and incorporated
herein by reference. 

(b)
Filed as an exhibit to the Company's registration statement on Form S-8 (Registration statement No. 333-31120) filed with the
Commission on February 25, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference. 

(c)
The Rights Agreement was filed as an exhibit to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K, dated December 15, 1995. 

(d)
Filed as an exhibit to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on June 23, 2000, and incorporated herein by
reference. 

(e)



(e)
Filed as an exhibit to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed on November 13, 2000, and incorporated herein by
reference. 

*
Indicates management contracts or compensatory plans and arrangements filed pursuant to Item 601(b)(10) of Regulation S-K.

(b)
There were no reports filed on Form 8-K during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2001.
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SIGNATURES 

    Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

  EXAR CORPORATION

  By:  /s/ Donald L. Ciffone Jr.

Donald L. Ciffone Jr.
Chief Executive Officer, President and Director

    Date: June 27, 2001

    KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Ronald W.
Guire and Donald L. Ciffone, Jr., and each of them, as his true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and re-
substitution, for him and in his name, place, and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Report, and to file the
same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto
said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and
necessary to be done in connection therewith, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and
confirming that all said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them or their or his substitute or substituted, may lawfully do or cause to be
done by virtue hereof.

    Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf
of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

 

Title

 

Date

     
/s/ Donald L. Ciffone Jr.

(Donald L. Ciffone Jr.)

 Chief Executive Officer, President and Director  June 27, 2001

/s/ Ronald W. Guire

(Ronald W. Guire)

 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer, Assistant Secretary and Director
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

 June 27, 2001

/s/ Raimon L. Conlisk

(Raimon L. Conlisk)

 Director and Chairman of the Board  June 27, 2001

/s/ James E. Dykes

(James E. Dykes)  

Director  June 27, 2001

/s/ Frank P. Carrubba

(Frank P. Carrubba)  

Director  June 27, 2001

/s/ Richard Previte

(Richard Previte)  

Director  June 27, 2001
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SCHEDULE II 

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES
(In thousands)

Classification

 

Balance at
Beginning of Year

 

Additions

 

Write-offs and
Recoveries

 

Balance at end
of Year

Year ended March 31, 2001:
Allowance for doubtful accounts and sales returns  $ 1,869 $ 4,218 $ 4,421 $ 1,664
Year ended March 31, 2000:
Allowance for doubtful accounts and sales returns  $ 2,047 $ 4,192 $ 4,370 $ 1,869
Year ended March 31, 1999:
Allowance for doubtful accounts and sales returns  $ 3,411 $ 1,360 $ 2,724 $ 2,047
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Exhibit 10.4

PLAN DOCUMENT
Key Employee Incentive Compensation Program

Fiscal Year 2001 

Contents 

  A.  Purpose   
  B.  Effective Dates   
  C.  Plan Changes   
  D.  Plan Administration   
  E.  Participation   
  F.  Overall Plan Concepts   
  G.  Procedure   
  H.  Method Of Calculation   
  I.  Changes In Status   
  J.  Interpretation Of Plan Terms   

Attachments:

1.
Fiscal Year 2001 Incentive Pool Funding Matrices 

2.
Letter Acknowledging Participation

A.  Purpose

    The purpose of the Key Employee Incentive Compensation Program is to encourage and reward performance which contributes to the
company's success. Financial incentives which complement base salary will be awarded to participants in the plan for achieving corporate and
personal objectives.

B.  Effective Date

    The period April 1, 2000 through March 31, 2001 is considered the "Plan Year" and will be used for purposes of determining performance
achievement and for payout calculations.

C.  Plan Changes

    The Company, at its sole discretion through the Board of Directors, may amend, alter, or cancel this Key Employee Incentive Compensation
Program at any time.

D.  Plan Administration

    The Key Employee Incentive Compensation Program will be administered by the Plan Committee consisting of the President/CEO and the
Executive Vice President/CFO with the staff support of the Human Resources Director. The role of the Plan Committee is to interpret the
provisions and intent of the plan, evaluate and determine eligibility and measurement criteria, assess performance results, amend and modify
the plan administration, and communicate the Plan provisions to participants, as necessary. The President/CEO will approve the final
recommendations to be submitted for Board of Directors' approval.

E.  Participation

    Eligibility in the annual incentive plan is determined by the recommendations of senior management and the approval of the President/CEO
and the Board of Directors.

1.
New Hires

(a)
New hires after the beginning of the plan year who are approved as participants will have prorated incentive awards. 

(b)
New hires in the final quarter (January 1—March 31) of the plan year are not eligible to participate for that plan year.



2.
Since this is an annual plan, participation is established annually. Participants in previous year(s) are not automatically
included in subsequent years. A number of factors may change from year to year, such as: business conditions, individual
employee contribution, criticality of certain positions, etc. 

3.
Inclusion in the plan does not constitute a guarantee of employment or specific earnings.

F.  Overall Plan Concepts

1.
Incentive Pool:  The pre-tax profit threshold must be achieved before any funding of the incentive pool takes place. The total
amount of the pool is determined by the level of achievement of both pre-tax profit and revenue goals. Refer to Attachment 1,
FY2001 Incentive Pool Funding Matrices. 

2.
Incentive Payout:  Payout occurs when the pool is funded, when Corporate objectives are satisfactorily met and when
personal performance is satisfactory. 

3.
Incentive Amount:  Individual payments are expressed as a percent of the participant's annual base pay as of March 31 prior
to the plan year.

2

4.
Target Incentive Award:  Participants selected for participation in the plan will be assigned to one of several target incentive
award categories. The higher the level of importance of the position to the success of the company, the higher the percentage of
target incentive award.

    For Example:

    Assume the participant is approved for a target incentive award of 15%, and the pre-tax target and individual personal targets are
met at exactly 100%, then the participant's performance incentive will be 15% of his/her annual base salary (as of March 31, prior to
the beginning of the plan year). If the target is not met at 100%, but within the threshold of the target, the payout will be reduced. If the
target and the individual performance are exceeded to the outstanding level the payout could reach 150% of target award.

G.  Procedure

    The employee selected for inclusion in this Key Employee Incentive Compensation Program will be notified in writing and provided a copy
of the corporate pre-tax profit target and revenue target. Any changes in the plan or the measurement criteria must be approved in writing by
the President/CEO and the Board of Directors.

    Payment will be subject to ordinary deductions, such as FICA, SDI, and income taxes. No other deduction will be made.

    Payment, when earned, will be made as soon as administratively possible, generally not later than 75 days after the end of the plan year.

H.  Method of Calculation

1.
Essential Elements of Calculation

(a)
Incentive Pool Funding:     The pool is funded when the corporate pre-tax profit threshold is met. If the profit is
below the established threshold, the pool will not be funded. If the profit and revenue objectives are met just at
threshold, the pool will be funded at 23.2%. If the objectives are met at 100%, the pool will be funded at 100%. If the
objectives are exceeded to the outstanding level, the pool will be funded at 150%. 

(b)
Personal Contribution Modifier:     Each participant's payout can be modified based on individual contribution to
Exar's success. The personal objectives are related to the participant's critical job responsibilities and are linked directly
to departmental or
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corporate objectives. The payout can be modified (increased/decreased) based on appraisal by appropriate managers and
approved by the President/CEO and by the Board.



2.
Examples

    

Example 1

   

Example 2

 

            
Employee's annual base salary (3/31/00)    $ 110,000   $ 80,000 

Target Incentive Award  20%   (22,040) 15%   (12,000)
 Pre-Tax Profit  ($36.5M)     58.0%    58.0%
 Revenue  ($103M)     48.1%    48.1%
        
 Combined Pool Funding Factor     106.1%    106.1%
 

Personal Contribution Modifier     90%    120%

  

Corp

   

Personal

   

Total Indiv.
Award

Modifier

   

Target
Incentive

ward

   

Incentive
Payment

  

  Example 1:                     
  106.1%  X  90% =  95.49% X  $ 22,040 =  $ 21,046  

                       
  Example 2:                     
  106.1%  X  120% =  127.32% X  $ 12,000 =  $ 15,278  

I.  Changes In Status

1.
Participants who give notice of termination or who terminate employment, voluntarily or involuntarily, prior to the date of
payout are not eligible for payment. 

2.
Participants who retire or become totally disabled during the plan year will receive the eligible award payment on a prorated
basis. 

3.
If a participant dies during the plan year the employee's beneficiary will receive the entire eligible payment. 

4.
Employees who, during the plan year, are promoted to incentive eligible positions and are approved by the President and the
Board of Directors for inclusion in the Plan may receive payments on a prorated basis. Employees promoted into incentive
eligible positions in the last quarter of the plan year are not eligible in that year. 

5.
Rehired employees who were previously eligible as a participant in this Plan must be approved as any other new participant.

J.  Interpretation of Plan Terms

    The Plan Committee, with the approval of the Board of Directors, is responsible for the interpretation of this plan. Any resolution or dispute
regarding eligibility, determination of procedures, measurements, or awards is the sole responsibility of the Plan Committee with Board of
Directors' approval.
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Attachment 2

I acknowledge receiving a copy of the Plan Document "Fiscal Year 2001 Key Employee Incentive Compensation Program" for the period
April 1, 2000 through March 31, 2001. I have read and understand the terms of this Plan, and also understand that this plan neither constitutes
a contract of employment nor a representation as to my future earnings. The Letter of Notification and the Plan constitute the entire agreement
and supersede any prior written and oral agreements. I understand that participants are eligible for payment only when corporate and individual
performance measures are met. I understand that should I terminate employment or submit notice of termination on or before the date of
payout I forfeit all rights to the payout. Further, I understand that the The Plan Committee and the Board of Directors have the sole
discretionary authority for interpreting the provisions of the plan, determining eligibility, and approving any payout.

  
  Employee Name (PLEASE PRINT)



  Employee Name (PLEASE PRINT)

  

  Employee Signature

  

  Date
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Exhibit 10.5

PLAN DOCUMENT
Executive Incentive Compensation Program

Fiscal Year 2001 

1.0  Intent

    The intention of the Executive Incentive Compensation Program for Fiscal Year 2001 is to provide incentives to eligible Exar Corporation
executives for achieving or surpassing established revenue and pre-tax profit goals derived from the FY 2001 Financial Plan. (see Attachment
1, FY 2001 Financial Plan).

2.0  Management Participant Qualifications

2.1
Direct participation is limited to a small group of executives who have an important influence on the operation, profits, and
future of Exar. Generally, only the corporate officers and the directors of major staff or line functions may be eligible. 

2.2
Participation shall be recommended by the President/CEO or Executive Vice-President/CFO and is subject to concurrence by
the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. 

2.3
An invitation to participate and the information divulged in connection with the program must be considered private and not be
discussed with others.

3.0  Funding of the Incentive Plan Pool

3.1
General:

    The Incentive Plan Pool will be funded upon achievement of certain revenue and pre-tax profit goals. The pre-tax profit goal must be met at
the pre-established threshold levels before any pool funding takes place. Further, this plan will not be funded unless there is funding and
payout for the Fiscal Year 2001 Key Employee Incentive Program.

3.2
Calculation for Pool Funding

    The size of the executive pool is the sum of the fiscal year 2001 annual base salary of the participants times their respective target award
percentages. The pool size will be modified according to the actual revenue and profit performance levels compared to the approved financial
plan for fiscal year 2001. Use the table in Attachment 2 to determine the pool size. For example, if the actual revenue level were $107M, the
pool for revenue achievement would be $635.7K. If the pre-tax profit were $35.9M, the pool for the pre-tax profit achievement would be
$751.8K. The total pool would be $1.388M ($635.7K + $751.8K). (See Attachment 4 for example).

3.3
Calculation for Individual Payout

    The individual payout is determined by factoring one's base salary, individual target award percentage, actual corporate revenue and pre-tax
profit results, and personal performance factors. (see Attachment 4 for example of individual calculation).

4.0  Rules

4.1
Pre-tax profits or revenues generated by "creative accounting" or by system changes will be excluded for purposes of this
program. 

4.2
In calculating incentive compensation, "salary" will be the total base compensation for the fiscal year, excluding any incentive
pay, bonus payments, auto allowance, etc.

4.3.
It is recognized that certain unforeseen events or inequities could develop in the plan as established. Consideration will be given
to unusual circumstances. Such consideration may be given by the Compensation Committee and the Committee's decision will
be final. 



4.4
Payments will be made in accordance with the final annual statements as audited by the Company's independent Certified
Public Accountants. Amounts earned should be paid prior to June 15. 

4.5
In order to remove any deterrent to a "Purchase Acquisition", the write-off of in-process R&D will be added back to profits for
calculation of pre-tax profit. 

4.6
The Compensation Committee determines the target award for participants. (See Attachment 3, Participants). 

4.7
The program is to be in force for FY2001, and only those who are in the employ of the company and still a member of the
eligible executive group through the date of payout will qualify for payments. 

4.8
As business conditions, participants' position, or the corporation's needs change, the Compensation Committee reserves the
right to modify or cancel at any time with prior notice this Incentive Program, and participants should not presume continued
participation in an Incentive Program.

Attachments:  1  FY2001 Approved Financial Plan
  2  FY2001 Incentive Pool Funding Matrices
  3  FY2001 Participants
  4  Example of Individual Calculation/Formula for Payment
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EXAR CORPORATION

2000 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 7, 2000
AMENDED AND RESTATED EFFECTIVE DECEMBER 6, 2000
AMENDED AND RESTATED EFFECTIVE JANUARY 26, 2001

AMENDED AND RESTATED EFFECTIVE JUNE 21, 2001
STOCKHOLDER APPROVAL NOT REQUIRED

1.  PURPOSES.

    The persons eligible to receive Stock Awards are the Employees and Consultants of the Company. The purpose of the Plan is to provide a
means by which eligible recipients of Stock Awards may be given an opportunity to benefit from increases in value of the stock of the
Company through the granting of (i) Nonstatutory Stock Options, (ii) stock bonuses and (iii) rights to purchase restricted stock, all as
described below. The Plan is also intended to provide a means by which the Company may grant Stock Awards to persons not previously
employed by the Company as an inducement essential to those persons entering employment contracts with the Company. Such inducement
grants may be made to persons who ultimately are employed by the Company as Officers.

    The Company, by means of the Plan, seeks to retain the services of persons who are or will become Employees of or Consultants to the
Company or an Affiliate, and to provide incentives for such persons to exert maximum efforts for the success of the Company and its
Affiliates.

    The Company intends that the Stock Awards issued under the Plan shall, in the discretion of the Board or any Committee to which
responsibility for administration of the Plan has been delegated pursuant to subsection 3(c), be either (i) Options granted pursuant to Section 6
hereof or (ii) stock bonuses or rights to purchase restricted stock granted pursuant to Section 8 hereof.

2.  DEFINITIONS.

    (a) "Affiliate" means any parent corporation or subsidiary corporation of the Company, whether now or hereafter existing, as those terms
are defined in Sections 424(e) and (f) respectively, of the Code.

    (b) "Board" means the Board of Directors of the Company.

    (c) "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

    (d) "Committee" means a committee or subcommittee appointed by the Board in accordance with subsection 3(c) of the Plan.

    (e) "Company" means Exar Corporation, a Delaware corporation.

    (f)  "Consultant" means any person, including an advisor, engaged by the Company or an Affiliate to render consulting services and who
is compensated for such services.

    (g) "Continuous Service" means that the service of an individual to the Company, whether as an Employee, Officer, Director or
Consultant, is not interrupted or terminated. The Board or the Committee may determine, in that party's sole discretion, whether Continuous
Service shall be considered interrupted in the case of any leave of absence approved by the Board or the Committee, including sick leave,
military leave, or any other personal leave. Continuous Service shall not be deemed to have terminated merely because of a change in the
capacity in which a person renders service to the Company or an Affiliate, whether such service is as an Employee, Officer, Director or
Consultant or a change in the entity for which the person renders such service, provided that there is no interruption in the person's service
relationship with the Company or an Affiliate.

    (h) "Director" means a member of the Board.

    (i)  "Employee" means any person employed by the Company or any Affiliate of the Company. Mere service as a Director or payment of a
Director's fee by the Company or an Affiliate shall not be sufficient to constitute "employment" by the Company or an Affiliate.

    (j)  "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

    (k) "Fair Market Value" means, as of any date, the lower of (1) the last quoted per share selling price for the Company's Common Stock
on the Nasdaq National Market on the relevant date; or (2) the arithmetic mean of the highest and lowest quoted selling prices on the Nasdaq
National Market on the relevant date. If there were no sales on such date, then "Fair Market Value" means on the nearest trading day before
the lower of (1) the last quoted per share selling price for the Company's Common Stock on the Nasdaq National Market; or (2) the arithmetic
mean of the highest and lowest quoted selling prices on the Nasdaq National Market.



    Notwithstanding the preceding, for federal, state, and local income tax purposes, fair market value shall be determined by the Board (or its
delegate) in accordance with uniform and nondiscriminatory standards adopted from time to time.

    (l)  "Non-Employee Director" means a Director who either (i) is not a current Employee or Officer of the Company or its parent or
subsidiary, does not receive compensation (directly or indirectly) from the Company or its parent or subsidiary for services rendered as a
consultant or in any capacity other than as a Director (except for an amount as to which disclosure would not be required under Item 404(a) of
Regulation S-K promulgated pursuant to the Securities Act ("Regulation S-K")), does not possess an interest in any other transaction as to
which disclosure would be required under Item 404(a) of Regulation S-K, and is not engaged in a business relationship as to which disclosure
would be required under Item 404(b) of Regulation S-K; or (ii) is otherwise considered a "non-employee director" for purposes of Rule 16b-
3.

    (m) "Nonstatutory Stock Option" means a stock option not intended to qualify as an incentive stock option within the meaning of
Section 422 of the Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder.

    (n) "Officer" means a person who possesses the authority of an "officer" as that term is used in Rule 4460(i)(1)(A) of the Rules of the
National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. For purposes of the Plan, a person in the position of "Vice President" or higher shall be
classified as an "Officer" unless the Board or Committee expressly finds that such person does not possess the authority of an "officer" as that
term is used in Rule 4460(i)(1)(A) of the Rules of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc.

    (o) "Option" means a Nonstatutory Stock Option granted pursuant to the Plan.

    (p) "Option Agreement" means a written agreement between the Company and an Optionholder evidencing the terms and conditions of
an individual Option grant. Each Option Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan.

    (q) "Optionholder" means a person to whom an Option is granted pursuant to the Plan or, if applicable, such other person who holds an
outstanding Option.

    (r) "Plan" means this 2000 Equity Incentive Plan.

    (s) "Rule 16b-3" means Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act or any successor to Rule 16b-3, as in effect with respect to the Company at the
time discretion is being exercised regarding the Plan.

    (t) "Securities Act" means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

2

    (u) "Stock Award" means any right granted under the Plan, including any Option, any stock bonus, and any right to purchase restricted
stock.

    (v) "Stock Award Agreement" means a written agreement between the Company and a holder of a Stock Award evidencing the terms
and conditions of an individual Stock Award grant. Each Stock Award Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan.

3.  ADMINISTRATION.

    (a) The Plan shall be administered by the Board unless and until the Board delegates administration to a Committee, as provided in
subsection 3(c).

    (b) The Board shall have the power, subject to, and within the limitations of, the express provisions of the Plan:

    (1) To determine from time to time which of the persons eligible under the Plan shall be granted Stock Awards; when and how each
Stock Award shall be granted; whether a Stock Award will be an Option, a stock bonus, a right to purchase restricted stock, or a
combination of the foregoing; the provisions of each Stock Award granted (which need not be identical), including the time or times
when a person shall be permitted to receive stock pursuant to a Stock Award; and the number of shares with respect to which a Stock
Award shall be granted to each such person.

    (2) To construe and interpret the Plan and Stock Awards granted under it, and to establish, amend and revoke rules and regulations
for its administration. The Board, in the exercise of this power, may correct any defect, omission or inconsistency in the Plan or in any
Stock Award Agreement, in a manner and to the extent it shall deem necessary or expedient to make the Plan fully effective.

    (3) To amend the Plan or a Stock Award as provided in Section 13.

    (4) To terminate or suspend the Plan as provided in Section 14.

    (5) Generally, to exercise such powers and to perform such acts as the Board deems necessary or expedient to promote the best
interests of the Company which are not in conflict with the provisions of the Plan.

    (c) The Board may delegate administration of the Plan to a committee of the Board composed of two (2) or more members (the
"Committee"), all of the members of which Committee may be, in the discretion of the Board, Non-Employee Directors. If administration is
delegated to a Committee, the Committee shall have, in connection with the administration of the Plan, the powers theretofore possessed by the



delegated to a Committee, the Committee shall have, in connection with the administration of the Plan, the powers theretofore possessed by the
Board, including the power to delegate to a subcommittee any of the administrative powers the Committee is authorized to exercise (and
references in this Plan to the Board shall thereafter be to the Committee or such a subcommittee), subject, however, to such resolutions, not
inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan, as may be adopted from time to time by the Board. The Board may abolish the Committee at any
time and revest in the Board the administration of the Plan. In addition, notwithstanding anything in this Section 3 to the contrary, the Board or
the Committee may delegate to a subcommittee of one or more members of the Board the authority to grant Stock Awards to eligible persons
who are not then subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act.

4.  SHARES SUBJECT TO THE PLAN.

    (a) Subject to the provisions of Section 12 relating to adjustments upon changes in stock, the stock that may be issued pursuant to Stock
Awards shall not exceed in the aggregate four million two hundred thousand (4,200,000) shares of the Company's Common Stock. If any
Stock Award shall for any reason expire or otherwise terminate, in whole or in part, without having been exercised in full, the
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stock not acquired under such Stock Award shall revert to and again become available for issuance under the Plan.

    (b) The stock subject to the Plan may be unissued shares or reacquired shares, bought on the market or otherwise.

5.  ELIGIBILITY.

    (a) Stock Awards may be granted only to Employees or Consultants.

    (b) The aggregate number of shares issued pursuant to Stock Awards granted to Officers shall not exceed forty percent (40%) of the
number of shares reserved for issuance under the Plan, as determined at the time of each such issuance to an Officer, except that there shall be
excluded from this calculation shares issued to Officers not previously employed by the Company pursuant to Stock Awards granted as an
inducement essential to such individuals entering into employment relationships with the Company.

    (c) A Consultant shall not be eligible for the grant of a Stock Award if, at the time of grant, a Form S-8 Registration Statement under the
Securities Act ("Form S-8") is not available to register either the offer or the sale of the Company's securities to such Consultant because of
the nature of the services that the Consultant is providing to the Company, or because the Consultant is not a natural person, or as otherwise
provided by the rules governing the use of Form S-8, unless the Company determines both (i) that such grant (A) shall be registered in
another manner under the Securities Act (e.g., on a Form S-3 Registration Statement) or (B) does not require registration under the Securities
Act in order to comply with the requirements of the Securities Act, if applicable, and (ii) that such grant complies with the securities laws of all
other relevant jurisdictions.

6.  OPTION PROVISIONS.

    Each Option shall be in such form and shall contain such terms and conditions as the Board shall deem appropriate. The provisions of
separate Options need not be identical, but each Option shall include (through incorporation of provisions hereof by reference in the Option or
otherwise) the substance of each of the following provisions:

    (a) Term. No Option shall be exercisable after the expiration of ten (10) years from the date it was granted.

    (b) Price. Except as otherwise provided in Section 7 of the Plan, the exercise price of each Option shall be not less than one hundred
percent (100%) of the Fair Market Value of the stock subject to the Option on the date of grant.

    (c) Consideration. The purchase price of stock acquired pursuant to an Option shall be paid, to the extent permitted by applicable statutes
and regulations, either (i) in cash at the time the Option is exercised, or (ii) at the discretion of the Board or the Committee, at the time of the
grant of the Option, (A) by delivery to the Company of other common stock of the Company, (B) according to a deferred payment
arrangement (however, in the event the Company is then incorporated in the state of Delaware, then payment of the common stock's "par
value" as defined in the Delaware General Corporation Law shall not be made by deferred payment), or other arrangement (which may
include, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the use of other common stock of the Company) with the person to whom the Option
is granted or to whom the Option is transferred pursuant to subsection 6(d) or (C) in any other form of legal consideration that may be
acceptable to the Board. Unless otherwise specifically provided in the Option, the purchase price of common stock of the Company acquired
pursuant to an Option that is paid by delivery to the Company of other Company common stock acquired directly or indirectly from the
Company, shall be paid only by shares of common stock of the Company that have been held for more than six (6) months (or such longer or
shorter period of
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time required to avoid a charge to earnings for financial accounting purposes). In the case of any deferred payment arrangement, interest shall
be compounded at least annually and shall be charged at the minimum rate of interest necessary to avoid the treatment as interest, under any
applicable provisions of the Code, of any amounts other than amounts stated to be interest under the deferred payment arrangement.

    (d) Transferability. An Option shall not be transferable except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution, and shall be exercisable
during the lifetime of the person to whom the Option is granted only by such person; provided, however, that an Option may be transferred to
the extent provided in the Option Agreement. The person to whom the Option is granted may, but need not, designate, by delivering written
notice of the same to the Company (in a form acceptable to the Company) during such person's lifetime, a third party who, in the event of the



notice of the same to the Company (in a form acceptable to the Company) during such person's lifetime, a third party who, in the event of the
death of the Optionholder, shall thereafter be entitled to exercise the Option and receive any and all proceeds thereof. If no such designation is
made during the Optionholder's lifetime, the estate or the person to whom the Option is transferred by will or by the laws of descent and
distribution shall, in the event of the death of the Optionholder, thereafter be entitled to exercise the Option and receive any and all proceeds
thereof.

    (e) Vesting. The total number of shares of stock subject to an Option may, but need not, be allotted in periodic installments (which may, but
need not, be equal). From time to time during each of such installment periods, the Option may become exercisable ("vest") with respect to
some or all of the shares allotted to that period, and may be exercised with respect to some or all of the shares allotted to such period and/or
any prior period as to which the Option was not fully exercised. During the remainder of the term of the Option (if its term extends beyond the
end of the installment periods), the Option may be exercised from time to time with respect to any shares then remaining subject to the Option.
The provisions of this subsection 6(e) are subject to any Option provisions governing the minimum number of shares as to which an Option
may be exercised.

    (f)  Termination of Employment or Relationship as a Director or Consultant. In the event an Optionholder's Continuous Service
terminates (other than upon the Optionholder's death or disability), the Optionholder may exercise the Option (to the extent that the
Optionholder was entitled to exercise it as of the date of termination) but only within such period of time ending on the earlier of (i) the date
three (3) months following the termination of the Optionholder's Continuous Service (or such longer or shorter period as specified in the
Option Agreement), or (ii) the expiration of the term of the Option as set forth in the Option Agreement; provided, however, if the
Optionholder is terminated for cause, then the Option shall terminate on the date Optionholder's Continuous Service ceases. If, at the date of
termination, the Optionholder is not entitled to exercise the entire Option, the shares covered by the unexercisable portion of the Option shall
revert to and again become available for issuance under the Plan. If, after termination, the Optionholder does not exercise the Option within the
time specified in the Option Agreement, the Option shall terminate, and the shares covered by such Option shall revert to and again become
available for issuance under the Plan.

    An Optionholder's Option Agreement may also provide that if the exercise of the Option following the termination of the Optionholder's
Continuous Service (other than upon the Optionholder's death or disability) would result in liability under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act,
then the Option shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the expiration of the term of the Option set forth in the Option Agreement, or (ii) the tenth
(10th) day after the last date on which such exercise would result in such liability under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act. Finally, an
Optionholder's Option Agreement may also provide that if the exercise of the Option following the termination of the Optionholder's
Continuous Service (other than upon the Optionholder's death or disability) would be prohibited at any time solely because the issuance of
shares would violate the registration requirements under the Securities Act, then the Option shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the expiration of
the term of the Option set forth in the first paragraph of this subsection 6(f), or (ii) the expiration of a period of three
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(3) months after the termination of the Optionholder's Continuous Service during which the exercise of the Option would not be in violation of
such registration requirements.

    (g) Disability of Optionholder. In the event an Optionholder's Continuous Service terminates as a result of the Optionholder's disability,
the Optionholder may exercise the Option (to the extent that the Optionholder was entitled to exercise it as of the date of termination), but only
within such period of time ending on the earlier of (i) the date twelve (12) months following such termination (or such longer or shorter period
specified in the Option Agreement), or (ii) the expiration of the term of the Option as set forth in the Option Agreement. If, at the date of
termination, the Optionholder is not entitled to exercise the entire Option, the shares covered by the unexercisable portion of the Option shall
revert to and again become available for issuance under the Plan. If, after termination, the Optionholder does not exercise the Option within the
time specified herein, the Option shall terminate, and the shares covered by such Option shall revert to and again become available for issuance
under the Plan.

    (h) Death of Optionholder. In the event of the death of an Optionholder during, or within a period specified in the Option Agreement after
the termination of, the Optionholder's Continuous Service, the Option may be exercised (to the extent the Optionholder was entitled to exercise
the Option as of the date of death) by the Optionholder's estate, by a person who acquired the right to exercise the Option by bequest or
inheritance or by a person designated to exercise the Option upon the Optionholder's death pursuant to subsection 6(d), but only within the
period ending on the earlier of (i) the date eighteen (18) months following the date of death (or such longer or shorter period specified in the
Option Agreement), or (ii) the expiration of the term of such Option as set forth in the Option Agreement. If, at the time of death, the
Optionholder was not entitled to exercise the entire Option, the shares covered by the unexercisable portion of the Option shall revert to and
again become available for issuance under the Plan. If, after death, the Option is not exercised within the time specified herein, the Option shall
terminate, and the shares covered by such Option shall revert to and again become available for issuance under the Plan.
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7.  DEFERRED SALARY GRANTS.

    (a) Any Employee who is selected by the Board or Committee ("Deferral Participant") may elect to apply a portion of his or her base salary,
in an amount equal to at least five thousand dollars ($5,000) but in no event more than fifty thousand dollars ($50,000), to the acquisition of an
Option to purchase shares of the Company's common stock pursuant to the terms of this Section 7 ("Deferred Salary Option"). Such election
is irrevocable and must be filed with the Company prior to the commencement of the calendar year in which the base salary to be deferred is
earned. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a newly hired, elected or appointed Deferral Participant may file an irrevocable election with the
Company within thirty (30) days of the date the Deferral Participant commences employment with the Company.

    Each Deferral Participant who files such a timely election shall automatically be granted an Option under this Section 7 on (i) the first



    Each Deferral Participant who files such a timely election shall automatically be granted an Option under this Section 7 on (i) the first
trading day in January of the calendar year for which the deferral election is to be in effect; or (ii) for a newly hired Deferral Participant, the
first trading day of the month following the month the Deferral Participant files such election.

    (b) The number of shares of Company common stock subject to a Deferred Salary Option shall be determined pursuant to the following
formula (rounded down to the nearest whole number):

X= A / (B × 662/3%), where
X is the number of Option shares,
A is the maximum amount of base salary subject to the deferral election, and
B is the Fair Market Value per share of the common stock on the Option grant date.

    (c) The purchase price per share of common stock of the Company for the shares to be purchased pursuant to the exercise of any Deferred

Salary Option shall be thirty three and one third percent (331/3%) of the fair market value of the Company's common stock on the date such
Deferred Salary Option is granted.

    (d) Each Deferred Salary Option shall vest (become exercisable) equally over the twelve (12) month period that is the calendar year in
which salary is deferred, and shall terminate on the earlier of (i) ten (10) years from the date the Option was granted, or (ii) three (3) years
following termination of the Deferral Participant's employment with the Company or an Affiliate. If the Deferred Salary Option is not
exercised during the applicable period, it shall be deemed to have been forfeited and of no further force or effect.

8.  TERMS OF STOCK BONUSES AND PURCHASES OF RESTRICTED STOCK.

    Each stock bonus or restricted stock purchase agreement shall be in such form and shall contain such terms and conditions as the Board or
the Committee shall deem appropriate. The terms and conditions of stock bonus or restricted stock purchase agreements may change from time
to time, and the terms and conditions of separate agreements need not be identical, but each stock bonus or restricted stock purchase agreement
shall include (through incorporation of provisions hereof by reference in the agreement or otherwise) the substance of each of the following
provisions as appropriate:

    (a) Purchase Price.  The purchase price under each restricted stock purchase agreement shall be such amount as the Board or Committee
shall determine and designate in such Stock Award Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board or the Committee may determine
that eligible participants in the Plan may be awarded stock pursuant to a stock bonus agreement in consideration for past services actually
rendered to the Company or for its benefit.

    (b) Transferability.  No rights under a stock bonus or restricted stock purchase agreement shall be transferable by any participant under
the Plan, either voluntarily or by operation of law, except
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where such assignment is required by law or expressly authorized by the terms of the applicable Stock Award Agreement.

    (c) Consideration.  The purchase price of stock acquired pursuant to a stock purchase agreement shall be paid either: (i) in cash at the time
of purchase; (ii) at the discretion of the Board or the Committee, according to a deferred payment arrangement or other arrangement with the
person to whom the stock is sold; or (iii) in any other form of legal consideration that may be acceptable to the Board or the Committee in its
discretion. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board or the Committee to which administration of the Plan has been delegated may award
stock pursuant to a stock bonus agreement in consideration for past services actually rendered to the Company or for its benefit.

    (d) Vesting.  Shares of stock sold or awarded under the Plan may, but need not, be subject to a repurchase option in favor of the Company
in accordance with a vesting schedule to be determined by the Board or the Committee.

    (e) Termination of Employment or Relationship as a Director or Consultant. In the event an Optionholder's Continuous Service
terminates, the Company may repurchase or otherwise reacquire any or all of the shares of stock held by that person which have not vested as
of the date of termination under the terms of the stock bonus or restricted stock purchase agreement between the Company and such person.

9.  COVENANTS OF THE COMPANY.

    (a) During the terms of the Stock Awards, the Company shall keep available at all times the number of shares of stock required to satisfy
such Stock Awards up to the number of shares of stock authorized under the Plan.

    (b) The Company shall seek to obtain from each regulatory commission or agency having jurisdiction over the Plan such authority as may
be required to issue and sell shares of stock upon exercise of the Stock Award; provided, however, that this undertaking shall not require the
Company to register under the Securities Act either the Plan, any Stock Award granted under the Plan or any stock issued or issuable pursuant
to any such Stock Award. If, after reasonable efforts, the Company is unable to obtain from any such regulatory commission or agency the
authority which counsel for the Company deems necessary for the lawful issuance and sale of stock under the Plan, the Company shall be
relieved from any liability for failure to issue and sell stock upon exercise of such Stock Awards unless and until such authority is obtained.

10.  USE OF PROCEEDS FROM STOCK.

    Proceeds from the sale of stock pursuant to Stock Awards shall constitute general funds of the Company.



11.  MISCELLANEOUS.

    (a) The Board shall have the power to accelerate the time at which a Stock Award may first be exercised or the time during which a Stock
Award or any part thereof will vest, notwithstanding the provisions in the Stock Award stating the time at which it may first be exercised or
the time during which it will vest.

    (b) No Employee, Director or Consultant or any person to whom a Stock Award is transferred under subsection 6(d) or 8(b) shall be
deemed to be the holder of, or to have any of the rights of a holder with respect to, any shares subject to such Stock Award unless and until
such person has satisfied all requirements for exercise of the Stock Award pursuant to its terms.
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    (c) Nothing in the Plan or any instrument executed or Stock Award granted pursuant thereto shall confer upon any Employee or Consultant
or other holder of Stock Awards any right to continue to serve the Company or any Affiliate in the capacity in effect at the time the Stock
Award was granted or shall affect the right of the Company or any Affiliate to terminate (i) the employment of any Employee with or without
cause, or (ii) the service of a Consultant subject to the terms of such Consultant's agreement with the Company or any Affiliate. In the event
that a holder of Stock Awards is permitted or otherwise entitled to take a leave of absence, the Board or Committee shall have the unilateral
right to (i) determine whether such leave of absence will be treated as a termination of employment or relationship as consultant for purposes
of the Plan and corresponding provisions of any outstanding Stock Awards, and (ii) suspend or otherwise delay the time or times at which the
shares subject to the Stock Awards would otherwise vest. The status of any person as an eligible Employee or Consultant shall not be
construed as a commitment that any Stock Award will be granted under the Plan to such eligible Employee or Consultant, or to eligible
Employees or Consultants generally.

    (d) Payments and other benefits received by an Optionholder under the Plan or under an Option granted pursuant to the Plan shall not be
deemed a part of an Optionholder's regular, recurring compensation for purposes of the termination, indemnity or severance pay law of any
country and shall not be included in, nor have any effect on, the determination of benefits under any other employee benefit plan, contract or
similar arrangement provided by the Company or a Group Company, unless expressly so provided by such other plan, contract or
arrangement, or unless the Board expressly determines that an Option or portion of an Option should be included to reflect competitive
compensation practices or to recognize that an Option has been granted in lieu of a portion of competitive cash compensation.

    (e) The Company may require any person to whom a Stock Award is granted, or any person to whom a Stock Award is transferred
pursuant to subsection 6(d) or 8(b), as a condition of exercising or acquiring stock under any Stock Award, (1) to give written assurances
satisfactory to the Company as to such person's knowledge and experience in financial and business matters and/or to employ a purchaser
representative reasonably satisfactory to the Company who is knowledgeable and experienced in financial and business matters, and that he or
she is capable of evaluating, alone or together with the purchaser representative, the merits and risks of exercising the Stock Award; and (2) to
give written assurances satisfactory to the Company stating that such person is acquiring the stock subject to the Stock Award for such
person's own account and not with any present intention of selling or otherwise distributing the stock. The foregoing requirements, and any
assurances given pursuant to such requirements, shall be inoperative if (i) the issuance of the shares upon the exercise of the Option has been
registered under a then currently effective registration statement under the Securities Act, or (ii) as to any particular requirement, a
determination is made by counsel for the Company that such requirement need not be met in the circumstances under the then applicable
securities laws.

    (f)  To the extent provided by the terms of a Stock Award Agreement, the person to whom a Stock Award is granted may satisfy any
federal, state or local tax withholding obligation relating to the exercise or acquisition of stock under a Stock Award by any of the following
means or by a combination of such means: (1) tendering a cash payment; (2) authorizing the Company to withhold shares from the shares of
the common stock otherwise issuable to the participant as a result of the exercise or acquisition of stock under the Stock Award; or
(3) delivering to the Company owned and unencumbered shares of Company common stock. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company
shall not be authorized to withhold shares of Common Stock at rates in excess of the minimum statutory withholding rates for federal and state
tax purposes, including payroll taxes.

12.  ADJUSTMENTS UPON CHANGES IN STOCK.

    (a) If any change is made in the stock subject to the Plan, or subject to any Stock Award (through merger, consolidation, reorganization,
recapitalization, reincorporation, stock dividend, dividend in
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property other than cash, stock split, liquidating dividend, combination of shares, exchange of shares, change in corporate structure or other
transaction not involving the receipt of consideration by the Company), the Plan shall automatically be adjusted as appropriate in the type(s)
and maximum number of securities subject to the Plan pursuant to subsection 4(a) and the outstanding Stock Awards will be appropriately
adjusted in the type(s) and number of securities and price per share of stock subject to such outstanding Stock Awards. (The conversion of
any convertible securities of the Company shall not be treated as a "transaction not involving the receipt of consideration by the Company.")

    (b) In the event of (1) a dissolution or liquidation of the Company; (2) a merger or consolidation in which the Company is not the surviving
corporation; (3) a reverse merger in which the Company is the surviving corporation but the shares of the Company's common stock
outstanding immediately preceding the merger are converted by virtue of the merger into other property, whether in the form of securities, cash
or otherwise; or (4) any other capital reorganization in which more than fifty percent (50%) of the shares of the Company entitled to vote are
exchanged, excluding in each case a capital reorganization in which the sole purpose is to change the state of incorporation of the Company,
then all outstanding Stock Awards shall become vested and exercisable in full for a period of at least ten (10) days. Outstanding Stock Awards



then all outstanding Stock Awards shall become vested and exercisable in full for a period of at least ten (10) days. Outstanding Stock Awards
that have not been exercised prior to such event shall terminate on the date of such event unless assumed by a successor corporation.

13.  AMENDMENT OF THE PLAN AND STOCK AWARDS.

    (a) The Board at any time, and from time to time, may amend the Plan. However, except as provided in Section 12 relating to adjustments
upon changes in stock, no amendment shall be effective unless approved by the stockholders of the Company to the extent stockholder
approval is necessary for the Plan to satisfy the requirements of Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act or any Nasdaq or securities exchange listing
requirements.

    (b) Rights and obligations under any Stock Award granted before amendment of the Plan shall not be impaired by any amendment of the
Plan unless (i) the Company requests the consent of the person to whom the Stock Award was granted and (ii) such person consents in
writing.

    (c) The Board at any time, and from time to time, may amend the terms of any one or more Stock Award; provided, however, that the rights
and obligations under any Stock Award shall not be impaired by any such amendment unless (i) the Company requests the consent of the
person to whom the Stock Award was granted and (ii) such person consents in writing.

14.  TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE PLAN.

    (a) The Board may suspend or terminate the Plan at any time. No Stock Awards may be granted under the Plan while the Plan is suspended
or after it is terminated.

    (b) Rights and obligations under any Stock Award granted while the Plan is in effect shall not be impaired by suspension or termination of
the Plan, except with the written consent of the person to whom the Stock Award was granted.

15.  EFFECTIVE DATE OF PLAN.

    The Plan shall become effective on the date on which it is adopted by the Board.
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Exhibit 10.10

EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

    This EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is entered into as of the      day of December, 2000 (the "Effective
Date"), by and between EXAR CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), and DONALD L. CIFFONE, JR.
("Executive").

    WHEREAS, the Company desires to continue to employ Executive to provide executive management services to the Company and wishes
to provide Executive with certain compensation and benefits in return for Executive's continued services; and

    WHEREAS, Executive wishes to continue to be employed by the Company and provide executive management services to the Company in
return for certain compensation and benefits;

    NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein, it is hereby agreed by and between the
parties hereto as follows:

ARTICLE 1 

DEFINITIONS 

    For purposes of the Agreement, the following terms are defined as follows:

    1.1  "Board" means the Board of Directors of the Company.

    1.2  "Cause" means misconduct, including: (i) conviction of any felony or any crime involving moral turpitude or dishonesty;
(ii) participation in a fraud or act of dishonesty against the Company; (iii) willful breach of the Company's policies; (iv) intentional damage to
the Company's property; (v) a material breach of the Proprietary Rights and Nondisclosure Agreement dated October 21, 1996, between the
Company and Executive; or (vi) conduct which in the good faith and reasonable determination of the Board demonstrates unacceptable job
performance or unfitness to serve. Physical or mental disability shall not constitute "Cause."

    1.3  "Change of Control" means (i) a merger or consolidation in which the Company is not the surviving corporation; (ii) a reverse
merger in which the Company is the surviving corporation but the shares of the Company's common stock outstanding immediately preceding
the merger are converted by virtue of the merger into other property, whether in the form of securities, cash or otherwise; (iv) any other capital
reorganization in which more than fifty percent (50%) of the shares of the Company entitled to vote are exchanged, excluding in each case a
capital reorganization in which the sole purpose is to change the state of incorporation of the Company, and in each case Executive is not
offered a similar executive level position with the surviving entity.

    1.4  "Change of Control Plan" means the Exar Corporation Executive Officers' Change of Control Severance Benefit Plan, adopted
effective as of June 24, 1999 by the Company for the benefit of certain of its eligible executive employees.

    1.5  "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

    1.6  "Common Stock" means the common stock of the Company.

    1.7  "Company" means Exar Corporation, a Delaware corporation, or, following a Change of Control, the surviving entity resulting from
such transaction.

    1.8  "Consulting Agreement" means the Consulting Agreement entered into by and between the Company and Executive, substantially in
the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. Service under the Consulting Agreement shall commence as of the termination of Executive's
employment with the Company, provided that such termination is not for Cause, and further provided that such termination is not covered by
Section 4.2 hereof.

    1.9  "Executive Incentive Program" means the Executive Incentive Compensation Program maintained by the Company for the benefit of
its eligible executive employees.

    1.10  "Fiscal Year" means the twelve (12) month period ending on each March 31.

    1.11  "Good Reason" means any one of the following events which occurs within thirteen (13) months after the effective date of a Change
of Control: (i) any reduction of Executive's rate of total compensation (including base salary and stock options); (ii) any material reduction in
the package of welfare benefit plans, taken as a whole, provided to Executive (except that the terms of benefits, including without limitation
employee contributions, may be changed to the extent required by third party providers) or any action by the Company that would materially
adversely affect Executive's participation or materially reduce Executive's benefits under any of such plans; (iii) any material change in
Executive's responsibilities, duties, authority, title, reporting relationship or offices resulting in any diminution of position (including, but not



Executive's responsibilities, duties, authority, title, reporting relationship or offices resulting in any diminution of position (including, but not
limited to, a change of responsibility from company-wide responsibility to division-level responsibility); (iv) request that Executive relocate to
a worksite that is both more than thirty-five (35) miles from Executive's prior worksite and more than thirty-five (35) miles from Executive's
personal residence (as of the Effective Date), unless Executive accepts such relocation opportunity; (v) failure or refusal of a successor to the
Company to assume the Company's obligations under this Agreement; or (vii) material breach by the Company or any successor to the
Company of any of the material provisions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 2 

EMPLOYMENT BY THE COMPANY 

    2.1  Position and Duties.  Subject to the terms set forth herein, the Company agrees to continue to employ Executive in the position of
President and Chief Executive Officer, and Executive hereby accepts such employment. Executive shall serve in an executive capacity, shall
continue to perform such duties as are customarily associated with the position of President and Chief Executive Officer and such other duties
as are assigned to Executive by the Board, and shall report solely and directly to the Board. During the term of this Agreement, Executive shall
devote his best efforts and substantially all of his business time and attention (except for vacation periods as set forth herein and reasonable
periods of illness or other incapacities permitted by the Company's general employment policies or as otherwise set forth in this Agreement)
solely to the business of the Company.

    2.2  Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue until the earlier of (i) the termination of
Executive's employment with the Company or (ii) March 31, 2004. Within a reasonable period of time prior to September 30, 2003, provided
that Executive's employment has not then terminated, Executive and the Company shall commence negotiations in order to determine, no later
than September 30, 2003, whether to renew this Agreement immediately following its scheduled termination date on March 31, 2004 or to
continue Executive's employment without a written agreement; provided, however, that a failure to renew this Agreement shall in no way
prevent either the continuation of this Agreement through March 31, 2004 or the continuation of the employment relationship beyond such
date without a written agreement. Executive's service under the Consulting Agreement shall commence as of the termination of Executive's
employment with the Company, provided that his employment is not terminated for Cause, and further provided that such termination is not
covered by either Section 4.1 or 4.2 hereof.

    2.3  Employment at Will.  Executive's employment is at will, and both the Company and Executive shall have the right to terminate, with
written notice, Executive's employment with the Company at any time, and for any reason, with or without Cause. If Executive's employment
with the Company is terminated, Executive shall be eligible to receive severance benefits only to the extent provided in Article 4 of this
Agreement.
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    2.4  Employment Policies.  The employment relationship between the parties shall also be governed by the general employment policies
and practices of the Company, including those relating to protection of confidential information and assignment of inventions, except that to
the extent that the terms of this Agreement differ from or are in conflict with the Company's general employment policies or practices, this
Agreement shall control.

ARTICLE 3 

COMPENSATION 

    3.1  Base Salary.  Executive shall receive for continued employment with the Company, during the term of this Agreement, a base salary at
an annual (July 1-June 30) rate of six hundred fifteen thousand dollars ($615,000), payable in equal installments on the regular payroll dates
of the Company, which payroll dates shall occur at least twice monthly, subject to applicable tax withholding. Such base salary (the "Annual
Base Salary") shall be subject to increase as determined by the Board during the annual focal review period.

    3.2  Incentive Compensation Payment.  During the term of this Agreement, Executive shall be eligible to receive an annual target
incentive compensation payment for each Fiscal Year, beginning with the Fiscal Year ending March 31, 2002, and continuing through and
including the Fiscal Year ending March 31, 2004, the amount of which incentive compensation payment shall be determined pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the Company's Executive Incentive Program based on a target award percentage equal to seventy-five percent (75%).

    3.3  Stock Option Grant.  The Board shall grant to Executive (i) on the Effective Date an option to purchase three hundred thousand
(300,000) shares of Common Stock with an exercise price to be determined by the Board equal to the fair market value of Common Stock on
the Effective Date, which option shall vest on each monthly anniversary date of the Effective Date as to 1/36 of the shares of Common Stock,
and (ii) on each April 1 following the Effective Date, beginning with April 1, 2001, and continuing through and including April 1, 2003, an
option to purchase one hundred thousand (100,000) shares of Common Stock with an exercise price to be determined by the Board equal to
the fair market value of Common Stock on the relevant April 1, which option shall vest on each monthly anniversary date of the relevant
April 1 as to 1/36 of the shares of Common Stock subject to the option. Grants pursuant to the preceding clause (ii) shall be subject to
appropriate adjustment in the event of a change to the Company's Common Stock without the receipt of consideration by the Company
(through merger, consolidation, reorganization, recapitalization, reincorporation, stock dividend, dividend in property other than cash, stock
split, liquidating dividend, combination of shares, exchange of shares, change in corporate structure or other transactions not involving the
receipt of consideration by the Company). Options granted pursuant to this Section 3.3 shall be granted under, and shall be subject to the terms
of, the Company's 2000 Equity Incentive Plan and Executive's Stock Option Agreement thereunder.



    3.4  Professional Services.  The Company shall, during the term of this Agreement, reimburse Executive in an amount not to exceed ten
thousand dollars ($10,000) per Fiscal Year for documented costs incurred by Executive for obtaining professional services, including, but not
limited to, legal, tax planning, accounting and investment services.

    3.5  Standard Company Benefits.  During the term of this Agreement, Executive shall be entitled to all rights and benefits for which he is
eligible under the terms and conditions of the standard Company benefits and compensation practices that may be in effect from time to time
and are provided by the Company to its executive employees generally, including health, disability, life and
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accidental death insurance coverage. In addition, Executive shall be entitled to receive the following benefits during the term of this Agreement:

    (a) the Company shall provide Executive with four (4) weeks' paid vacation for each Fiscal Year (plus paid holidays), which
Executive may take in accordance with the Company's standard policy regarding vacation time;

    (b) the Company shall provide Executive with life insurance coverage pursuant to a term life insurance policy in an amount equal to
one million dollars ($1,000,000).

    (c) the Company shall provide Executive with a monthly automobile allowance equal to three thousand dollars ($3,000); and

    (d) the Company, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Company's Executive Health Plan, shall reimburse Executive up to ten
thousand dollars ($10,000) for each Fiscal Year for the documented cost of covered medical expenses, without the need for any
contribution by Executive.

    3.6  Employment Beyond Termination Date of this Agreement.  Sections 3.4 and 3.5 shall continue to apply to Executive for so long as
he is employed by the Company, whether or not pursuant to this Agreement.

ARTICLE 4 

SEVERANCE AND CHANGE OF CONTROL BENEFITS 

    4.1  Severance Benefits for Certain Terminations Without Regard to Change of Control.  If Executive's employment is terminated by
the Company without Cause during the term of this Agreement and prior to the effective date of a Change of Control, Executive shall, within
thirty (30) days following the date on which the Release described in Section 4.3 becomes effective in accordance with its terms, receive the
following severance benefits: (i) a lump sum payment equal to the sum of Executive's Annual Base Salary as in effect during the last regularly
scheduled payroll period immediately preceding the termination of Executive's employment plus an additional amount equal to (A) if
Executive's employment is terminated prior to October 1, the greater of the incentive compensation payment actually paid to Executive under
the Executive Incentive Program for the last Fiscal Year ending with or prior to the termination date of Executive's employment or the target
incentive compensation payment for such last Fiscal Year, or (B) if Executive's employment is terminated on or after October 1, the greater of
the target incentive compensation payment that Executive could become entitled to receive under the Executive Incentive Program for the Fiscal
Year in which Executive's employment is terminated or the incentive compensation payment actually paid to Executive under the Executive
Incentive Program for the last Fiscal Year ending with or prior to the termination date of Executive's employment, such lump sum payment to
be subject to applicable tax withholding; and (ii) Executive shall be credited with twelve (12) months of additional vesting under all unvested
outstanding options to purchase Common Stock then held by Executive, and all options held by Executive shall be exercisable for up to fifteen
(15) months following the termination of Executive's employment. For purposes of clause (ii) in the preceding sentence, Executive shall
receive the option vesting credit and continued option exercisability therein provided only if Executive has executed the Consulting Agreement,
and in the event of termination of the Consulting Agreement for any reason, such vesting credit shall cease and continued option exercisability
shall be determined solely in accordance with the terms of grant of the then outstanding vested options.

    4.2  Severance Benefits for Certain Terminations Within Thirteen (13) Months Following Change of Control.

    (a)  Severance Benefits.  If Executive's employment is terminated by the Company without Cause or by the Executive for Good
Reason, in either case within thirteen (13) months following
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the effective date of a Change of Control and during the term of this Agreement, Executive shall, within thirty (30) days following the
date on which the Release described in Section 4.3 becomes effective in accordance with its terms, receive the following severance
benefits: (i) a lump sum payment equal to two (2) times the sum of Executive's Annual Base Salary as in effect during the last regularly
scheduled payroll period immediately preceding the termination date of Executive's employment plus an additional amount equal to
(A) if Executive's employment is terminated prior to October 1, the greater of the incentive compensation payment actually paid to
Executive under the Executive Incentive Program for the last Fiscal Year ending with or prior to the termination date of Executive's
employment or the target incentive compensation payment for such last Fiscal Year, or (B) if Executive's employment is terminated on
or after October 1, the greater of the target incentive compensation payment that Executive could become entitled to receive under the
Executive Incentive Program for the Fiscal Year in which Executive's employment is terminated or the incentive compensation
payment actually paid to Executive under the Executive Incentive Program for the last Fiscal Year ending with or prior to the
termination date of Executive's employment, such lump sum payment to be subject to applicable tax withholding; and (ii) the vesting



termination date of Executive's employment, such lump sum payment to be subject to applicable tax withholding; and (ii) the vesting
and exercisability of all unvested outstanding options to purchase Common Stock then held by Executive shall be fully accelerated.

    (b)  Tax Gross-Up Payment.  In the event it shall be determined, either by the Company or by a final determination of the Internal
Revenue Service, that any payment, distribution or benefit by or from the Company to or for the benefit of Executive pursuant to
Section 4.2(a) or otherwise (the "Payment") would cause Executive to become subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the
Code (the "Excise Tax"), then the Company shall pay to or for the benefit of Executive, within the later of ninety (90) days of the
termination date of Executive's employment or ninety (90) days of the date of determination referred to above, an additional amount
(the "Gross-Up Payment") in an amount that shall fund the payment by Executive of any Excise Tax on the Payment, as well as any
income taxes imposed on the Gross-Up Payment, any Excise Tax imposed on the Gross-Up Payment and any interest or penalties
imposed with respect to taxes on the Gross-Up Payment or any Excise Tax. For purposes of determining the amount of the Gross-Up
Payment, Executive shall be deemed to pay federal, state and local income taxes at the highest nominal marginal rate of such federal,
state and local income taxation in the calendar year in which the Gross-Up Payment is due, net of the maximum reduction in federal
income taxes which could be obtained from deduction of such state and local taxes. In the event that the Excise Tax is subsequently
determined to be less than the amount taken into account to determine the amount of the Gross-Up Payment, then Executive shall repay
to the Company at that time the portion of the Gross-Up Payment attributable to such reduction (plus an amount equal to any tax
reduction, whether of the Excise Tax, any applicable income tax, or any applicable employment tax, which Executive has received as a
result of such initial repayment). In the event that the Excise Tax is subsequently determined, whether by the Company or by a final
determination of the Internal Revenue Service, to be more than the amount taken into account to determine the amount of the Gross-Up
Payment, then the Company shall pay to Executive an additional amount, which shall be determined using the same methods as were
used for calculating the Gross-Up Payment, with respect to such excess. For purposes of this Section 4(b), a determination of the
Internal Revenue Service as to the amount of Excise Tax for which an Executive is liable shall not be treated as final until the time that
either (i) the Company agrees to acquiesce to the determination of the Internal Revenue Service or (ii) the determination of the Internal
Revenue Service has been upheld in a court of competent jurisdiction and the Company decides not to appeal such judicial decision or
such decision is not appealable. If the Company chooses to contest the determination of the Internal Revenue Service, then all costs,
attorneys' fees, charges assessed and other expenses shall be borne and paid when due by the Company.
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    4.3  Release.  Upon the occurrence of a termination that would entitle Executive to receive severance benefits pursuant to Sections 4.1 or
4.2 that are conditioned upon the execution of an effective release, and prior to the receipt of such severance benefits, Executive shall execute a
release (the "Release") in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B or Exhibit C, as appropriate. Such Release shall specifically relate to all of
Executive's rights and claims in existence at the time of such execution and shall confirm Executive's obligations under the Company's
standard form of proprietary information agreement. It is understood that Executive has a certain period to consider whether to execute such
Release, and Executive may revoke such Release within seven (7) days after execution. In the event Executive does not execute such Release
within the applicable period, or if Executive revokes such Release within the subsequent seven (7) day period, none of the aforesaid benefits
shall be payable under this Agreement.

    4.4  Mitigation.  Executive shall not be required to mitigate damages or the amount of any payment provided under this Agreement by
seeking other employment or otherwise, nor shall the amount of any payment provided for under this Agreement be reduced by any
compensation earned by Executive as a result of employment by another employer or otherwise.

    4.5  Other Terminations.  Only terminations of employment described in the foregoing provisions of this Article 4 shall entitle Executive
to severance benefits pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Accordingly, terminations for any reason not so described (such as, without
limitation, on account of Executive's disability or death) shall not entitle Executive to such severance benefits; provided, however, that the
provisions of this Article 4 shall continue to apply to Executive with respect to terminations of employment with the Company described in
Sections 4.1 and 4.2 even if, at the time of such termination, Executive is not employed pursuant to this Agreement.

6

ARTICLE 5 

OUTSIDE ACTIVITIES 

    During the term of Executive's employment by the Company and continuing through the term of the Consulting Agreement, except on
behalf of the Company, Executive shall not directly or indirectly, whether as an officer, director, employee, stockholder, partner, proprietor,
associate, representative, consultant, or in any capacity whatsoever engage in, become financially interested in, be employed by or have any
business connection with any other person, corporation, firm, partnership or other entity whatsoever that was known by Executive to compete
directly with the Company, throughout the world, in any line of business engaged in (or planned to be engaged in) by the Company.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive may own, as a passive investor, securities of any competitor corporation, so long as Executive's
direct holdings in any one such corporation shall not in the aggregate constitute more than 1% of the voting stock of such corporation. In
addition, Executive may, with approval of the Board, serve as a director on the boards of directors of other corporations and business entities
so long as such corporations or business entities do not compete directly with the Company, in any area of the world, in any line of business
engaged in (or planned to be engaged in) by the Company, and so long as such service does not materially interfere with the performance of
Executive's duties hereunder. Executive also may engage in civic and not-for-profit activities so long as such activities do not materially
interfere with the performance of Executive's duties hereunder.

ARTICLE 6 



NONINTERFERENCE 

    While employed by the Company, and for one (1) year immediately following the date on which Executive terminates employment or
otherwise ceases providing services to the Company, Executive agrees not to interfere with the business of the Company by soliciting or
attempting to solicit any employee of the Company to terminate such employee's employment in order to become an employee of or a
consultant or independent contractor to or for any person, corporation, firm, partnership or other entity whatsoever. Executive's duties under
this Article 6 shall survive termination of Executive's employment with the Company and the termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 7 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

    7.1  Notices.  Subject to the remaining provisions of this Section 7.1, any notices provided hereunder must be in writing and shall be
deemed effective upon the earlier of personal delivery (including personal delivery by telex) or the third day after mailing by first class mail, to
the Company at its primary office location and to Executive at Executive's address as listed on the Company payroll. Any termination by the
Company, whether or not for Cause, or by Executive for Good Reason, shall be communicated by a Notice of Termination to the other party
hereto given by hand delivery or by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, if to the Executive, then to Executive
at his address as set forth in the Company's records, and, if to the Company, to Exar Corporation, 48720 Kato Road, Fremont, California
94538 Attention: Law Department. For purposes of this Agreement, a Notice of Termination means a written notice which (i) indicates the
specific termination provision in the Agreement relied upon and (ii) if the termination date of Executive's employment is other than the date of
receipt of such notice, specifies such termination date (which date shall be not more than fifteen (15) days after the giving of such notice). The
failure by the Company or Executive to set forth in the Notice of Termination any fact or circumstance which contributes to a showing of
Cause or of Good Reason shall not waive any right of the Company or of Executive, respectively, or preclude the Company or Executive,
respectively, from asserting such fact or circumstance in enforcing its or his rights under this Agreement.
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    7.2  Severability.  Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement will be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid
under applicable law, but if any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect under any applicable
law or rule in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability will not affect any other provision or any other jurisdiction, but this
Agreement will be reformed, construed and enforced in such jurisdiction as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provisions had never been
contained herein.

    7.3  Waiver.  If either party should waive any breach of any provisions of this Agreement, they shall not thereby be deemed to have waived
any preceding or succeeding breach of the same or any other provision of this Agreement, unless such waiver is agreed to in writing by both
parties.

    7.4  Complete Agreement.  As of the Effective Date, this Agreement wholly supersedes and renders without further force or effect the
letters dated September 9, 1996 and September 10, 1996 from the Company to Executive (which letters set forth, respectively, the terms of
Executive's employment by the Company and Executive's severance benefits following either a Change of Control or the termination of his
employment without cause), the Change of Control Plan, to the extent that it may apply to Executive, and all other agreements relating to
compensation and benefits between the Company and Executive, constitutes the entire agreement between Executive and the Company and is
the complete, final, and exclusive embodiment of their agreement with regard to this subject matter. This Agreement is entered into without
reliance on any promise or representation other than those expressly contained herein or therein, and it cannot be modified or amended except
in a writing signed by Executive and by an officer of the Company.

    7.5  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in separate counterparts, any one of which need not contain signatures of more than
one party, but all of which taken together will constitute one and the same Agreement.

    7.6  Headings.  The headings of the sections hereof are inserted for convenience only and shall not be deemed to constitute a part hereof
nor to affect the meaning thereof.

    7.7  Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement is intended to bind and inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by Executive and the
Company, and their respective successors, assigns, heirs, executors and administrators, except that (i) Executive may not assign any of
Executive's duties hereunder and Executive may not assign any of Executive's rights hereunder, without the written consent of the Company,
which shall not be withheld unreasonably and (ii) the Company may assign its rights and duties hereunder only to a parent or subsidiary of the
Company or to a corporation or other entity that will become the Company's successor in interest due to a merger, consolidation, acquisition or
similar transaction.

    7.8  Arbitration.  Unless otherwise prohibited by law or specified below, all disputes, claims and causes of action, in law or equity, arising
from or relating to this Agreement or its enforcement, performance, breach, or interpretation shall be resolved solely and exclusively by final
and binding arbitration held in Santa Clara County, California through Judicial Arbitration & Mediation Services/Endispute ("JAMS") under
the then existing JAMS arbitration rules. However, nothing in this section is intended to prevent either party from obtaining injunctive relief in
court to prevent irreparable harm pending the conclusion of any such arbitration. Each party in any such arbitration shall be responsible for its
own attorneys' fees, costs and necessary disbursement; provided, however, that if one party refuses to arbitrate and the other party seeks to
compel arbitration by court order, if such other party prevails, it shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys' fees, costs and necessary
disbursements. Pursuant to California Civil Code Section 1717, each party warrants that it was represented by counsel in the negotiation and
execution of this Agreement, including the attorneys' fees provision herein.



execution of this Agreement, including the attorneys' fees provision herein.
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    7.9  Attorneys' Fees.  If either party hereto brings any action to enforce rights hereunder, each party in any such action shall be responsible
for its own attorneys' fees and costs incurred in connection with such action.

    7.10  Choice of Law.  All questions concerning the construction, validity and interpretation of this Agreement will be governed by the law
of the State of California without regard to its principles of conflicts of law.

    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

  EXAR CORPORATION
  By:   
    
  Date:   
    
ACCEPTED AND AGREED THIS
          DAY OF DECEMBER, 2000  

  
 

DONALD L. CIFFONE, JR.  

  

 

Exhibit A: Consulting Agreement
Exhibit B: Release (Individual Termination)
Exhibit C: Release (Group Termination)
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EXHIBIT A
CONSULTING AGREEMENT 

CONSULTING AGREEMENT

    This CONSULTING AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made as of the        day of             , 200      , by and between EXAR
CORPORATION, including its affiliates and wholly owned subsidiaries, a Delaware corporation, with its principal place of business at
48720 Kato Road, Fremont, California 94538 (the "Company"), and DONALD L. CIFFONE, JR., an individual residing at                         
(the "Consultant").

    FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual promises and conditions set forth below, the Company and Consultant agree as follows:

1.
SERVICES

    The Company agrees to retain Consultant for the term specified in Section 2 to render services to the Company in the field of Consultant's
expertise for the purpose of providing executive management services. Consultant shall exercise his best skill and judgment in performing
such services under this Agreement.

2.
TERM

    The Effective Date of this Agreement shall be the date on which Consultant's employment with the Company is terminated pursuant to the
Executive Employment Agreement entered into as of December 6, 2000 between the Company and Executive (the "Employment Agreement");
provided, however, that the Effective Date shall not occur and this Agreement shall have no force or effect in the event that Consultant's
employment with the Company is terminated by the Company for Cause, as such term is defined in the Employment Agreement, or on account
of Consultant's death or disability. Consultant's service under this Agreement shall continue until the one (1) year anniversary of the Effective
Date, unless terminated earlier as provided in Section 5, although the parties hereto may agree in writing to extend the term of Consultant's
service under this Agreement. Consultant's commencement and continuation of service under this Agreement shall constitute continuous
service with the Company for purposes of continued vesting and exercisability of any outstanding Company stock options or Company
restricted stock held by Consultant as of the Effective Date.

3.
CONSULTING FEES

    The Company will pay Consultant consulting fees in an amount equal to one thousand dollars ($1,000) per month during the term of this
Agreement, payable within thirty (30) days of the Company's receipt from Consultant of an invoice for the relevant month, which invoice shall
be in a form acceptable to the Company. Payment to Consultant shall be mailed to his address, as listed in Section 10.



4.
RELATIONSHIP

    Consultant's relationship with the Company during the term of this Agreement is that of an independent contractor, and nothing stated or
implied herein shall be construed to make Consultant an employee (common law or otherwise) of the Company (or any affiliated company)
within the meaning or application of any national or state unemployment insurance law, old age benefit law, workmen's compensation or
industrial accident law, or other industrial or labor law, any tax law, or any employee benefit plan maintained by the Company. Consultant
hereby acknowledges his status as an independent contractor, and not as an employee (common law or otherwise), of the Company during the
term of this Agreement. Consultant hereby waives, during the term of this Agreement, any claim for benefits or rights extended to employees
of the Company to the extent that such benefits or rights are not provided to Consultant under this Agreement.
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    While Consultant shall control the detail, manner, and method of performing the services to be rendered, it is understood that all services
performed under this Agreement shall be subject to inspection by and approval of the Company.

5.
TERMINATION

    (a) Either party may, at its option, terminate this Agreement if the other party: (i) defaults in the performance of a material obligation
hereunder, provided such default has not been corrected within thirty (30) days after receipt of notice describing such default; (ii) becomes a
party to any proceeding involving his or its bankruptcy or other insolvency; or (iii) ceases to be actively engaged in business or financially
incapable of fulfilling its obligations under this Agreement.

    (b) Nothing contained herein shall limit any other remedies that either party may have for the default of the other party under this
Agreement.

6.
CONFIDENTIALITY

    The nature of the work performed and any information belonging to the Company or any third party with which Consultant may become
familiar will be treated as confidential and may not be disclosed without the written consent of the Company, except as provided herein.
Consultant agrees to keep in strictest confidence all information relating to the business affairs of the Company which may be acquired in
connection with or as a result of this Agreement. During the term of this Agreement and at any time thereafter, without the prior written
consent of the Company, Consultant will not publish, communicate, divulge, disclose or use any of such information which has been
designated as secret, confidential or proprietary, or from the surrounding circumstances of which ought to be treated as secret or confidential.

7.
NON-SOLICITATION/HIRE

    During the term of this Agreement, and for one (1) year following the date on which Consultant's services under this Agreement are
terminated, Consultant agrees not to interfere with the business of the Company by soliciting or attempting to solicit any employee of the
Company to terminate such employee's employment in order to become an employee of or a consultant or independent contractor to or for any
person, corporation, firm, partnership or other entity whatsoever. Consultant's duties under this Section 7 shall survive termination of
Consultant's services for the Company and the termination of this Agreement.

8.
NONCOMPETE

    During the term of this Agreement, except on behalf of the Company, Consultant shall not directly or indirectly, whether as an officer,
director, employee, stockholder, partner, proprietor, associate, representative, consultant, or in any capacity whatsoever engage in, become
financially interested in, be employed by or have any business connection with any other person, corporation, firm, partnership or other entity
whatsoever that was known by Consultant to compete directly with the Company, throughout the world, in any line of business engaged in (or
planned to be engaged in) by the Company. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, Consultant may own, as a passive investor, securities of
any competitor corporation, so long as Consultant's direct holdings in any one such corporation shall not in the aggregate constitute more than
1% of the voting stock of such corporation. In addition, Consultant may, with approval of the Board of Directors of the Company, serve as a
director on the boards of directors of other corporations and business entities so long as such corporations or business entities do not compete
directly with the Company, in any area of the world, in any line of business engaged in (or planned to be engaged in) by the Company, and so
long as such service does not materially interfere with the performance of Consultant's duties hereunder.
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9.
TAXES

    Consultant shall be solely responsible for the payment, wherever payable, of any income taxes or other taxes, contributions or insurance
premiums that pertain to the compensation received hereunder.

10.
NOTICES



    Any notice or other communication required to be given under the terms of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been given upon
personal delivery or upon the lapse of three (3) days following deposit for delivery by certified or registered United States mail, postage fully
prepaid and addressed to the party at the Company's or Consultant's respective address as shown herein (or at such other address to which one
party gives the other by the same means of notice).

    Notice and payment to Consultant shall be sent to the following address:

    Notice to the Company shall be sent to the following address:

EXAR CORPORATION
48720 Kato Road
Fremont, California 94538
Attn: Legal Department

11.
GENERAL

    (a) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings between
them relating to the subject matter hereunder (with the exception of the Employment Agreement, certain provisions of which, by their terms,
may continue in effect during the term of this Agreement), and no modification of this Agreement shall be binding on either party unless it is
in writing and signed by both parties.

    (b) The rights and obligations of the parties to this Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State
of California. The parties hereto subject themselves to the jurisdiction of the state and federal courts of the State of California residing within
the County of Alameda with respect to any dispute, disagreement or claim arising hereunder, and agree that any such dispute, disagreement or
claim shall be exclusively resolved by such California state or federal court.

    (c) The prevailing party in any legal, arbitration or dispute resolution action brought by one party against the other regarding the
performance, interpretation, enforcement or with respect to any matter arising out of or in connection with this Agreement shall be entitled, in
addition to any other rights and remedies it may have, to reimbursement for its expenses incurred thereby, including court costs and reasonable
attorneys' fees.

    (d) Neither party shall assign this Agreement or any rights hereunder without the prior written consent of the other. Subject to this
restriction, this Agreement shall benefit and bind the successors and assigns of the parties.

    The parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date first above written.

EXAR CORPORATION  DONALD L. CIFFONE, JR.

By:     By:    

Title:     Title:    

Date:     Date:    
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EXHIBIT B 

RELEASE
(INDIVIDUAL TERMINATION) 

    Certain capitalized terms used in this Release are defined in the Executive Employment Agreement (the "Agreement") which I have executed
and of which this Release is a part.

    I acknowledge that I have read and understand Section 1542 of the California Civil Code which reads as follows: "A general release does
not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his favor at the time of executing the release, which if
known by him must have materially affected his settlement with the debtor." I hereby expressly waive and relinquish all rights and



benefits under that section and any law of any jurisdiction of similar effect with respect to my release of any claims I may have against the
Company.

    Except as otherwise set forth in this Release, in consideration of benefits I will receive under the Agreement, I hereby release, acquit and
forever discharge the Company, its parents and subsidiaries, and their officers, directors, agents, servants, employees, shareholders,
successors, assigns and affiliates, of and from any and all claims, liabilities, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, attorneys' fees,
damages, indemnities and obligations of every kind and nature, in law, equity, or otherwise, known and unknown, suspected and unsuspected,
disclosed and undisclosed (other than any claim for indemnification I may have as a result of any third party action against me based on my
employment with the Company or any claim to severance benefits pursuant to the terms of the Agreement), arising out of or in any way related
to agreements, events, acts or conduct at any time prior to and including the date I execute this Release, including, but not limited to: all such
claims and demands directly or indirectly arising out of or in any way connected with my employment with the Company or the termination of
that employment, including, but not limited to, claims of intentional and negligent infliction of emotional distress, any and all tort claims for
personal injury, claims or demands related to salary, bonuses, commissions, stock, stock options, or any other ownership interests in the
Company, vacation pay, fringe benefits, expense reimbursements, severance pay, or any other form of compensation; claims pursuant to any
federal, state or local law or cause of action including, but not limited to, the federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; the federal Age
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended ("ADEA"); the federal Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as
amended; the federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, as amended; tort law;
contract law; statutory law; common law; wrongful discharge; discrimination; fraud; defamation; emotional distress; and breach of the implied
covenant of good faith and fair dealing; provided, however, that nothing in this paragraph shall be construed in any way to release the
Company from its obligation to indemnify me pursuant to the Company's indemnification obligation pursuant to agreement or applicable law.

    I acknowledge that I am knowingly and voluntarily waiving and releasing any rights I may have under the ADEA. I also acknowledge that
the consideration given under the Agreement for the waiver and release in the preceding paragraph hereof is in addition to anything of value to
which I was already entitled. I further acknowledge that I have been advised by this writing, as required by the ADEA, that: (A) my waiver
and release do not apply to any rights or claims that may arise on or after the date I execute this Release; (B) I have the right to consult with an
attorney prior to executing this Release; (C) I have twenty-one (21) days to consider this Release (although I may choose to voluntarily
execute this Release earlier); (D) I have seven (7) days following my execution of this Release to revoke the
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Release; and (E) this Release shall not be effective until the date upon which the revocation period has expired, which shall be the eighth (8th)
day after this Release is executed by me.

  DONALD L. CIFFONE, JR.

  
  Date:   
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EXHIBIT C 

RELEASE
(GROUP TERMINATION) 

    Certain capitalized terms used in this Release are defined in the Executive Employment Agreement (the "Agreement") which I have executed
and of which this Release is a part.

    I acknowledge that I have read and understand Section 1542 of the California Civil Code which reads as follows: "A general release does
not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his favor at the time of executing the release, which if
known by him must have materially affected his settlement with the debtor." I hereby expressly waive and relinquish all rights and
benefits under that section and any law of any jurisdiction of similar effect with respect to my release of any claims I may have against the
Company.

    Except as otherwise set forth in this Release, in consideration of benefits I will receive under the Agreement, I hereby release, acquit and
forever discharge the Company, its parents and subsidiaries, and their officers, directors, agents, servants, employees, shareholders,
successors, assigns and affiliates, of and from any and all claims, liabilities, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, attorneys' fees,
damages, indemnities and obligations of every kind and nature, in law, equity, or otherwise, known and unknown, suspected and unsuspected,
disclosed and undisclosed (other than any claim for indemnification I may have as a result of any third party action against me based on my
employment with the Company or any claim to severance benefits pursuant to the terms of the Agreement), arising out of or in any way related
to agreements, events, acts or conduct at any time prior to and including the date I execute this Release, including, but not limited to: all such
claims and demands directly or indirectly arising out of or in any way connected with my employment with the Company or the termination of
that employment, including, but not limited to, claims of intentional and negligent infliction of emotional distress, any and all tort claims for
personal injury, claims or demands related to salary, bonuses, commissions, stock, stock options, or any other ownership interests in the
Company, vacation pay, fringe benefits, expense reimbursements, severance pay, or any other form of compensation; claims pursuant to any
federal, state or local law or cause of action including, but not limited to, the federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; the federal Age
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended ("ADEA"); the federal Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as



Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended ("ADEA"); the federal Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as
amended; the federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, as amended; tort law;
contract law; statutory law; common law; wrongful discharge; discrimination; fraud; defamation; emotional distress; and breach of the implied
covenant of good faith and fair dealing; provided, however, that nothing in this paragraph shall be construed in any way to release the
Company from its obligation to indemnify me pursuant to the Company's indemnification obligation pursuant to agreement or applicable law.

    I acknowledge that I am knowingly and voluntarily waiving and releasing any rights I may have under the ADEA. I also acknowledge that
the consideration given under the Agreement for the waiver and release in the preceding paragraph hereof is in addition to anything of value to
which I was already entitled. I further acknowledge that I have been advised by this writing, as required by the ADEA, that: (A) my waiver
and release do not apply to any rights or claims that may arise on or after the date I execute this Release; (B) I have the right to consult with an
attorney prior to executing this Release; (C) I have forty-five (45) days to consider this Release (although I may choose to voluntarily execute
this Release earlier); (D) I have seven (7) days following my execution of this Release to revoke the Release; (E) this Release shall not be
effective until the date upon which the revocation period has expired, which shall be the eighth day (8th) after this Release is executed by me;
and (F) I have received with this Release a detailed list of the job titles and ages of all employees who were
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terminated in this group termination and the ages of all employees of the Company in the same job classification or organizational unit who
were not terminated.

  DONALD L. CIFFONE, JR.

  
  Date:   
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Exhibit 10.11

[Date] [Name]
[Title]
[Company]
[Address]

Dear [First]:

    This letter agreement (the "Agreement") between you and Exar Corporation (the "Company") is made with respect to each of the
outstanding stock options granted to you by the Company under any of its stock option plans (each an "Option," and collectively, the
"Options"), including each Option that is held by you as of the date of this Agreement and any Option that may be granted to you by the
Company after such date.

    1.  The term of this Agreement will commence on the date hereof and continue until the latest date on which any of your Options expire
under the terms of the stock option agreements pursuant to which such Options were granted.

    2.  For purposes of this Agreement, the following definitions shall apply:

(i)
"Cause" mean: (A) conviction of any felony or conviction of any crime involving moral turpitude or dishonesty;
(B) participation in a fraud or act of dishonesty against the Company; (C) conduct by which, based upon a good faith
and reasonable factual investigation and determination by the Company, demonstrates gross incompetence; or
(D) intentional, material violation of any contract between you and the Company or any statutory duty to the Company
that is not corrected within thirty (30) days after written notice to you thereof. Physical or mental disability shall not
constitute "Cause." 

(ii)
"Change of Control" means (1) a merger or consolidation in which the Company is not the surviving corporation; (2) a
reverse merger in which the Company is the surviving corporation but the shares of the Company's common stock
outstanding immediately preceding the merger are converted by virtue of the merger into other property, whether in the
form of securities, cash or otherwise; or (3) any other capital reorganization, in each case in which the stockholders of
the Company immediately prior to the closing of such transaction beneficially own less than fifty percent (50%) of the
voting power of the acquiring entity. 

(iii)
"Restriction Period" means the continuous period of time during which you are, in connection with a Change in Control
and as a result of state or federal securities laws or "pooling of interests" accounting rules applicable to a Change of
Control, restricted from selling, transferring or otherwise disposing of stock of the Company.

    3.  If your employment or service with the Company is terminated during a Restriction Period for any reason other than Cause or your
death, and such Restriction Period ends after the latest date on which, under the terms of the stock option agreements pursuant to which your
Options were granted, you may exercise any of your Options, then the total exercise price of the Options that are not exercisable after the last
day of the Restriction Period, or any portion of such purchase price, shall, at your election, be payable with a Promissory Note substantially in
the form set forth in Exhibit A. The Promissory Note shall also include the amount of any state or Federal taxes payable by you on Options
exercised pursuant to such Promissory Note, provided that such payment of taxes is due on or before the last day of the Restriction Period.
Except to the extent prohibited by state or federal securities laws or "pooling of interests" accounting rules, shares purchased pursuant to such
Promissory Note shall be subject to a pledge substantially in the form of the Pledge Agreement set forth in Exhibit B. If

required, the Pledge Agreement shall be modified or eliminated entirely, as agreed by the parties, in order to comply with such laws and rules.
The outstanding principal amount of the Promissory Note shall be payable in full no later than three (3) months after the date on which the
Restriction Period ends, or on such earlier date(s) as agreed upon between you and the Company, together with interest accrued from the date
of the Promissory Note on the unpaid principal at a rate equal to the lower of (i) the short-term applicable Federal rate in effect on the date of
the Promissory Note, or (ii) the return earned by the Company on its cash investments for the fiscal year ending with or prior to the date of the
Promissory Note.

    4.  You represent that you have not entered into any agreements, understandings, or arrangements with any other person or entity that
would be breached by you as a result of, or that would in any way preclude or prohibit you from entering into this Agreement, the Promissory
Note and the Pledge Agreement.

    5.  Any successor to the Company as a result of the occurrence of a Change of Control shall assume the obligations under this Agreement
to perform the obligations under this Agreement in the same manner and to the same extent as the Company would be required to perform
such obligations. For all purposes under this Agreement, the term "Company" shall include any successor to the Company's business and/or
assets that assumes the obligation of this Agreement or that becomes bound by the obligations of this Agreement by operation of law, and this
Agreement shall be binding upon any such successor.

    6.  The terms of this Agreement and all of your rights hereunder shall inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by, your personal or legal



    6.  The terms of this Agreement and all of your rights hereunder shall inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by, your personal or legal
representatives, executors, administrators, successors, heirs, distributees, devisees or legatees.

    7.  This Agreement, including any Exhibits thereto, constitutes the sole agreement of the parties and supersedes all negotiations and prior
agreements with respect to the subject matter hereof.

    8.  Any term of this Agreement may be amended or waived only with the written consent of the parties.

    9.  Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement will be in writing and will be deemed sufficient upon receipt, when delivered
personally, by facsimile or by a nationally-recognized delivery service (such as Federal Express or Express Mail), or 72 hours after being
deposited in the U.S. mail as certified or registered mail with postage prepaid, if such notice is addressed to the party to be notified at such
party's address as set forth below or as subsequently modified by written notice.

    10. The validity, interpretation, construction and performance of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California,
without giving effect to the principles of conflict of laws.

    Please indicate your agreement with the above terms by signing below.

  Sincerely,

  Exar Corporation

  By:   
    
    [Donald L. Ciffone, Jr.][Ronald W. Guire]

  Title:

  Address: 

  

  Facsimile Number: 

Agreed and Accepted:     
[Name]     

     
    

     
Address:     

     
Facsimile Number:     

Exhibit A

Promissory Note 

PROMISSORY NOTE

$             [City and State]

[Date]

    FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby unconditionally promises to pay in full on            to the order of Exar Corporation, a
Delaware corporation (the "Company"), at 48720 Kato Road, Fremont, California, or at such other place as the holder hereof may designate in
writing, in lawful money of the United States of America and in immediately available funds, the principal sum of            Dollars ($            )
together with interest accrued (and compounded annually) from the date hereof on the unpaid principal at the rate of      % per annum.

    If the undersigned fails to pay any of the principal and accrued interest when due, the Company, at its sole option, shall have the right to
accelerate this Note, in which event the entire principal balance and all accrued interest shall become immediately due and payable, and
immediately collectible by the Company pursuant to applicable law.

    This Note may be prepaid at any time without penalty. All money paid toward the satisfaction of this Note shall be applied first to the
payment of interest as required hereunder and then to the retirement of the principal.



    The full amount of this Note is secured by a pledge of shares of Common Stock of the Company, and is subject to all of the terms and
provisions of the Stock Pledge Agreement of even date herewith between the undersigned and the Company; provided, however, that the
obligation of the undersigned to make payments of principal, interest and all other amounts pursuant to this Note shall be with full recourse
against the undersigned.

    The undersigned hereby represents and agrees that the amounts due under this Note are not consumer debt, and are not incurred primarily
for personal, family or household purposes, but are for business and commercial purposes only.

    The undersigned hereby waives presentment, protest and notice of protest, demand for payment, notice of dishonor and all other notices or
demands in connection with the delivery, acceptance, performance, default or endorsement of this Note.

    The holder hereof shall be entitled to recover, and the undersigned agrees to pay when incurred, all costs and expenses of collection of this
Note, including without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees.

    The validity, interpretation, construction and performance of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California,
without giving effect to the principles of conflict of laws.

Signed

Exhibit B
Pledge Agreement 

STOCK PLEDGE AGREEMENT

    THIS STOCK PLEDGE AGREEMENT ("Pledge Agreement") is made by            ("Pledgor"), in favor of Exar Corporation, a
Delaware corporation with its principal place of business at 48720 Kato Road, Fremont, California ("Pledgee").

    WHEREAS, Pledgor has concurrently herewith executed that certain Promissory Note (the "Note") in favor of Pledgee in the amount of
            Dollars ($            ) in payment of the purchase price of            (            ) shares of the Common Stock of Pledgee; and

    WHEREAS, Pledgee is willing to accept the Note from Pledgor, but only upon the condition, among others, that Pledgor shall have
executed and delivered to Pledgee this Pledge Agreement and the Collateral (as defined below):

    NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of
which are hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound, Pledgor hereby agrees as follows:

    1.  As security for the full, prompt and complete payment and performance when due (whether by stated maturity, by acceleration or
otherwise) of all indebtedness of Pledgor to Pledgee created under the Note (all such indebtedness being the "Liabilities"), together with,
without limitation, the prompt payment of all expenses, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and legal expenses, incidental
to the collection of the Liabilities and the enforcement or protection of Pledgee's lien in and to the collateral pledged hereunder, Pledgor hereby
pledges to Pledgee, and grants to Pledgee, a first priority security interest in all of the following (collectively, the "Pledged Collateral"):

    (a)             (            ) shares of Common Stock of Pledgee represented by Certificates numbered            (the "Pledged Shares"), and
all dividends, cash, instruments, and other property or proceeds from time to time received, receivable, or otherwise distributed in
respect of or in exchange for any or all of the Pledged Shares;

    (b) all voting trust certificates held by Pledgor evidencing the right to vote any Pledged Shares subject to any voting trust; and

    (c) all additional shares and voting trust certificates from time to time acquired by Pledgor in any manner (which additional shares
shall be deemed to be part of the Pledged Shares), and the certificates representing such additional shares, and all dividends, cash,
instruments, and other property or proceeds from time to time received, receivable, or otherwise distributed in respect of or in exchange
for any or all of such shares.

    The term "indebtedness" is used herein in its most comprehensive sense and includes any and all advances, debts, obligations and Liabilities
heretofore, now or hereafter made, incurred or created, whether voluntary or involuntary and whether due or not due, absolute or contingent,
liquidated or unliquidated, determined or undetermined, and whether recovery upon such indebtedness may be or hereafter becomes
unenforceable.

    2.  At any time, without notice, and at the expense of Pledgor, Pledgee in its name or in the name of its nominee or of Pledgor may, but shall
not be obligated to: (1) collect by legal proceedings or otherwise all dividends (except cash dividends other than liquidating dividends),
interest, principal payments and other sums now or hereafter payable upon or on account of said Pledged Collateral; (2) enter into any
extension, reorganization, deposit, merger or consolidation agreement, or any agreement in any wise relating to or affecting the Pledged
Collateral, and in connection therewith may deposit or surrender control of such Pledged Collateral thereunder, accept other property in
exchange for such Pledged Collateral and do and perform such acts and things as it may deem proper, and any money or property received in
exchange for such Pledged Collateral shall be applied to the indebtedness or thereafter held by it pursuant to the provisions hereof; (3) insure,
process and preserve
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the Pledged Collateral; (4) cause the Pledged Collateral to be transferred to its name or to the name of its nominee; (5) exercise as to such
Pledged Collateral all the rights, powers and remedies of an owner, except that so long as no default exists under the Note or hereunder
Pledgor shall retain all voting rights as to the Pledged Shares.

    3.  Pledgor agrees to pay prior to delinquency all taxes, charges, liens and assessments against the Pledged Collateral, and upon the failure
of Pledgor to do so, Pledgee at its option may pay any of them and shall be the sole judge of the legality or validity thereof and the amount
necessary to discharge the same.

    4.  At the option of Pledgee and without necessity of demand or notice, all or any part of the indebtedness of Pledgor shall immediately
become due and payable irrespective of any agreed maturity, upon the happening of any of the following events: (1) failure to keep or perform
any of the terms or provisions of this Pledge Agreement; (2) failure to pay any installment of principal or interest on the Note when due;
(3) the levy of any attachment, execution or other process against the Pledged Collateral; or (4) the insolvency, commission of an act of
bankruptcy, general assignment for the benefit of creditors, filing of any petition in bankruptcy or for relief under the provisions of Title 11 of
the United States Code of, by, or against Pledgor.

    5.  In the event of the nonpayment of any indebtedness when due, whether by acceleration or otherwise, or upon the happening of any of
the events specified in the last preceding section, Pledgee may then, or at any time thereafter, at its election, apply, set off, collect or sell in one
or more sales, or take such steps as may be necessary to liquidate and reduce to cash in the hands of Pledgee in whole or in part, with or
without any previous demands or demand of performance or notice or advertisement, the whole or any part of the Pledged Collateral in such
order as Pledgee may elect, and any such sale may be made either at public or private sale at its place of business or elsewhere, or at any
broker's board or securities exchange, either for cash or upon credit or for future delivery; provided, however, that if such disposition is at
private sale, then the purchase price of the Pledged Collateral shall be equal to the public market price then in effect, or, if at the time of sale no
public market for the Pledged Collateral exists, then, in recognition of the fact that the sale of the Pledged Collateral would have to be
registered under the Securities Act of 1933 and that the expenses of such registration are commercially unreasonable for the type and amount
of collateral pledged hereunder, Pledgee and Pledgor hereby agree that such private sale shall be at a purchase price mutually agreed to by
Pledgee and Pledgor or, if the parties cannot agree upon a purchase price, then at a purchase price established by a majority of three
independent appraisers knowledgeable of the value of such collateral, one named by Pledgor within ten (10) days after written request by the
Pledgee to do so, one named by Pledgee within such 10-day period, and the third named by the two appraisers so selected, with the appraisal
to be rendered by such body within thirty (30) days of the appointment of the third appraiser. The cost of such appraisal, including all
appraiser's fees, shall be charged against the proceeds of sale as an expense of such sale. Pledgee may be the purchaser of any or all Pledged
Collateral so sold and hold the same thereafter in its own right free from any claim of Pledgor or right of redemption. Demands of
performance, notices of sale, advertisements and presence of property at sale are hereby waived, and Pledgee is hereby authorized to sell
hereunder any evidence of debt pledged to it. Any officer or agent of Pledgee may conduct any sale hereunder.

    6.  The proceeds of the sale of any of the Pledged Collateral and all sums received or collected by Pledgee from or on account of such
Pledged Collateral shall be applied by Pledgee to the payment of expenses incurred or paid by Pledgee in connection with any sale, transfer or
delivery of the Pledged Collateral, to the payment of any other costs, charges, attorneys' fees or expenses mentioned herein, and to the payment
of the indebtedness or any part hereof, all in such order and manner as Pledgee in its discretion may determine. Pledgee shall then pay any
balance to Pledgor.
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    7.  Upon the transfer of all or any part of the indebtedness Pledgee may transfer all or any part of the Pledged Collateral and shall be fully
discharged thereafter from all liability and responsibility with respect to such Pledged Collateral so transferred, and the transferee shall be
vested with all the rights and powers of Pledgee hereunder with respect to such Pledged Collateral so transferred; but with respect to any
Pledged Collateral not so transferred Pledgee shall retain all rights and powers hereby given.

    8.  Until all indebtedness shall have been paid in full the power of sale and all other rights, powers and remedies granted to Pledgee
hereunder shall continue to exist and may be exercised by Pledgee at any time and from time to time irrespective of the fact that the
indebtedness or any part thereof may have become barred by any statute of limitations, or that the personal liability of Pledgor may have
ceased.

    9.  Pledgee agrees that so long as no default exists under the Note or hereunder, the Pledged Shares shall, upon request of Pledgor, be
released from the pledge (i) as the indebtedness is paid at the rate of one share for each ($            ) of principal amount of indebtedness paid, or
(ii) prior to the payment of the indebtedness for the purpose of effecting a sale of Pledged Shares by Pledgor, provided that such sale shall
occur immediately following such release, and the proceeds of such sale shall be paid to Pledgee in an amount equal to the lesser of the full
proceeds of such sale or the Liabilities.

    10. Pledgee may at any time deliver the Pledged Collateral or any part thereof to Pledgor and the receipt of Pledgor shall be a complete and
full acquittance for the Pledged Collateral so delivered, and Pledgee shall thereafter be discharged from any liability or responsibility therefor.

    11. The rights, powers and remedies given to Pledgee by this Pledge Agreement shall be in addition to all rights, powers and remedies
given to Pledgee by virtue of any statute or rule of law. Any forbearance or failure or delay by Pledgee in exercising any right, power or
remedy hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such right, power or remedy, and any single or partial exercise of any right, power or
remedy hereunder shall not preclude the further exercise thereof; and every right, power and remedy of Pledgee shall continue in full force and
effect until such right, power or remedy is specifically waived by an instrument in writing executed by Pledgee.

    12. If any provision of this Pledge Agreement is held to be unenforceable for any reason, it shall be adjusted, if possible, rather than voided
in order to achieve the intent of the parties to the extent possible. In any event, all other provisions of this Pledge Agreement shall be deemed
valid and enforceable to the full extent possible.



    13. The validity, interpretation, construction and performance of this Pledge Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of
California, without giving effect to the principles of conflict of laws.

Dated:  PLEDGOR

  

  Printed Name:
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EXHIBIT 21.1 

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 

1.
Exar International, Inc. (a Virgin Islands Foreign Sales corporation). 

2.
Exar Japan Corporation (a Japan corporation). 

3.
Micro Power Systems, Inc. (a California corporation). 

4.
Exar Ltd. (a United Kingdom Limited Liability corporation). 

5.
Exar SARL (a French Limited Liability corporation). 

6.
Exar Taiwan Corporation (a Taiwan corporation).
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EXHIBIT 23.1 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CONSENT 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Exar Corporation:

    We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statements Nos. 33-58991, 333-37371, 333-69381, 333-31120, 333-55082
and 333-48226 on Form S-8 of Exar Corporation of our report dated April 23, 2001, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Exar
Corporation for the year ended March 31, 2001.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

San Jose, California
June 27, 2001
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